
CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

Tuesday, November 27, 2012 
5:30 p.m. 

Menlo Park Council Chambers 
701 Laurel Street, Menlo Park, CA 94025 

5:30 P.M. STUDY SESSION 

SS1. Guest speakers who will introduce topics related to Transportation Management 

Associations and Multi-modal Level of Service (Staff report #2012-181) 

7:00 P.M. REGULAR SESSION 

ROLL CALL – Cline, Cohen, Fergusson, Keith, Ohtaki 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

A. PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS

A1. Proclamation declaring November as Pancreatic Cancer Awareness Month (Attachment) 

A2. Presentation: Results of the Bi-Annual Community Survey (Attachment) 

A3. Presentation by Streetline, Inc. regarding Smart Parking 
B. COMMISSION/COMMITTEE VACANCIES, APPOINTMENTS AND REPORTS

C. PUBLIC COMMENT #1 (Limited to 30 minutes)
Under “Public Comment #1”, the public may address the Council on any subject not listed
on the agenda and items listed under the Consent Calendar.  Each speaker may address
the Council once under Public Comment for a limit of three minutes.  Please clearly state
your name and address or political jurisdiction in which you live.  The Council cannot act
on items not listed on the agenda and, therefore, the Council cannot respond to non-
agenda issues brought up under Public Comment other than to provide general
information.

D. CONSENT CALENDAR

D1. Adopt a resolution accepting dedication of a public access easement at 900-910 Roble 
Avenue (formerly 821 University Drive) and authorize the City Clerk to sign the parcel map 
(Staff report #12-177) 

D2. Authorize the Public Works Director to accept the work by Suarez and Munoz 
Construction, Inc., for the 2011-12 Citywide Sidewalk Repair Project and the Seminary 
Oaks Park Pathway Replacement Project (Staff report #12-178) 

D3. Accept minutes for the Council meeting of November 13, 2012 (Attachment) 

1

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight



E. PUBLIC HEARING

E1. Adopt a resolution accepting fiscal year 2012-2013 State Supplemental Local Law 
Enforcement Grant (COPS Frontline) in the amount of $100,000; approve a spending plan 
and re-allocate $43,272 from fiscal year 2011-2012 encumbered Supplemental Law 
Enforcement Special Funds (Staff report #12-176) 

E2. Consider a request for rezoning, conditional development permit, heritage tree removal 
permit, and below market rate housing agreement for a proposed office, research and 
development (R&D), manufacturing and warehousing development on the property 
located at 1 and 20 Kelly Court (Staff report #2012-182) 

F. REGULAR BUSINESS

F1. Approve a resolution authorizing a Memorandum of Understanding between the City of 
Menlo Park and the County of Alameda for the Regional Renewable Energy Procurement 
Project and provide feedback on the potential of installing photovoltaic carports at four City 
facilities (Staff report #12-180) 

F2. Consider state and federal legislative items, including decisions to support or oppose any 
such legislation, and items listed under Written Communication or Information Item: None 

G. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT – None

H. WRITTEN COMMUNICATION – None

I. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

I1. Status on reusable bag ordinance (Staff report #12-179) 

J. COUNCILMEMBER REPORTS

K. PUBLIC COMMENT #2: (Limited to 30 minutes)
Under “Public Comment #2”, the public if unable to address the Council on non-agenda
items during Public Comment #1, may do so at this time.  Each person is limited to three
minutes.  Please clearly state your name and address or jurisdiction in which you live.

L. ADJOURNMENT

Agendas are posted in accordance with Government Code Section 54954.2(a) or Section 54956.  Members of the public can view electronic agendas 
and staff reports by accessing the City website at http://www.menlopark.org  and can receive e-mail notification of agenda and staff report postings by 
subscribing to the “Home Delivery” service on the City’s homepage.  Agendas and staff reports may also be obtained by contacting the City Clerk at 
(650) 330-6620.  Copies of the entire packet are available at the library for viewing and copying.  (Posted: 11/21/2012)

At every Regular Meeting of the City Council, in addition to the Public Comment period where the public shall have the right to address the City Council 
on the Consent Calendar and any matters of public interest not listed on the agenda, members of the public have the right to directly address the City 
Council on any item listed on the agenda at a time designated by the Mayor, either before or during the Council’s consideration of the item.   
At every Special Meeting of the City Council, members of the public have the right to directly address the City Council on any item listed on the agenda 
at a time designated by the Mayor, either before or during consideration of the item.  

Any writing that is distributed to a majority of the City Council by any person in connection with an agenda item is a public record (subject to any 
exemption under the Public Records Act) and is available for inspection at the Office of the City Clerk, Menlo Park City Hall, 701 Laurel Street, Menlo 
Park, CA 94025 during regular business hours.  Members of the public may send communications to members of the City Council via the City Council’s 
e-mail address at city.council@menlopark.org.  These communications are public records and can be viewed by anyone by clicking on the following
link: http://ccin.menlopark.org 

City Council meetings are televised live on Government Access Television Cable TV Channel 26.  Meetings are re-broadcast on Channel 26 on 
Thursdays and Saturdays at 11:00 a.m.  A DVD of each meeting is available for check out at the Menlo Park Library. 
Live and archived video stream of Council meetings can be accessed at:  
http://menlopark.granicus.com/ViewPublisher.php?view_id=2   Persons with disabilities, who require auxiliary aids or services in attending or 
participating in City Council meetings, may call the City Clerk’s Office  

2

http://www.menlopark.org/�
http://menlopark.granicus.com/ViewPublisher.php?view_id=2UU�
tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight



 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT  
 

Council Meeting Date: November, 27, 2012 
Staff Report #:12-181 

 
Agenda Item #: SS-1  

 
 
 

STUDY SESSION: Panel Introduction to Transportation Management Associations 
and Multi-modal Level of Service 

 

The purpose of this Study Session is to educate and inform the City Council regarding 
Transportation Management Associations (TMAs) and Multi-Modal Level of Service 
(MMLOS) as a way to measure multiple modes of travel including vehicles, bicycles, 
pedestrians and transit.   

BACKGROUND 

The City is planning to update the General Plan over the next few years. The update will 
include many areas of the Plan including the Transportation Element. The current 
General Plan includes a higher focus on vehicle Level of Service (LOS). Current trends 
within California and the nation suggest that a more well-rounded approach for 
considering and measuring all modes of travel is beneficial.  

In preparation for future discussions on the General Plan, this Study Session will 
provide an overview of two transportation topics including TMAs and MMLOS. These 
speakers will be the first in what will likely be a series of presentations on an array of 
topics to help inform decision makers on issues prior to preparing the General Plan 
update. The speakers for this Study Session include the following: 

Transportation Management Associations 

Rick Williams of Rick Williams Consulting (RWC) is the parking and transportation 
demand management consulting arm of BPM Development, 50-year-old real estate firm 
headquartered in Portland.  BPM owns and operates numerous structured and surface 
parking facilities in the Portland Downtown core.  Rick Williams Consulting is highly 
experienced and successful in managing the relationship of parking 
management/operations and economic development for clients in Portland, the Pacific 
Northwest, the United States and Canada.  RWC also works extensively in the area of 
transportation demand management programs, planning, design and implementation.  

Multi-modal Level of Service 

Kamala Parks brings her abilities in transportation planning, traffic operations, 
development theory/practices and research methods to Kittleson & Associates, Inc.  Her 
work includes preparing traffic impact studies, analysis for and writing of master plans 
and environmental impact reports, and assisting research reports.  She has expertise in 

3



many transportation model programs, and the Multimodal Level of Service Analysis 
method for Urban Streets.    

In updating the Transportation Element of the General Plan, it is important to take a 
comprehensive approach which combines transportation planning and traffic 
engineering to integrate solutions with a community goal of developing solutions that 
improve the performance of streets, pedestrian, bicycle and transit systems. These 
topics will be widely discussed by the community, commission and Council as part of 
the General Plan update 

Signature on File                   
Charles Taylor 
Public Works Director 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE: Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this 
agenda item being listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 

ATTACHMENTS:  

 None   

4



roclAmatton
Declaring November “Pancreatic Cancer Awareness Month”

WHEREAS, in 2012, an estimated 43,920 people will be diagnosed with pancreatic cancer in

the United States and 37,390 will die from the disease; and

WHEREAS, pancreatic cancer is one of the deadliest cancers, is the fourth leading cause of
cancer death in the United States, and is the only major cancer with a five-year relative
survival rate in the single digits at just six percent; and

WHEREAS, when symptoms of pancreatic cancer present themselves, it is usually too late for an
optimistic prognosis, and 74 percent of pancreatic cancer patients die within the first year of
their diagnosis while 94 percent of pancreatic cancer patients die within the first five years;

WHEREAS, of all the racial/ethnic groups in the United States, African Americans have the
highest incidence rate of pancreatic cancer, between 34 percent and 70 percent higher than
the other groups; and

WHEREAS, approximately 3860 deaths will occur in California in 2012: and

WHEREAS, there is no cure for pancreatic cancer and there have been no significant
improvements in survival rates in the last 40 years; and

WHEREAS, the Federal Government invests significantly less money in pancreatic cancer
research than it does in any of the other leading cancer killers: and pancreatic cancer
research constitutes only approximately 2 percent of the National Cancer Institute’s federal
research funding, a figure far too low given the severity of the disease, its mortality rate, and
how liffle is known about how to arrest it; and

WHEREAS, the Pancreatic Cancer Action Network is the first and only national patient
advocacy organization that serves the pancreatic cancer community in Menlo Park and
nationwide by focusing its efforts on public policy, research funding, patient services, and
public awareness and education related to developing effective treatments and a cure for
pancreatic cancer; and

WHEREAS, the Pancreatic Cancer Action Network and its affiliates in Menlo Park support those
patients currently baffling pancreatic cancer, as well as to those who have lost their lives to
the disease, and are commifted to nothing less than a cure; and

WHEREAS, the good health and well-being of the residents of Menlo Park are enhanced as a
direct result of increased awareness about pancreatic cancer and research into early
detection, causes, and effective treatments.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that I, Kirsten Keith, Mayor, designate the month of November 2012
as “Pancreatic Cancer Awareness Month” in Menlo Park, California.

Kirsten Keith
Mayor

CITY OF

MENLO
PARK

5



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

6



   
 2955 Valmont Road, Suite 300 777 North Capitol Street NE, Suite 500 
 Boulder, CO 80301 Washington, DC 20002 
 www.n-r-c.com • 303-444-7863 www.icma.org • 202-289-ICMA 

The National Citizen Survey™
 

 
 

CC II TT YY   OO FF   MM EE NN LL OO   PP AA RR KK ,,   CC AA   
22001122  

 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM A-2

57



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 
 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

CCoonntteennttss   
Survey Background ............................................................................................................. 1 

About The National Citizen Survey™ ........................................................................................ 1 
Understanding the Results ........................................................................................................ 3 

Executive Summary ............................................................................................................ 5 

Community Ratings ............................................................................................................ 7 
Overall Community Quality ..................................................................................................... 7 
Community Design .................................................................................................................. 9 

Transportation .................................................................................................................... 9 
Housing ........................................................................................................................... 14 
Land Use and Zoning ....................................................................................................... 16 

Economic Sustainability .......................................................................................................... 19 
Public Safety .......................................................................................................................... 22 
Environmental Sustainability ................................................................................................... 27 
Recreation and Wellness ........................................................................................................ 30 

Parks and Recreation ........................................................................................................ 30 
Culture, Arts and Education .............................................................................................. 32 
Health and Wellness ........................................................................................................ 34 

Community Inclusiveness ....................................................................................................... 35 
Civic Engagement ................................................................................................................... 38 

Civic Activity .................................................................................................................... 38 
Information and Awareness .............................................................................................. 41 
Social Engagement ........................................................................................................... 42 

Public Trust ............................................................................................................................ 44 
City of Menlo Park Employees .......................................................................................... 47 

From Data to Action ......................................................................................................... 49 
Resident Priorities .................................................................................................................. 49 
City of Menlo Park Action Chart ............................................................................................. 50 
Using Your Action Chart™ ...................................................................................................... 52 

Custom Questions ............................................................................................................ 54 

Appendix A: Complete Survey Frequencies ...................................................................... 55 
Frequencies Excluding “Don’t Know” Responses .................................................................... 55 
Frequencies Including “Don’t Know” Responses ..................................................................... 66 

Appendix B: Survey Methodology .................................................................................... 81 

Appendix C: Survey Materials ........................................................................................... 91 
 

68



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

SSuurrvveeyy   BBaacckkggrroouunndd  
AA BB OO UU TT   TT HH EE   NN AA TT II OO NN AA LL   CC II TT II ZZ EE NN   SS UU RR VV EE YY ™™   

The National Citizen Survey™ (The NCS) is a collaborative effort between National Research 
Center, Inc. (NRC) and the International City/County Management Association (ICMA). The NCS 
was developed by NRC to provide a statistically valid survey of resident opinions about community 
and services provided by local government. The survey results may be used by staff, elected 
officials and other stakeholders for community planning and resource allocation, program 
improvement and policy making. 

FIGURE 1: THE NATIONAL CITIZEN SURVEY™ METHODS AND GOALS 

 

The NCS focuses on a series of community characteristics and local government services, as well as 
issues of public trust. Resident behaviors related to civic engagement in the community also were 
measured in the survey. 

 

Assessment Goals 

Assessment Methods Survey Objectives 

• Multi-contact mailed survey 
• Representative sample of 1,200 households 
• 344 surveys returned; 29% response rate 
• 5% margin of error 
• Data statistically weighted to reflect 

population 

Immediate 
• Provide useful information for: 

• Planning 
• Resource allocation 
• Performance measurement 
• Program and policy 

evaluation 

• Identify community strengths and 
weaknesses 

• Identify service strengths and 
weaknesses 

Long-term 
• Improved services 
• More civic engagement 
• Better community quality of life 
• Stronger public trust 

79



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

FIGURE 2: THE NATIONAL CITIZEN SURVEY™ FOCUS AREAS 

 
The survey and its administration are standardized to assure high quality research methods and 
directly comparable results across The National Citizen Survey™ jurisdictions. Participating 
households are selected at random and the household member who responds is selected without 
bias. Multiple mailings give each household more than one chance to participate with self-
addressed and postage-paid envelopes. Results are statistically weighted to reflect the proper 
demographic composition of the entire community. A total of 344 completed surveys were 
obtained, providing an overall response rate of 29%. Typically, response rates obtained on citizen 
surveys range from 25% to 40%.  

The National Citizen Survey™ customized for the City of Menlo Park was developed in close 
cooperation with local jurisdiction staff. Menlo Park staff selected items from a menu of questions 
about services and community issues and provided the appropriate letterhead and signatures for 
mailings.  

CCOOMMMMUUNNIITTYY  QQUUAALLIITTYY  
 

Quality of life 
Quality of neighborhood 

Place to live 

CCOOMMMMUUNNIITTYY  DDEESSIIGGNN  
 

Transportation 
Ease of travel, transit services, 

street maintenance 
 

Housing 
Housing options, cost, 

affordability 
 

Land Use and Zoning 
New development, growth, 

code enforcement 
 

Economic Sustainability 
Employment, shopping and 

retail, City as a place to work 

PPUUBBLLIICC  SSAAFFEETTYY  
 

Safety in neighborhood and 
downtown 

Crime victimization 
Police, fire, EMS services 
Emergency preparedness 

EENNVVIIRROONNMMEENNTTAALL  
SSUUSSTTAAIINNAABBIILLIITTYY  

 
Cleanliness 
Air quality 

Preservation of natural areas 
Garbage and recycling 

services 
 

RREECCRREEAATTIIOONN  AANNDD  
WWEELLLLNNEESSSS  

 
Parks and Recreation 

Recreation opportunities, use 
of parks and facilities, 
programs and classes 

 
Culture, Arts and Education 

Cultural and educational 
opportunities, libraries, 

schools  
 

Health and Wellness 
Availability of food, health 

services, social services 

CCOOMMMMUUNNIITTYY  
IINNCCLLUUSSIIVVEENNEESSSS  

  
Sense of community 

Racial and cultural acceptance 
Senior, youth and low-income 

services 

CCIIVVIICC  EENNGGAAGGEEMMEENNTT  
 

Civic Activity 
Volunteerism 

Civic attentiveness 
Voting behavior 

 
Social Engagement 

Neighborliness, social and 
religious events 

 
Information and Awareness 

Public information, 
publications, Web site 

PPUUBBLLIICC  TTRRUUSSTT  
 

Cooperation in community 
Value of services 

Direction of community 
Citizen involvement 

Employees  

810



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

UU NN DD EE RR SS TT AA NN DD II NN GG   TT HH EE   RR EE SS UU LL TT SS   
As shown in Figure 2, this report is based around respondents’ opinions about eight larger 
categories: community quality, community design, public safety, environmental sustainability, 
recreation and wellness, community inclusiveness, civic engagement and public trust. Each report 
section begins with residents’ ratings of community characteristics and is followed by residents’ 
ratings of service quality. For all evaluative questions, the percent of residents rating the service or 
community feature as “excellent” or “good” is presented. To see the full set of responses for each 
question on the survey, please see Appendix A: Complete Survey Frequencies.  

MM aa rr gg ii nn   oo ff   EE rr rr oo rr   
The margin of error around results for the City of Menlo Park Survey (344 completed surveys) is 
plus or minus five percentage points. This is a measure of the precision of your results; a larger 
number of completed surveys gives a smaller (more precise) margin of error, while a smaller 
number of surveys yields a larger margin of error. With your margin of error, you may conclude 
that when 60% of survey respondents report that a particular service is “excellent” or “good,” 
somewhere between 55-65% of all residents are likely to feel that way. 

CC oo mm pp aa rr ii nn gg   SS uu rr vv ee yy   RR ee ss uu ll tt ss   
Certain kinds of services tend to be thought better of by residents in many communities across the 
country. For example, public safety services tend to be received better than transportation services 
by residents of most American communities. Where possible, the better comparison is not from one 
service to another in the City of Menlo Park, but from City of Menlo Park services to services like 
them provided by other jurisdictions.  

II nn tt ee rr pp rr ee tt ii nn gg   CC oo mm pp aa rr ii ss oo nn ss   tt oo   PP rr ee vv ii oo uu ss   YY ee aa rr ss   
This report contains comparisons with prior years’ results. In this report, we are comparing this 
year’s data with existing data in the graphs. Differences between years can be considered 
“statistically significant” if they are greater than eight percentage points. Trend data for your 
jurisdiction represent important comparison data and should be examined for improvements or 
declines. Deviations from stable trends over time, especially represent opportunities for 
understanding how local policies, programs or public information may have affected residents’ 
opinions. 

BB ee nn cc hh mm aa rr kk   CC oo mm pp aa rr ii ss oo nn ss   
NRC’s database of comparative resident opinion is comprised of resident perspectives gathered in 
citizen surveys from approximately 500 jurisdictions whose residents evaluated local government 
services and gave their opinion about the quality of community life. The comparison evaluations 
are from the most recent survey completed in each jurisdiction; most communities conduct surveys 
every year or in alternating years. NRC adds the latest results quickly upon survey completion, 
keeping the benchmark data fresh and relevant. 

The City of Menlo Park chose to have comparisons made to the entire database. A benchmark 
comparison (the average rating from all the comparison jurisdictions where a similar question was 
asked) has been provided when a similar question on the City of Menlo Park survey was included 
in NRC’s database and there were at least five jurisdictions in which the question was asked. For 
most questions compared to the entire dataset, there were more than 100 jurisdictions included in 
the benchmark comparison. 

911



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

Where comparisons for quality ratings were available, the City of Menlo Park results were generally 
noted as being “above” the benchmark, “below” the benchmark or “similar” to the benchmark. For 
some questions – those related to resident behavior, circumstance or to a local problem – the 
comparison to the benchmark is designated as “more,” “similar” or “less” (for example, the percent 
of crime victims, residents visiting a park or residents identifying code enforcement as a problem.) 
In instances where ratings are considerably higher or lower than the benchmark, these ratings have 
been further demarcated by the attribute of “much,” (for example, “much less” or “much above”). 
These labels come from a statistical comparison of the City of Menlo Park's rating to the 
benchmark. 

  ““ DD oo nn ’’ tt   KK nn oo ww ””   RR ee ss pp oo nn ss ee ss   aa nn dd   RR oo uu nn dd ii nn gg   
On many of the questions in the survey respondents may answer “don’t know.” The proportion of 
respondents giving this reply is shown in the full set of responses included in Appendix A. 
However, these responses have been removed from the analyses presented in the body of the 
report. In other words, the tables and graphs display the responses from respondents who had an 
opinion about a specific item. 

For some questions, respondents were permitted to select more than one answer. When the total 
exceeds 100% in a table for a multiple response question, it is because some respondents did select 
more than one response. When a table for a question that only permitted a single response does not 
total to exactly 100%, it is due to the customary practice of percentages being rounded to the 
nearest whole number. 

For more information on understanding The NCS report, please see Appendix B: Survey 
Methodology. 

1012



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

EExxeeccuutt ii vvee   SSuummmmaarryy   
This report of the City of Menlo Park survey provides the opinions of a representative sample of 
residents about community quality of life, service delivery, civic participation and unique issues of 
local interest. A periodic sounding of resident opinion offers staff, elected officials and other 
stakeholders an opportunity to identify challenges and to plan for and evaluate improvements and 
to sustain services and amenities for long-term success. 

Almost all residents experienced a good quality of life in the City of Menlo Park and believed the 
City was a good place to live. The overall quality of life in the City of Menlo Park was rated as 
“excellent” or “good” by 94% of respondents. A majority reported they plan on staying in the City 
of Menlo Park for the next five years.  

A variety of characteristics of the community was evaluated by those participating in the study. The 
three characteristics receiving the most favorable ratings were the cleanliness of Menlo Park, the 
overall image or reputation of Menlo Park, and the overall appearance of Menlo Park. Among the 
characteristics receiving the least positive ratings were the availability of affordable quality child 
care and traffic flow on major streets.  

Ratings of community characteristics were compared to the benchmark database. Of the 32 
characteristics for which comparisons were available, 14 were above the national benchmark 
comparison, ten were similar to the national benchmark comparison and eight were below. 

Residents in the City of Menlo Park were somewhat civically engaged. While only 25% had 
attended a meeting of local elected public officials or other local public meeting in the previous 12 
months, 94% had provided help to a friend or neighbor. Less than half had volunteered their time 
to some group or activity in the City of Menlo Park, which was lower than the benchmark.  

In general, survey respondents demonstrated trust in local government. A majority rated the overall 
direction being taken by the City of Menlo Park as “good” or “excellent.” This was similar to the 
benchmark. Those residents who had interacted with an employee of the City of Menlo Park in the 
previous 12 months gave high marks to those employees. Most rated their overall impression of 
employees as “excellent” or “good.” 

On average, residents gave favorable ratings to a majority of local government services. City 
services rated were able to be compared to the benchmark database. Of the 28 services for which 
comparisons were available, 17 were above the benchmark comparison, nine were similar to the 
benchmark comparison and two were below. 

1113



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

A Key Driver Analysis was conducted for the City of Menlo Park which examined the relationships 
between ratings of each service and ratings of the City of Menlo Park’s services overall. Those key 
driver services that correlated most strongly with residents’ perceptions about overall City service 
quality have been identified. By targeting improvements in key services, the City of Menlo Park can 
focus on the services that have the greatest likelihood of influencing residents’ opinions about 
overall service quality. Services found to be influential in ratings of overall service quality from the 
Key Driver Analysis were: 

 City parks 
 Police services 

 

For both of these services, the City of Menlo Park was above the benchmark and should continue 
to ensure high quality performance. 

1214



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

CCoommmmuunn ii ttyy   RRaatt iinnggss  
OO VV EE RR AA LL LL   CC OO MM MM UU NN II TT YY   QQ UU AA LL II TT YY   

Overall quality of community life may be the single best indicator of success in providing the 
natural ambience, services and amenities that make for an attractive community. The National 
Citizen Survey™ contained many questions related to quality of community life in the City of Menlo 
Park – not only direct questions about quality of life overall and in neighborhoods, but questions to 
measure residents’ commitment to the City of Menlo Park. Residents were asked whether they 
planned to move soon or if they would recommend the City of Menlo Park to others. Intentions to 
stay and willingness to make recommendations provide evidence that the City of Menlo Park offers 
services and amenities that work. 

Almost all of the City of Menlo Park’s residents gave high ratings to their neighborhoods and the 
community as a place to live. Most reported they would recommend the community to others and 
plan to stay for the next five years. Ratings were stable over time. 

FIGURE 3: RATINGS OF OVERALL COMMUNITY QUALITY BY YEAR 

97%

89%

95%

97%

95%

94%

96%

89%

94%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Menlo Park as a place
to live

Your neighborhood as
a place to live

The overall quality of
life in Menlo Park

Percent "excellent" or "good"

2012

2010

2008

 
FIGURE 4: LIKELIHOOD OF REMAINING IN COMMUNITY AND RECOMMENDING COMMUNITY BY YEAR 

79%

97%

86%

96%

86%

96%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Remain in Menlo Park
for the next five years

Recommend living in
Menlo Park to someone

who asks

Percent "somewhat" or "very" likely

2012

2010

2008

 

1315



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

FIGURE 5: OVERALL COMMUNITY QUALITY BENCHMARKS 
  Comparison to benchmark 

Overall quality of life in Menlo Park Much above 

Your neighborhood as place to live Much above 

Menlo Park as a place to live Much above 

Recommend living in Menlo Park to someone who asks Much above 

Remain in Menlo Park for the next five years Above 

1416



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

CC OO MM MM UU NN II TT YY   DD EE SS II GG NN   

TT rr aa nn ss pp oo rr tt aa tt ii oo nn   
The ability to move easily throughout a community can greatly affect the quality of life of residents 
by diminishing time wasted in traffic congestion and by providing opportunities to travel quickly 
and safely by modes other than the automobile. High quality options for resident mobility not only 
require local government to remove barriers to flow but they require government programs and 
policies that create quality opportunities for all modes of travel.  

Residents responding to the survey were given a list of seven aspects of mobility to rate on a scale 
of “excellent,” “good,” “fair” and “poor.” Ease of walking in Menlo Park was given the most 
positive rating, followed by ease of bicycle travel. The ratings for ease of car travel and traffic flow 
on major streets decreased from 2010 to 2012.  

FIGURE 6: RATINGS OF TRANSPORTATION IN COMMUNITY BY YEAR 

35%

47%

76%

67%

76%

35%

59%

44%

53%

77%

70%

62%

37%

62%

33%

54%

81%

72%

63%

33%

52%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Traffic flow on major
streets

Availability of paths and
walking trails

Ease of walking in Menlo
Park

Ease of bicycle travel in
Menlo Park

Ease of rail or subway
travel in Menlo Park

Ease of bus travel in
Menlo Park

Ease of car travel in
Menlo Park

Percent "excellent" or "good"

2012

2010

2008

 

1517



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

FIGURE 7: COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION BENCHMARKS 
  Comparison to benchmark 

Ease of car travel in Menlo Park Below 

Ease of bus travel in Menlo Park Much below 

Ease of rail or subway travel in Menlo Park Much above 

Ease of bicycle travel in Menlo Park Much above 

Ease of walking in Menlo Park Much above 

Availability of paths and walking trails Similar 

Traffic flow on major streets Much below 
 

1618



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

Seven transportation services were rated in Menlo Park. Ratings tended to be a mix of positive and 
negative.  Three were above the benchmark, one was below the benchmark and three were similar 
to the benchmark. The ratings for street cleaning and sidewalk maintenance improved over time. 

 

FIGURE 8: RATINGS OF TRANSPORTATION AND PARKING SERVICES BY YEAR 

56%

45%

53%

55%

56%

53%

53%

61%

48%

47%

54%

73%

48%

56%

45%

52%

57%

61%

82%

54%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Amount of public parking

Bus or transit services

Traffic signal timing

Sidewalk maintenance

Street lighting

Street cleaning

Street repair

Percent "excellent" or "good"

2012

2010

2008

 
FIGURE 9: TRANSPORTATION AND PARKING SERVICES BENCHMARKS 
  Comparison to benchmark 

Street repair Much above 

Street cleaning Much above 

Street lighting Similar 

Sidewalk maintenance Similar 

Traffic signal timing Similar 

Bus or transit services Below 

Amount of public parking Above 
 

1719



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

By measuring choice of travel mode over time, communities can monitor their success in providing 
attractive alternatives to the traditional mode of travel, the single-occupied automobile. When 
asked how they typically traveled to work, single-occupancy (SOV) travel was the main mode of 
use. However, 3% of work commute trips were made by transit, 19% by bicycle and 4% by foot. 

FIGURE 10: FREQUENCY OF BUS USE IN LAST 12 MONTHS BY YEAR 

15%

15%

18%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Ridden a local bus within
Menlo Park

Percent using at least once in last 12 months

2008 2010

2012

 
FIGURE 11: FREQUENCY OF BUS USE BENCHMARKS 

  Comparison to benchmark 

Ridden a local bus within Menlo Park Less 
 

 

1820



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

FIGURE 12: MODE OF TRAVEL USED FOR WORK COMMUTE  

1%

7%

14%

2%

7%

6%

63%

0%

9%

11%

3%

8%

5%

63%

0%

12%

19%

4%

3%

6%

55%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Other

Work at home

Bicycle

Walk

Bus, rail, subway or other
public transportation

Motorized vehicle (e.g., car,
truck, van, motorcycle, etc.)
with other children or adults

Motorized vehicle (e.g., car,
truck, van, motorcycle, etc.)

by myself

Percent of days per week mode used

2012

2010

2008

 
FIGURE 13: DRIVE ALONE BENCHMARKS 
  Comparison to benchmark 

Average percent of work commute trips made by driving alone Much less 

1921



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

HH oo uu ss ii nn gg   
Housing variety and affordability are not luxuries for any community. When there are too few 
options for housing style and affordability, the characteristics of a community tilt toward a single 
group, often of well-off residents. While this may seem attractive to a community, the absence of 
affordable townhomes, condominiums, mobile homes, single family detached homes and 
apartments means that in addition to losing the vibrancy of diverse thoughts and lifestyles, the 
community loses the service workers that sustain all communities – police officers, school teachers, 
house painters and electricians. These workers must live elsewhere and commute in at great 
personal cost and to the detriment of traffic flow and air quality. Furthermore lower income 
residents pay so much of their income to rent or mortgage that little remains to bolster their own 
quality of life or local business. 

The survey of the City of Menlo Park residents asked respondents to reflect on the availability of 
affordable housing as well as the variety of housing options. The availability of affordable housing 
was rated as “excellent” or “good” by 17% of respondents, while the variety of housing options was 
rated as “excellent” or “good” by 35% of respondents. The ratings of perceived affordable housing 
availability and variety of housing options were much worse in the City of Menlo Park than the 
ratings, on average, in comparison jurisdictions.  

 
FIGURE 14: RATINGS OF HOUSING IN COMMUNITY BY YEAR 

37%

11%

46%

19%

35%

17%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Variety of housing options

Availability of affordable
quality housing

Percent "excellent" or "good"

2012

2010

2008

 
 

FIGURE 15: HOUSING CHARACTERISTICS BENCHMARKS 
  Comparison to benchmark 

Availability of affordable quality housing Much below 

Variety of housing options Much below 

 

2022



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

To augment the perceptions of affordable housing in Menlo Park, the cost of housing as reported in 
the survey was compared to residents’ reported monthly income to create a rough estimate of the 
proportion of residents of the City of Menlo Park experiencing housing cost stress. About 37% of 
survey participants were found to pay housing costs of more than 30% of their monthly household 
income. 

 
FIGURE 16: PROPORTION OF RESPONDENTS EXPERIENCING HOUSING COST STRESS BY YEAR 

34%

33%

37%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Housing costs 30% or
more of income

Percent of "respondents"

2012

2010

2008

 
 
 

FIGURE 17: HOUSING COSTS BENCHMARKS 
  Comparison to benchmark 

Experiencing housing costs stress (housing costs 30% or MORE of income) Similar 
 

2123



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

LL aa nn dd   UU ss ee   aa nn dd   ZZ oo nn ii nn gg   
Community development contributes to a feeling among residents and even visitors of the attention 
given to the speed of growth, the location of residences and businesses, the kind of housing that is 
appropriate for the community and the ease of access to commerce, green space and residences. 
Even the community’s overall appearance often is attributed to the planning and enforcement 
functions of the local jurisdiction. Residents will appreciate an attractive, well-planned community. 
The NCS questionnaire asked residents to evaluate the quality of new development, the appearance 
of the City of Menlo Park and the speed of population growth. Problems with the appearance of 
property were rated, and the quality of land use planning, zoning and code enforcement services 
were evaluated. 

The overall quality of new development in the City of Menlo Park was rated as “excellent” by 16% 
of respondents and as “good” by an additional 50%. The overall appearance of Menlo Park was 
rated as “excellent” or “good” by 84% of respondents and was much higher than the benchmark. 
When rating to what extent run down buildings, weed lots or junk vehicles were a problem in the 
City of Menlo Park, 8% thought they were a “major” problem.  

 
FIGURE 18: RATINGS OF THE COMMUNITY'S "BUILT ENVIRONMENT" BY YEAR 

81%

54%

79%

61%

84%

66%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Overall appearance of
Menlo Park

Overall quality of new
development in Menlo

Park

Percent "excellent" or "good"

2012

2010

2008

 
FIGURE 19: BUILT ENVIRONMENT BENCHMARKS 

  Comparison to benchmark 

Quality of new development in Menlo Park Above 

Overall appearance of Menlo Park Much above 
 
 

2224



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

FIGURE 20: RATINGS OF POPULATION GROWTH BY YEAR 

32%

25%

36%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Population growth seen as
too fast

Percent of respondents

2012

2010

2008

 
FIGURE 21: POPULATION GROWTH BENCHMARKS 

  Comparison to benchmark 

Population growth seen as too fast Similar 
 

 
 

FIGURE 22: RATINGS OF NUISANCE PROBLEMS BY YEAR 

8%

14%

8%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

To what degree, if at all,
are run down buildings,

weed lots or junk vehicles
a problem in Menlo Park?

Percent a "major" problem

2012

2010

2008

 
FIGURE 23: NUISANCE PROBLEMS BENCHMARKS 

  Comparison to benchmark 

Run down buildings, weed lots and junk vehicles seen as a "major" problem Less 
 
 

2325



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

 
FIGURE 24: RATINGS OF PLANNING AND COMMUNITY CODE ENFORCEMENT SERVICES BY YEAR 

52%

42%

49%

45%

57%

48%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Code enforcement
(weeds, abandoned

buildings, etc.)

Land use, planning and
zoning

Percent "excellent" or "good"

2012

2010

2008

 
FIGURE 25: PLANNING AND COMMUNITY CODE ENFORCEMENT SERVICES BENCHMARKS 

  Comparison to benchmark 

Land use, planning and zoning Similar 

Code enforcement (weeds, abandoned buildings, etc.) Above 
 
 

2426



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

EE CC OO NN OO MM II CC   SS UU SS TT AA II NN AA BB II LL II TT YY   
The United States has been in recession since late 2007 with an accelerated downturn occurring in 
the fourth quarter of 2008. Officially we emerged from recession in the third quarter of 2009, but 
high unemployment lingers, keeping a lid on a strong recovery. Many readers worry that the ill 
health of the economy will color how residents perceive their environment and the services that 
local government delivers. NRC researchers have found that the economic downturn has chastened 
Americans’ view of their own economic futures but has not colored their perspectives about 
community services or quality of life. 

Survey respondents were asked to rate a number of community features related to economic 
opportunity and growth. The most positively rated features were Menlo Park as a place to work and 
the overall quality of business and service establishments in Menlo Park. Receiving the lowest 
rating was employment opportunities. The ratings for employment opportunities remained stable 
over time and were much above the benchmark. 

FIGURE 26: RATINGS OF ECONOMIC SUSTAINABILITY AND OPPORTUNITIES BY YEAR 

65%

84%

49%

35%

63%

75%

47%

34%

59%

82%

47%

36%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Overall quality of
business and service

establishments in Menlo
Park

Menlo Park as a place to
work

Shopping opportunities

Employment opportunities

Percent "excellent" or "good"

2012
2010
2008

 
FIGURE 27: ECONOMIC SUSTAINABILITY AND OPPORTUNITIES BENCHMARKS 

  Comparison to benchmark 

Employment opportunities Much above 

Shopping opportunities Below 

Menlo Park as a place to work Much above 

Overall quality of business and service establishments in Menlo Park Similar 

2527



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

Residents were asked to evaluate the speed of jobs growth and retail growth on a scale from “much 
too slow” to “much too fast.” When asked about the rate of jobs growth in Menlo Park, 54% 
responded that it was “too slow,” while 53% reported retail growth as “too slow.” Many more 
residents in Menlo Park compared to other jurisdictions believed that retail growth was too slow 
and far fewer residents believed that jobs growth was too slow. The percent of respondents rating 
jobs growth as “too slow” decreased from 2010 to 2012. 

FIGURE 28: RATINGS OF RETAIL AND JOB GROWTH BY YEAR 

42%

63%

49%

77%

53%

54%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Retail growth seen as too
slow

Jobs growth seen as too
slow

Percent of respondents

2012

2010

2008

 
FIGURE 29: RETAIL AND JOB GROWTH BENCHMARKS 

  Comparison to benchmark 

Retail growth seen as too slow Much more 

Jobs growth seen as too slow Much less 
 

FIGURE 30: RATINGS OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SERVICES BY YEAR 

42%

37%

36%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Economic development

Percent "excellent" or "good"

2012

2010

2008

 
FIGURE 31: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SERVICES BENCHMARKS 

  Comparison to benchmark 

Economic development Similar 
 

2628



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

Residents were asked to reflect on their economic prospects in the near term. Twenty-two percent 
of the City of Menlo Park residents expected that the coming six months would have a “somewhat” 
or “very” positive impact on their family. The percent of residents with an optimistic outlook on 
their household income was higher than comparison jurisdictions. 

 
FIGURE 32: RATINGS OF PERSONAL ECONOMIC FUTURE BY YEAR 

8%

19%

22%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

What impact, if any, do
you think the economy

will have on your family
income in the next 6

months?

Percent "very" or "somewhat" positive

2012

2010

2008

 
 

FIGURE 33: PERSONAL ECONOMIC FUTURE BENCHMARKS 
  Comparison to benchmark 

Positive impact of economy on household income Above 
 
 

2729



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

PP UU BB LL II CC   SS AA FF EE TT YY   
Safety from violent or property crimes creates the cornerstone of an attractive community. No one 
wants to live in fear of crime, fire or natural hazards, and communities in which residents feel 
protected or unthreatened are communities that are more likely to show growth in population, 
commerce and property value. 

Residents were asked to rate their feelings of safety from violent crimes, property crimes, fire and 
environmental dangers and to evaluate the local agencies whose main charge is to provide 
protection from these dangers. Most gave positive ratings of safety in the City of Menlo Park. About 
88% of those completing the questionnaire said they felt “very” or “somewhat” safe from violent 
crimes and 82% felt “very” or “somewhat” safe from environmental hazards. Daytime sense of 
safety was better than nighttime safety. Safety ratings generally remained stable over time, however 
the ratings for safety from property crimes decreased from 2010 to 2012. 

FIGURE 34: RATINGS OF COMMUNITY AND PERSONAL PUBLIC SAFETY BY YEAR 

87%

73%

87%

85%

97%

83%

96%

85%

78%

92%

86%

98%

88%

82%

68%

88%

84%

96%

81%

97%

98%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Safety from environmental
hazards

Safety from property crimes
(e.g, burglary, theft)

Safety from violent crime
(e.g., rape, assault, robbery)

Safety in Menlo Park's
downtown area after dark

Safety in Menlo Park's
downtown area during the

day

Safety in your
neighborhood after dark

Safety in your
neighborhood during the

day

Percent "very" or "somewhat" positive

2012

2010

2008

 

2830



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

 
FIGURE 35: COMMUNITY AND PERSONAL PUBLIC SAFETY BENCHMARKS 

  Comparison to benchmark 

In your neighborhood during the day Much above 

In your neighborhood after dark Above 

In Menlo Park's downtown area during the day Much above 

In Menlo Park's downtown area after dark Much above 

Violent crime (e.g., rape, assault, robbery) Much above 

Property crimes (e.g., burglary, theft) Above 

Environmental hazards, including toxic waste Above 

 

2931



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

As assessed by the survey, 10% of respondents reported that someone in the household had been 
the victim of one or more crimes in the past year. Of those who had been the victim of a crime, 
85% had reported it to police. Compared to other jurisdictions a similar number of Menlo Park 
residents had been victims of crime in the 12 months preceding the survey and more Menlo Park 
residents had reported their most recent crime victimization to the police. 

FIGURE 36: CRIME VICTIMIZATION AND REPORTING BY YEAR 

66%

9%

74%

6%

85%

10%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

If yes, was this crime
(these crimes) reported to

the police?

During the past 12
months, were you or

anyone in your household
the victim of any crime?

Percent "yes"

2012
2010
2008

 
FIGURE 37: CRIME VICTIMIZATION AND REPORTING BENCHMARKS 

  Comparison to benchmark 

Victim of crime Similar 

Reported crimes More 

 

3032



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

Residents rated four City public safety services; of these, two were rated much above the 
benchmark comparison, two were rated similar to the benchmark comparison and none were rated 
below the benchmark comparison. Police services and crime prevention received the highest 
ratings, while traffic enforcement and emergency preparedness received the lowest ratings. All were 
rated similarly when compared to previous years. 

FIGURE 38: RATINGS OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES BY YEAR 

62%

67%

79%

86%

54%

66%

80%

88%

61%

69%

79%

87%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Emergency preparedness
(services that prepare the

community for natural
disasters or other

emergency services)

Traffic enforcement

Crime prevention

Police services

Percent "excellent" or "good"

2012

2010

2008

 
FIGURE 39: PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES BENCHMARKS 

  
Comparison to 

benchmark 

Police services Much above 

Crime prevention Much above 

Traffic enforcement Similar 

Emergency preparedness (services that prepare the community for natural 
disasters or other emergency situations) Similar 
 

3133



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

FIGURE 40: CONTACT WITH POLICE DEPARTMENT 
 

36%

43%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Had contact with the
police department

Percent "yes"

2012

2010

 
FIGURE 41: RATINGS OF CONTACT WITH POLICE DEPARTMENT 

79%

77%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Ratings of contact with
police department

Percent "excellent" or "good"

2012

2010

 
 

 
 

FIGURE 42: CONTACT WITH POLICE DEPARTMENT BENCHMARKS 

  
Comparison to 

benchmark 

Had contact with the City of Menlo Park Police Department Much more 

Overall impression of most recent contact with the City of Menlo Park Police 
Department Similar 
 

3234



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

EE NN VV II RR OO NN MM EE NN TT AA LL   SS UU SS TT AA II NN AA BB II LL II TT YY   
Residents value the aesthetic qualities of their hometowns and appreciate features such as overall 
cleanliness and landscaping. In addition, the appearance and smell or taste of the air and water do 
not go unnoticed. These days, increasing attention is paid to proper treatment of the environment. 
At the same time that they are attending to community appearance and cleanliness, cities, counties, 
states and the nation are going “Green”. These strengthening environmental concerns extend to 
trash haul, recycling, sewer services, the delivery of power and water and preservation of open 
spaces. Treatment of the environment affects air and water quality and, generally, how habitable 
and inviting a place appears. 

Residents of the City of Menlo Park were asked to evaluate their local environment and the services 
provided to ensure its quality. The overall quality of the natural environment was rated as 
“excellent” or “good” by 80% of survey respondents. The cleanliness of Menlo Park received the 
highest rating, and it was much above the benchmark. Ratings generally remained stable over time. 

FIGURE 43: RATINGS OF THE COMMUNITY'S NATURAL ENVIRONMENT BY YEAR 

57%

78%

88%

83%

52%

80%

85%

80%

55%

80%

88%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Air quality

Preservation of natural
areas such as open

space, farmlands and
greenbelts

Quality of overall
natural environment in

Menlo Park

Cleanliness of Menlo
Park

Percent "excellent" or "good"

2012

2010

2008

 

FIGURE 44: COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT BENCHMARKS 
  Comparison to benchmark 

Cleanliness of Menlo Park Much above 

Quality of overall natural environment in Menlo Park Much above 

Preservation of natural areas such as open space, farmlands and greenbelts Similar 

Air quality Much above 
 

 

3335



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

 

Resident recycling was much greater than recycling reported in comparison communities. The high 
rates of recycling remained stable over time. 

 
FIGURE 45: FREQUENCY OF RECYCLING IN LAST 12 MONTHS BY YEAR 

95%

98%

95%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Recycled used paper,
cans or bottles from

your home

Percent using at least once in last 12 months

2012
2010
2008

 
FIGURE 46: FREQUENCY OF RECYCLING BENCHMARKS 

  Comparison to benchmark 

Recycled used paper, cans or bottles from your home Much more 
 

 

3436



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

Of the six utility services rated by those completing the questionnaire, five were much higher than 
the benchmark comparison, one was similar and none were below the benchmark comparison. 
The rating for storm drainage increased over time. 

 

FIGURE 47: RATINGS OF UTILITY SERVICES BY YEAR 

85%

82%

82%

52%

90%

86%

84%

85%

64%

84%

84%

89%

90%

69%

86%

86%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Garbage collection

Recycling

Yard waste pick-up

Storm drainage

Drinking water

Sewer services

Percent "excellent" or "good"

2012
2010
2008

 

FIGURE 48: UTILITY SERVICES BENCHMARKS 
  Comparison to benchmark 

Sewer services Much above 

Drinking water Much above 

Storm drainage Much above 

Yard waste pick-up Much above 

Recycling Much above 

Garbage collection Similar 

3537



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

 

RR EE CC RR EE AA TT II OO NN   AA NN DD   WW EE LL LL NN EE SS SS   

PP aa rr kk ss   aa nn dd   RR ee cc rr ee aa tt ii oo nn   
Quality parks and recreation opportunities help to define a community as more than the grind of its 
business, traffic and hard work. Leisure activities vastly can improve the quality of life of residents, 
serving both to entertain and mobilize good health. The survey contained questions seeking 
residents’ perspectives about opportunities and services related to the community’s parks and 
recreation services. 

Recreation opportunities in the City of Menlo Park were rated positively as were services related to 
parks and recreation. City parks, recreation centers or facilities, and recreation programs or 
activities were all rated much above the benchmark. Parks and recreation ratings have mainly 
stayed constant over time.  

Resident use of Menlo Park parks and recreation facilities tells its own story about the attractiveness 
and accessibility of those services. The percent of residents that used Menlo Park recreation centers 
was greater than the percent of users in comparison jurisdictions. Recreation program use in Menlo 
Park was about the same as use in comparison jurisdictions.  

FIGURE 49: RATINGS OF COMMUNITY RECREATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES BY YEAR 

62%

72%

71%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Recreational
opportunities

Percent "excellent" or "good"

2012
2010
2008

 
FIGURE 50: COMMUNITY RECREATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES BENCHMARKS 

  Comparison to benchmark 

Recreation opportunities Above 
 
 

3638



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

FIGURE 51: PARTICIPATION IN PARKS AND RECREATION OPPORTUNITIES BY YEAR 

92%

40%

51%

93%

52%

60%

92%

47%

62%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Visited a neighborhood
park or City park

Participated in a
recreation program or

activity

Used Menlo Park
recreation centers

Percent using at least once in last 12 months

2012
2010
2008

 

FIGURE 52: PARTICIPATION IN PARKS AND RECREATION OPPORTUNITIES BENCHMARKS 
  Comparison to benchmark 

Used Menlo Park recreation centers More 

Participated in a recreation program or activity Similar 

Visited a neighborhood park or City park More 

 

FIGURE 53: RATINGS OF PARKS AND RECREATION SERVICES BY YEAR 

81%

86%

91%

84%

84%

89%

86%

83%

94%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Recreation centers or
facilities

Recreation programs
or classes

City parks

Percent "excellent" or "good"

2012
2010
2008

 

FIGURE 54: PARKS AND RECREATION SERVICES BENCHMARKS 
  Comparison to benchmark 

City parks  Much above 

Recreation programs or classes Much above 

Recreation centers or facilities Much above 

3739



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

CC uu ll tt uu rr ee ,,   AA rr tt ss   aa nn dd   EE dd uu cc aa tt ii oo nn   
A full service community does not address only the life and safety of its residents. Like individuals 
who simply go to the office and return home, a community that pays attention only to the life 
sustaining basics becomes insular, dreary and uninspiring. In the case of communities without 
thriving culture, arts and education opportunities, the magnet that attracts those who might 
consider relocating there is vastly weakened. Cultural, artistic, social and educational services 
elevate the opportunities for personal growth among residents. In the survey, residents were asked 
about the quality of opportunities to participate in cultural and educational activities. 

Opportunities to attend cultural activities were rated as “excellent” or “good” by 47% of 
respondents. Educational opportunities were rated as “excellent” or “good” by 72% of respondents. 
Compared to the benchmark data, educational opportunities were much above the average of 
comparison jurisdictions, while cultural activity opportunities were rated below the benchmark 
comparison. 

About 79% of Menlo Park residents used a City library at least once in the 12 months preceding the 
survey. This participation rate for library use was above that of comparison jurisdictions.  

FIGURE 55: RATINGS OF CULTURAL AND EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES BY YEAR 

66%

39%

77%

51%

72%

47%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Educational opportunities

Opportunities to attend cultural
activities

Percent "excellent" or "good"

2012
2010
2008

 
FIGURE 56: CULTURAL AND EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES BENCHMARKS 

  Comparison to benchmark 

Opportunities to attend cultural activities Below 

Educational opportunities Much above 
 
 

3840



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

FIGURE 57: PARTICIPATION IN CULTURAL AND EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES BY YEAR 

78%

40%

82%

39%

79%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Participated in religious or
spiritual activities in Menlo

Park

Used Menlo Park public
libraries or their services

Percent using at least once in the last 12 months

2012
2010
2008

 

FIGURE 58: PARTICIPATION IN CULTURAL AND EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES BENCHMARKS 
  Comparison to benchmark 

Used Menlo Park public libraries or their services Much more 

Participated in religious or spiritual activities in Menlo Park Much less 

 

FIGURE 59: PERCEPTION OF CULTURAL AND EDUCATIONAL SERVICES BY YEAR 

89%

94%

92%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Public library
services

Percent "excellent" or "good"

2012

2010

2008

 
 

FIGURE 60: CULTURAL AND EDUCATIONAL SERVICES BENCHMARKS 
  Comparison to benchmark 

Public library services Much above 
 

 
 

3941



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

HH ee aa ll tt hh   aa nn dd   WW ee ll ll nn ee ss ss   
Healthy residents have the wherewithal to contribute to the economy as volunteers or employees 
and they do not present a burden in cost and time to others. Although residents bear the primary 
responsibility for their good health, local government provides services that can foster that well 
being and that provide care when residents are ill.  

Residents of the City of Menlo Park were asked to rate the community’s health services as well as 
the availability of health care, high quality affordable food and preventive health care services. The 
availability of affordable quality food was rated most positively for the City of Menlo Park, while 
the availability for affordable quality health care was rated less favorably by residents.  

Among Menlo Park residents, 51% rated affordable quality health care as “excellent” or “good.” 
Those ratings were similar to ratings of comparison communities. 

FIGURE 61: RATINGS OF COMMUNITY HEALTH AND WELLNESS ACCESS AND OPPORTUNITIES BY YEAR 

64%

72%

61%

56%

64%

51%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Availability of preventive
health services

Availability of affordable
quality food

Availability of affordable
quality health care

Percent "excellent" or "good"

2012

2010

 
FIGURE 62: COMMUNITY HEALTH AND WELLNESS ACCESS AND OPPORTUNITIES BENCHMARKS 

  Comparison to benchmark 

Availability of affordable quality health care Similar 

Availability of affordable quality food Similar 

Availability of preventive health services Similar 
 
 

4042



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

CC OO MM MM UU NN II TT YY   II NN CC LL UU SS II VV EE NN EE SS SS   
Diverse communities that include among their residents a mix of races, ages, wealth, ideas and 
beliefs have the raw material for the most vibrant and creative society. However, the presence of 
these features alone does not ensure a high quality or desirable space. Surveyed residents were 
asked about the success of the mix: the sense of community, the openness of residents to people of 
diverse backgrounds and the attractiveness of the City of Menlo Park as a place to raise children or 
to retire. They were also questioned about the quality of services delivered to various population 
subgroups, including older adults, youth and residents with few resources. A community that 
succeeds in creating an inclusive environment for a variety of residents is a community that offers 
more to many. 

Almost all residents rated the City of Menlo Park as an “excellent” or “good” place to raise kids and 
a majority rated it as an excellent or good place to retire. Most residents felt that the local sense of 
community was “excellent” or “good.” A majority of survey respondents felt the City of Menlo Park 
was open and accepting towards people of diverse backgrounds. The availability of affordable 
quality child care was rated the lowest by residents and was lower than the benchmark. The rating 
for sense of community decreased from 2010 to 2012. 

FIGURE 63: RATINGS OF COMMUNITY QUALITY AND INCLUSIVENESS BY YEAR 

71%

95%

25%

69%

66%

70%

92%

34%

62%

73%

69%

94%

32%

62%

60%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Menlo Park as a place to
retire

Menlo Park as a place to
raise children

Availability of affordable
quality child care

Openness and acceptance
of the community toward

people of diverse
backgrounds

Sense of community

Percent "excellent" or "good"

2012
2010
2008

 

4143



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

FIGURE 64: COMMUNITY QUALITY AND INCLUSIVENESS BENCHMARKS 

  
Comparison to 

benchmark 

Sense of community Similar 

Openness and acceptance of the community toward people of diverse 
backgrounds Similar 

Availability of affordable quality child care Much below 

Menlo Park as a place to raise kids Much above 

Menlo Park as a place to retire Above 

 

4244



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

 

Services to more vulnerable populations (e.g., seniors, youth or low-income residents) ranged from 
41% to 75% with ratings of “excellent” or “good.” Services to seniors and services to youth were 
much above the benchmark comparison, while services to low-income people was below the 
benchmark.  

FIGURE 65: RATINGS OF QUALITY OF SERVICES PROVIDED FOR POPULATION SUBGROUPS BY YEAR 

40%

65%

71%

50%

74%

81%

41%

74%

75%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Services to low-income
people

Services to youth

Services to seniors

Percent "excellent" or "good"

2012

2010

2008

 

FIGURE 66: SERVICES PROVIDED FOR POPULATION SUBGROUPS BENCHMARKS 
  Comparison to benchmark 

Services to seniors Much above 

Services to youth Much above 

Services to low income people Below 

 

4345



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

CC II VV II CC   EE NN GG AA GG EE MM EE NN TT   
Community leaders cannot run a jurisdiction alone and a jurisdiction cannot run effectively if 
residents remain strangers with little to connect them. Elected officials and staff require the 
assistance of local residents whether that assistance comes in tacit approval or eager help; and 
commonality of purpose among the electorate facilitates policies and programs that appeal to most 
and causes discord among few. Furthermore, when neighbors help neighbors, the cost to the 
community to provide services to residents in need declines. When residents are civically engaged, 
they have taken the opportunity to participate in making the community more livable for all. The 
extent to which local government provides opportunities to become informed and engaged and the 
extent to which residents take those opportunities is an indicator of the connection between 
government and populace. By understanding your residents’ level of connection to, knowledge of 
and participation in local government, the City can find better opportunities to communicate and 
educate citizens about its mission, services, accomplishments and plans. Communities with strong 
civic engagement may be more likely to see the benefits of programs intended to improve the 
quality of life of all residents and therefore would be more likely to support those new policies or 
programs.  

CC ii vv ii cc   AA cc tt ii vv ii tt yy   
Respondents were asked about the perceived community volunteering opportunities and their 
participation as citizens of the City of Menlo Park. Survey participants rated the volunteer 
opportunities in the City of Menlo Park favorably. Opportunities to attend or participate in 
community matters were rated similarly. 

The rating for opportunities to participate in community matters was above the benchmark while 
the rating for opportunities to volunteer similar to the benchmark. These ratings remained stable 
over time. 

FIGURE 67: RATINGS OF CIVIC ENGAGEMENT OPPORTUNITIES 

70%

72%

75%

75%

72%

69%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Opportunities to
volunteer

Opportunities to
participate in community

matters

Percent "excellent" or "good"

2012
2010
2008

 

FIGURE 68: CIVIC ENGAGEMENT OPPORTUNITIES BENCHMARKS 
  Comparison to benchmark 

Opportunities to participate in community matters Above 

Opportunities to volunteer Similar 

4446



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

Most of the participants in this survey had not attended a public meeting, volunteered time to a 
group or participated in a club in the 12 months prior to the survey, but the vast majority had 
helped a friend. The participation rates of these civic behaviors were compared to the rates in other 
jurisdictions. Attending a meetings and providing help to a friend or neighbor showed similar rates 
of involvement; while watching a meeting, volunteering and participating in a club showed lower 
rates of community engagement. 

FIGURE 69: PARTICIPATION IN CIVIC ENGAGEMENT OPPORTUNITIES BY YEAR1  

92%

23%

38%

20%

27%

96%

27%

41%

24%

29%

94%

26%

38%

17%

25%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Provided help to a friend or neighbor

Participated in a club or civic group in Menlo Park

Volunteered your time to some group or activity in
Menlo Park

Watched a meeting of local elected officials or
other public meeting on cable television, the

Internet or other media

Attended a meeting of local elected officials or
other local public meeting

Percent participating at least once in the last 12 months

2012
2010
2008

 

FIGURE 70: PARTICIPATION IN CIVIC ENGAGEMENT OPPORTUNITIES BENCHMARKS 

  
Comparison to 

benchmark 

Attended a meeting of local elected officials or other local public meeting Similar 

Watched a meeting of local elected officials or other public meeting on cable 
television, the Internet or other media Much less 

Volunteered your time to some group or activity in Menlo Park Less 

Participated in a club or civic group in Menlo Park Less 

Provided help to a friend or neighbor Similar 
                                                      
1 Over the past few years, local governments have adopted communication strategies that embrace the Internet and new media. In 
2010, the question, “Watched a meeting of local elected officials or other local public meeting on cable television” was revised to 
include “the Internet or other media” to better reflect this trend. 

4547



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

City of Menlo Park residents showed the largest amount of civic engagement in the area of electoral 
participation. Ninety-two percent reported they were registered to vote and 89% indicated they had 
voted in the last general election. This rate of self-reported voting was much higher than 
comparison communities. 

 

FIGURE 71: REPORTED VOTING BEHAVIOR BY YEAR 

95%

91%

92%

94%

89%

92%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Voted in the last
general election

Registered to vote 

Percent "yes"

2012

2010

2008

Note: In addition to the removal of “don’t know” responses, those who said “ineligible to vote” also have been omitted 
from this calculation. The full frequencies appear in Appendix A.

 
 

 
FIGURE 72: VOTING BEHAVIOR BENCHMARKS 

  Comparison to benchmark 

Registered to vote Similar 

Voted in last general election Much more 
 

4648



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

II nn ff oo rr mm aa tt ii oo nn   aa nn dd   AA ww aa rr ee nn ee ss ss   
Those completing the survey were asked about their use and perceptions of various information 
sources and local government media services. When asked whether they had visited the City of 
Menlo Park Web site in the previous 12 months, 68% reported they had done so at least once. 
Public information services were rated favorably compared to benchmark data.  

FIGURE 73: USE OF INFORMATION SOURCES BY YEAR 

69%

72%

85%

68%

46%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Visited the City of Menlo
Park Web site (at

www.menlopark.org)

Read the Menlo Focus
Newsletter

Percent using at least once in last 12 months

2012

2010

2008

 

FIGURE 74: USE OF INFORMATION SOURCES BENCHMARKS 
  Comparison to benchmark 

Read Menlo Focus Newsletter Much less 

Visited the City of Menlo Park Web site Much more 

 

FIGURE 75: RATINGS OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT MEDIA SERVICES AND INFORMATION DISSEMINATION BY YEAR 

71%

72%

73%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Public information
services

Percent "excellent" or "good"

2012
2010
2008

 

FIGURE 76: LOCAL GOVERNMENT MEDIA SERVICES AND INFORMATION DISSEMINATION BENCHMARKS 
  Comparison to benchmark 

Public information services Above 
 

4749



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

SS oo cc ii aa ll   EE nn gg aa gg ee mm ee nn tt   
Opportunities to participate in social events and activities were rated as “excellent” or “good” by 
62% of respondents, while even more rated opportunities to participate in religious or spiritual 
events and activities as “excellent” or “good.”  

FIGURE 77: RATINGS OF SOCIAL ENGAGEMENT OPPORTUNITIES BY YEAR 

60%

82%

68%

79%

62%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Opportunities to
participate in religious or

spiritual events and
activities

Opportunities to
participate in social
events and activities

Percent "excellent" or "good"

2012

2010

2008

 
 

FIGURE 78: SOCIAL ENGAGEMENT OPPORTUNITIES BENCHMARKS 
  Comparison to benchmark 

Opportunities to participate in social events and activities Similar 

Opportunities to participate in religious or spiritual events and activities Similar 
 
 

4850



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

Residents in Menlo Park reported a strong amount of neighborliness. More than half indicated 
talking or visiting with their neighbors at least several times a week. This amount of contact with 
neighbors was more than the amount of contact reported in other communities. 

FIGURE 79: CONTACT WITH IMMEDIATE NEIGHBORS 

52%

52%

53%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

About how often, if at all,
do you talk to or visit
with your immediate

neighbors (people who
live in the 10 or 20
households that are

closest to you)?

Percent "at least several times a week"

2012

2010

2008

 

 
FIGURE 80: CONTACT WITH IMMEDIATE NEIGHBORS BENCHMARKS 

  Comparison to benchmark 

Has contact with neighbors at least several times per week More 
 

 

4951



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

PP UU BB LL II CC   TT RR UU SS TT   
When local government leaders are trusted, an environment of cooperation is more likely to 
surround all decisions they make. Cooperation leads to easier communication between leaders and 
residents and increases the likelihood that high value policies and programs will be implemented to 
improve the quality of life of the entire community. Trust can be measured in residents’ opinions 
about the overall direction the City of Menlo Park is taking, their perspectives about the service 
value their taxes purchase and the openness of government to citizen participation. In addition, 
resident opinion about services provided by the City of Menlo Park could be compared to their 
opinion about services provided by the state and federal governments. If residents find nothing to 
admire in the services delivered by any level of government, their opinions about the City of Menlo 
Park may be colored by their dislike of what all levels of government provide. 

A majority of respondents felt that the value of services for taxes paid was “excellent” or “good.” 
When asked to rate the job the City of Menlo Park does at welcoming citizen involvement, 54% 
rated it as “excellent” or “good.” Of these four ratings, two were above the benchmark, two were 
similar to the benchmark and none were below the benchmark. 

FIGURE 81: PUBLIC TRUST RATINGS BY YEAR 

92%

59%

59%

64%

90%

55%

53%

58%

88%

54%

54%

64%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Overall image or
reputation of Menlo Park

The job Menlo Park
government does at
welcoming citizen

involvement

The overall direction that
Menlo Park is taking

The value of services for
the taxes paid to Menlo

Park

Percent "excellent" or "good"

2012

2010

2008

 
 

5052



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

FIGURE 82: PUBLIC TRUST BENCHMARKS 
  Comparison to benchmark 

Value of services for the taxes paid to Menlo Park Much above 

The overall direction that Menlo Park is taking Similar 

Job Menlo Park government does at welcoming citizen involvement Similar 

Overall image or reputation of Menlo Park Much above 
 

5153



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

On average, residents of the City of Menlo Park gave the highest evaluations to their own local 
government and the lowest average rating to the State Government. The overall quality of services 
delivered by the City of Menlo Park was rated as “excellent” or “good” by 84% of survey 
participants. The City of Menlo Park’s rating was much above the benchmark when compared to 
other communities in the US. Ratings of overall City services have remained stable over time. 

FIGURE 83: RATINGS OF SERVICES PROVIDED BY LOCAL, STATE AND FEDERAL GOVERNMENTS BY YEAR 

49%

36%

31%

86%

48%

23%

35%

84%

56%

36%

48%

84%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Services provided by
San Mateo County

Government

Services provided by the
State Government

Services provided by the
Federal Government

Services provided by
City of Menlo Park

Percent "excellent" or "good"

2012
2010
2008

 
FIGURE 84: SERVICES PROVIDED BY LOCAL, STATE AND FEDERAL GOVERNMENTS BENCHMARKS 

  Comparison to benchmark 

Services provided by the City of Menlo Park Much above 

Services provided by the Federal Government Above 

Services provided by the State Government Below 

Services provided by San Mateo County Government Similar 
 

5254



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

CC ii tt yy   oo ff   MM ee nn ll oo   PP aa rr kk   EE mm pp ll oo yy ee ee ss   
The employees of the City of Menlo Park who interact with the public create the first impression 
that most residents have of the City of Menlo Park. Front line staff who provide information, assist 
with bill paying, collect trash, create service schedules, fight fires and crime and even give traffic 
tickets are the collective face of the City of Menlo Park. As such, it is important to know about 
residents’ experience talking with that “face.” When employees appear to be knowledgeable, 
responsive and courteous, residents are more likely to feel that any needs or problems may be 
solved through positive and productive interactions with the City of Menlo Park staff. 

Those completing the survey were asked if they had been in contact with a City employee either in-
person, over the phone or via email in the last 12 months; the 48% who reported that they had 
been in contact (a percent that is lower than the benchmark comparison) were then asked to 
indicate overall how satisfied they were with the employee in their most recent contact. City 
employees were rated highly; 83% of respondents rated their overall impression as “excellent” or 
“good.” Employees ratings tended to be higher than the benchmark and were similar to past survey 
years. 

FIGURE 85: PROPORTION OF RESPONDENTS WHO HAD CONTACT WITH CITY EMPLOYEES IN PREVIOUS 12 MONTHS  
BY YEAR 

56%

43%

48%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Had in-person, phone or
email contact with an

employee of the City of
Menlo Park within the last

12 months

Percent "yes"

2012

2010

2008

 
FIGURE 86: CONTACT WITH CITY EMPLOYEES BENCHMARKS 

  Comparison to benchmark 

Had contact with City employee(s) in last 12 months Less 
 

5355



City of Menlo Park | 2012 

The National Citizen Survey™ 

  Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
iti

ze
n 

Su
rv

ey
™

 b
y 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
C

en
te

r,
 In

c.
 

FIGURE 87: RATINGS OF CITY EMPLOYEES (AMONG THOSE WHO HAD CONTACT) BY YEAR 

78%

85%

80%

85%

78%

87%

80%

81%

83%

84%

77%

85%

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Overall impression

Courtesy

Responsiveness

Knowledge

Percent "excellent" or "good"

2012

2010

2008

 
 

FIGURE 88: RATINGS OF CITY EMPLOYEES (AMONG THOSE WHO HAD CONTACT) BENCHMARKS 
  Comparison to benchmark 

Knowledge Above 

Responsiveness Similar 

Courteousness Much above 

Overall impression  Above 
 

5456



 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR: Adopt a Resolution Accepting Dedication of a Public 

Access Easement at 900-910 Roble Avenue (Formerly 
821 University Drive); and Authorize the City Clerk to 
Sign the Parcel Map 

 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that City Council adopt a resolution accepting dedication of a Public 
Access Easement at 900-910 Roble Avenue (formerly 821 University Drive); and 
authorize the City Clerk to sign the parcel map. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On July 9, 2012, the Planning Commission approved the Use Permit for a two-unit 
condominium subdivision project at 821 University Drive, for which the address was 
recently changed to 900 and 910 Roble Avenue.    
 
ANALYSIS 
As a condition of the Use Permit, the applicant was required to provide for the 
installation of a new wheelchair ramp at the corner of Roble Avenue and University 
Drive.  This new wheelchair ramp requires the construction of sidewalk over a portion of 
the applicant’s property to allow pedestrians to walk around the corner behind the new 
wheelchair ramp.  Since this portion of the public sidewalk is located within the 
applicant’s private property, a Public Access Easement is required to allow the public to 
use the sidewalk. The easement will be dedicated to the public as part of the Parcel 
Map for the project, which is included as Attachment B.   
 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
The staff time costs associated with review and acceptance of the easement 
dedications, and the review and approval of the subdivision agreement is fully 
recoverable through fees collected from the applicant.  
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
There are no specific policy issues with this action. 
 

 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT  
 

Council Meeting Date: November 27, 2012 
                                                                              Staff Report #: 12- 177 
 

   Agenda Item #: D-1 

57



ENVIRONMENT REVIEW 
 
The project is categorically exempt under Class 3 (Section 15303, “New Construction or 
Conversion of Small Structures”) of the current California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) Guidelines. 
 
Signature on File_______________                    Signature on File_______________                    
Roger Storz   Fernando Bravo 
Senior Civil Engineer   Engineering Services Manager 
  
PUBLIC NOTICE: Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this 

agenda item being listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
 A. Resolution 
  
 B. Parcel Map showing easements 
  

58



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO 
PARK ACCEPTING DEDICATION OF A PUBLIC ACCESS EASEMENT 
AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY CLERK TO SIGN THE PARCEL MAP 
FOR 900-910 ROBLE AVENUE 

 
WHEREAS, the applicant proposed to subdivide one lot into two (2) residential 
condominium units; and  
 
WHEREAS; as a condition of approval, the applicant was required to dedicate a public 
easement in order to install public sidewalk improvements; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parcel Map for 900-910 Roble Avenue shows the dedication of a Public 
Access Easement at the corner of Roble Avenue and University Drive.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council hereby accepts the 
required Public Access Easement as shown on the Parcel Map attached hereto as 
Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council authorizes the City Clerk to sign the 
Parcel Map for said easement. 

 
I, Margaret S. Roberts, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and 
foregoing Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting 
by said Council on this twenty-seventh day of November, 2012, by the following votes: 
  
AYES:   
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of 
said City on this twenty-seventh day of November, 2012. 
 
 
 
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC  
City Clerk      

59



ATTACHMENT B

60



61



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

62



 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
 

                                 Council Meeting Date:  November 27, 2012                                                     
Staff Report #: 12-178 

 

Agenda Item # D-2 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  Authorize the Public Works Director to Accept the Work 

by Suarez and Munoz Construction, Inc., for the 2011-
2012 Citywide Sidewalk Repair Project and Seminary 
Oaks Park Pathway Replacement Project 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council authorize the Public Works Director to accept 
the work by Suarez and Munoz Construction, (SMC) Inc., for the 2011-2012 Citywide 
Sidewalk Repair Project and Seminary Oaks Park Pathway Replacement Project. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On July 31, 2012, the City Council awarded a contract for the Citywide Sidewalk Repair 
Project and Seminary Oaks Park Pathway Replacement Project to Suarez and Munoz 
Construction (SMC), Inc.  The project consisted of repairs to sidewalks, parking strips 
and valley gutters that had been damaged by City-tree roots at various locations 
throughout the City.  Concurrent with this project, a serpentine pathway and promenade 
was reconstructed at Seminary Oaks Park. 
 
Both projects are part of the annual Sidewalk Repair Program, which includes sidewalk 
repair and trip-hazard removal identified by staff and through residents’ request. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The project is now complete.  This project repaired 68 sidewalk locations and the 
reconstruction of a park pathway and installation of park furniture (8 benches, 4 
recycling receptacles and 4 trash receptacles).  A portion of the park pathway was also 
widened from 3.5 feet to 4.5 feet to meet minimum ADA requirements.  Of the 68 
locations, eight (8) sites increased in square-footage repair area from original engineer’s 
estimate.  The concrete work increased as a result of unexpected field conditions, such 
as large roots, failing concrete and resident complaints.  These additional repairs were 
paid from the contingency fund. 
 
After the project was awarded, an additional eight (8) sidewalk repair locations were 
identified that were added to the project.  Including two (2) locations on Woodland 
Avenue, three (3) locations on the Civic Center Campus, which required the installation 
of drainage pipes and landscaping removal, and one (1) location on each Terminal 
Avenue, Hamilton Avenue and Oak Grove Avenue. 
 
This brought the total number of sidewalk repair sites with this project to 76.  Suarez 
and Munoz Construction completed the additional construction work based on the 

63



contract price per square foot of concrete.  Staff used the contingency fund to finance 
the increased construction work.  All the work was deemed complete and in accordance 
with the plans and specifications on November 6, 2012. 
 
Staff wishes to acknowledge that Suarez and Munoz Construction rendered a 
professional finished product and services. 
 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
Construction Budget 
 
      Construction contract amount    $187,326.50 
      Contingency       $  57,000.00 
 Total construction budget   $244,326.50 
 
Construction Expenditures 
 
           Construction Costs Budget (only)   $244,326.50 

Construction expenditures        $239,416.62 
           Balance remaining      $    4,909.88 
 
Staff time was covered under the Citywide Sidewalk Repair Project and Seminary Oaks 
Park Pathway Replacement Project.   
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
There are no policy issues associated with this action. 
 
By authorizing the Public Works Director to accept the work by Suarez and Munoz 
Construction, Inc., a 35 day noticing period is initiated that publicly notifies all parties 
that the Project is complete and that all of the City held retention will be released at the 
conclusion of said period. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
The project was categorically exempt under Class I of the State of California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines. 
 
Signature on File_____________ Signature on File_______________ 
Michel Jeremias Fernando Bravo 
Senior Civil Engineer  Engineer Services Manager 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this 

agenda item being listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting.  
  
ATTACHMENTS:  
  
 None 

64



                                                                                      
 

CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Tuesday, November 13, 2012 at 7:00 p.m. 
Menlo Park Council Chambers 

701 Laurel Street, Menlo Park, CA 94025 

 
Mayor Keith called the Regular Session to order 7:02 p.m. with Council Member Cohen absent. 
 
Mayor Keith led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS: None 
 
A. PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS: None  
 
B. COMMISSION/COMMITTEE VACANCIES, APPOINTMENTS AND REPORTS  

 
B1. Environmental Quality Commission quarterly report on the status of their 2-year Work Plan 
Presentation by Commission Chair Mitch Slomiak 
 
C. PUBLIC COMMENT #1  
• Matt Henry spoke suggesting the placement of cameras in the Belle Haven neighborhood. 
• Steve Van Pelt spoke regarding Caltrain schedules. 
• Michelle Lindeman, Brocade, spoke regarding the upcoming Turkey Trot. 
• Kathleen King, Silicon Valley Turkey Trot Committee, spoke regarding the upcoming 

Turkey Trot. 
 
D. CONSENT CALENDAR  
ACTION: Motion and second (Cline/Ohtaki) to approve the Consent Calendar Items D1, D2, D4, 
D5 as presented passes 4-0-1 (Cohen absent). 
 
D1. Adopt Resolution No. 6107 accepting dedication of a public access easement and a 

public utility easement at 135-139 O’Connor Street; Authorize the City Clerk to sign the 
parcel map; and authorize the City Manager to sign the subdivision agreement (Staff 
report #12-165) 

 
D2. Adopt Resolution No. 6108 accepting dedication of a public access easement and 

authorize the City Manager to sign the Certificate of Acceptance for the 1706 El Camino 
Real Frontage Improvements Project (Staff report #12-166) 

 
D4. Approve an additional .25 full time equivalent to create one full-time Office Assistant for 

the Arrillaga Family Gymnasium and approve an increase of $7,000 to the Public Works 
Building Maintenance Fund for increased custodial services at the new Arrillaga 
Recreation Facilities (Staff report #12-167) 

 
D5. Accept the minutes of the June 5 and October 30, 2012 Council meetings (Attachment) 
 
D3. Authorize the City Manager to Execute a New Proposal to an Existing Agreement with 

Pacific Gas and Electric Company to Replace Existing Streetlights with LED Fixtures in an 

65

AGENDA ITEM D-3

http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_101/2012/11/08/file_attachments/174258/D1%2B-%2B135-139%2BO%2527Connor%2BStreet__174258.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_101/2012/11/08/file_attachments/174258/D1%2B-%2B135-139%2BO%2527Connor%2BStreet__174258.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_101/2012/11/08/file_attachments/174260/D2%2B-%2B1706%2BECR__174260.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_105/2012/11/08/file_attachments/174266/D4%2B-%2BOAII%2BFTE__174266.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_102/2012/11/08/file_attachments/174268/D5%2B-%2BMinutes__174268.pdf�


Amount Not to Exceed $47,129 for Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant Phase 
2 Funding; to Appropriate $49,629 from the General Fund CIP Fund Balance in FY 12-13; 
and to Execute Future Proposals with Pacific Gas and Electric Company to Replace 
Existing Streetlights with LED Fixtures for Future Energy Efficient and Conservation Block 
Grant Funding (Staff report #12-173) 

This item was pulled by Council Member Fergusson for questions. 
 
ACTION: Motion and second (Fergusson/Ohtaki) to authorize the City Manager to Execute a 
New Proposal to an Existing Agreement with Pacific Gas and Electric Company to Replace 
Existing Streetlights with LED Fixtures in an Amount Not to Exceed $47,129 for Energy 
Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant Phase 2 Funding; to Appropriate $49,629 from the 
General Fund CIP Fund Balance in FY 12-13; and to Execute Future Proposals with Pacific Gas 
and Electric Company to Replace Existing Streetlights with LED Fixtures for Future Energy 
Efficient and Conservation Block Grant Funding passes 4-0-1 (Cohen absent). 
 
E. PUBLIC HEARING 

 
E1. Adopt an interim ordinance of the City Council of the City of Menlo Park extending the 

temporary moratorium on the establishment of payday lenders and auto title lenders within 
the City of Menlo Park (Staff report #12-163) 

Staff presentation by Commander Dave Bertini 
 
The Public Hearing was opened at 7:26 p.m.  
 
There were no comments from members of the public. 
 
ACTION: Motion and second (Fergusson/Cline) to close the Public Hearing at 7:26 p.m. passes 
4-0-1 (Cohen absent). 
 
ACTION: Motion and second (Cline/Fergusson) adopted Interim Ordinance No. 987 extending 
the temporary moratorium on the establishment of payday lenders and auto title lenders within 
the City of Menlo Park passes 4-0-1 (Cohen absent). 
 
F. REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
F1. Approve a purchase and sale agreement with Greenheart Land Company for the sale of 

property owned by the former Redevelopment Agency located at 777-821 Hamilton 
Avenue and authorize the Executive Director of the Successor Agency to execute the 
agreement (Staff report #12-172) (Revised Legal Description) 

Note: The City Council will be acting as the Board of the Successor Agency of the Community 
Development Agency for Item F1 
 
It was noted that the legal description provided in the staff report was revised after the issuance 
of the agenda however the property being sold has not changed. 
 
Staff presentation by Dan Siegel, Acting City Attorney 
 
ACTION: Motion and second (Fergusson/Ohtaki) to approve a purchase and sale agreement 
with Greenheart Land Company for the sale of property owned by the former Redevelopment 
Agency located at 777-821 Hamilton Avenue and authorize the Executive Director of the 
Successor Agency to execute the agreement passes 4-0-1 (Cohen absent). 

66

http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_101/2012/11/08/file_attachments/174223/D3%2B-%2BPG%2526E%2BLED__174223.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_107/2012/11/08/file_attachments/174269/E1%2B-%2BPayday%2BLending__174269.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_105/2012/11/08/file_attachments/174226/F1%2B-%2BHamilton%2BAve__174226.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_283/2012/11/13/file_attachments/175100/Revised%2Blegal%2Bdescription%2Bonly__175100.pdf�


F2. Consider submitting a letter of interest to the San Mateo County Transportation Authority 
for Measure A eligible grade separation projects in Menlo Park (Staff report #12-174) 

Staff presentation by Chip Taylor, Public Works Director 
NOTE: Acting City Attorney Dan Siegel has a conflict of interest due to the location of the 
attorney’s office property and left the meeting at 7:44 p.m. 
 
Public Comments 
• Steve Van Pelt stated he is concerned with the plans for the Caltrain corridor and asked 

several questions.  
• Adina Levin spoke in favor of sending a letter to the San Mateo County Transportation 

Authority and suggested a community process to discuss grade separations. 
• Fran Dehn, Chamber of Commerce, stated that Menlo Park needs to be on the list for 

projects when the funds become available. 
 
ACTION: Motion and second (Cline/Ohtaki) to submit a letter of interest to the San Mateo 
County Transportation Authority for Measure A eligible grade separation projects in Menlo Park 
to focus on Ravenswood, keeping it at two tracks and a study of all four crossings passes 4-0-1 
(Cohen absent). 
 
F3. Appoint a Councilmember representative and alternate to the Caltrain Modernization Local 

Policymaker Group (Staff report #12-171) 
Staff presentation by Chip Taylor, Public Works Director 
 
ACTION:  By consensus Council Member Cline was appointed as the representative and 
Council Member Keith was appointed as the alternate to the Caltrain Modernization Local Policy 
Group. 
  
F4. Consider state and federal legislative items, including decisions to support or oppose any 

such legislation, and items listed under Written Communication or Information Item: None 
 
G. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT: None  
 
H. WRITTEN COMMUNICATION: None  
 
I. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
There were no presentations on the Informational Items. 
 
I1. Biannual update of schedules for Capital Improvement Projects (Staff report #12-169) 
 
I2. Quarterly financial review of General Fund operations as of September 30, 2012  
 (Staff report #12-168) 
 
I3. Review of the City’s investment portfolio as of September 30, 2012 (Staff report #12-170) 
 
I4. Quarterly update on Council goals and deliverables (Staff report #12-164) 
 
I5. Update on the Draft Housing Element submitted to the State Housing and Community 

Development Department (Staff report #12-175) 
  
J. COUNCILMEMBER REPORTS 
Council members reported in compliance with AB1234 requirements. 

67

http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_101/2012/11/08/file_attachments/174262/F2%2B-%2BGrade%2Bseparations__174262.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_101/2012/11/08/file_attachments/174263/F3%2B-%2BCaltrain__174263.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_101/2012/11/08/file_attachments/174225/I1%2B-%2BProject%2BPriorities__174225.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_104/2012/11/08/file_attachments/174265/I2%2B-%2BGF%2BReview__174265.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_104/2012/11/08/file_attachments/174264/I3%2B-%2BInvestment%2BPortfolio__174264.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_102/2012/11/08/file_attachments/174267/I4%2B-%2BGoals__174267.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_97/2012/11/08/file_attachments/174261/I5%2B-%2BHousing%2BElement__174261.pdf�


Request to add an agenda item to an upcoming meeting regarding the letters of support for the 
City Selection Committee appointments. 
 
K. PUBLIC COMMENT #2 
• Wynn Gereich, Fluoride Action Network, spoke regarding fluoride in the water being a 

toxin. 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
  
The meeting was adjourned at 9:27 p.m. 
 

 

Margaret S. Roberts, MMC 

City Clerk 

 

Minutes accepted at the Council meeting of  

 
 
 

68



  POLICE DEPARTMENT 
 

Council Meeting Date:  November 27, 2012 
 

                                                                            Staff Report #: 12-176  
                                                                                             Agenda Item #: E-1 

 
 
PUBLIC HEARING:  Adopt a Resolution accepting fiscal year 2012-2013 State 

Supplemental Local Law Enforcement Grant (COPS 
Frontline) in the amount of $100,000; Approve a spending 
plan and Re-allocate $43,272 from fiscal year 2011-2012 
encumbered Supplemental Law Enforcement Special Funds   

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution accepting fiscal year 2012-
2013 State Supplemental Local Law Enforcement Grant (SLESF) in the amount of 
$100,000; and to approve a spending plan and re-allocate $43,272 in encumbered 
2011-2012 SLESF funds.     
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In fiscal year 1996-1997, the California State Legislature created the Citizen’s Option for 
Public Safety (COPS) Program.  This is a non-competitive grant whereby cities and 
counties receive state funds to augment public safety expenditures.  Effective 
September 8, 2000, cities were guaranteed a minimum grant award of $100,000.  
 
The COPS funds must be used for frontline municipal police services and must 
supplement and not supplant existing funding.  The City Council is required to hold a 
public hearing, apart from its usual budget hearings, to consider the written request of 
the Chief of Police for use of the funds.  The public hearing has been noticed as 
required.  Community members may be present to provide alternative suggestions for 
the use of the grant.   
 
Each city must create a SLESF for the COPS grant money.  The funds cannot be used 
for administrative overhead costs in excess of 0.5 percent of the total allocation.  The 
allocation may not be used to fund the costs of any capital project or construction 
project that does not directly support frontline law enforcement.   
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The SLESF fund for the COPS Program currently includes encumbered but unspent 
2011-2012 funds of $43,272.  These funds were allocated to purchase and support a 
total of 42 hand held tablets (IPADs).  Staff has purchased a total of 16 IPADs and they 
have greatly enhanced communication, efficiency, and productivity of the command 

69



staff and management team.  However, after beta testing the devices with patrol 
officers, they proved to lack the interoperability required for field work.  The feasibility for 
IPADs in the field may improve with other future technological advances.  This, together 
with the 2012-2013 COPS Program award of $100,000, brings the total available 
balance to $143,272. Staff recommends that the funds be expended in the following 
areas as shown below.  
 
Communications and Technology ($123,000) 
 
The Police Department proposes to spend FY12-13 SLESF funds on:  
 

(1)  Supporting communications services and frame relays for mobile data terminals 
(MDTs) in the patrol cars ($22,000) *Frame relays are the high-performance 
WAN protocol that operates over private or leased lines such as T1 circuits that 
are typically provisioned from a local telecom provider* 

 
(2) Supporting cellular service for hand held tablets (IPADs) that were purchased         

with FY 2011-2012 COPS Program Award ($6,000) 
 
(3) Replacement Mobile Data Terminals (MDTs) and monitors in police vehicles 

and/or other supporting equipment including warranties for all units ($30,000)  
 
(4) Body Worn Video Cameras for all front line police officers along with a one year   

warranty and other support equipment required which includes a server for 
adequate storage of the videos ($65,000) 

 
Use of grant funds for communication services and frame relays to support MDTs allow 
for continued use of the existing MDT equipment.  MDTs are critical tools that allow 
important intelligence and officer safety information from law enforcement databases to 
be immediately connected and transferred to and from officers in the field. Officers are 
able to write reports in the field, retrieve maps and photos, and email the information 
immediately.  Each year obsolete monitors need to be replaced along with CPUs for 
older MDT units.  
 
Body worn video cameras will provide an accurate depiction of what occurred during a 
police contact and will assist officers with recall in writing police reports.  This 
technology will assist in criminal prosecution, will potentially reduce civil liability, and aid 
in reviewing alleged officer misconduct. 
 
Other front line police equipment and services ($20,272) 
 
Funds in the amount of $20,272 will be used to replace unexpected critical equipment 
failures. Among other items, this may include radios, batteries, radars, Lidars, and other 
front line law enforcement equipment or technology items and services.  
 
 

70



SLESF FY12-13 Expenditure Plan Summary 
 

• Communications services and frame relays for MDTs  $22,000 

• Supporting cellular service for hand held tablets (IPADs)                          $  6,000 

• Replacement parts for MDTs including monitors and CPUs   $30,000 

• Body Worn Video Cameras and required support technology $65,000 

• Other front line police equipment and services                                          $20,272 
                                                                                                TOTAL      $143,272 

The Police Department has strategically used grant funds to support technology 
initiatives, previously unbudgeted items, and new field equipment.  This year’s spending 
request continues to strengthen the Department’s ability to provide public safety 
services. The philosophy of securing alternative funding sources to finance new 
technologies and equipment has allowed the Police Department to maintain a 
progressive approach to policing, while simultaneously supporting the need for a cost-
conscious approach to the use of General Fund monies.   
 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
The fiscal year 2012-2013 grant funds must be spent or encumbered by June 30, 2014.   
There are no matching requirements for this grant, and no direct impact on City 
resources for fiscal year 2012-2013 associated with the action in this staff report.  
Purchases will be made in accordance with the City’s adopted policies.     
 
Certain equipment procured with fiscal year 2012-2013 grant funds have ongoing 
service costs.    These costs are for communications services, frame relays for MDTs, 
and the cellular services for hand held tablets (IPADs).  If the Police Department 
continues to receive the COPS grant annually, this equipment related service costs may 
continue to be funded by this program.  However, should grant money become 
unavailable, these service costs (approximately $29,000) will be included in the fiscal 
year 2013-2014 budget.                        
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
The proposed action is consistent with City policy.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
Environment review is not required.     
 
 
 
 
 
 

71



 
 Signature of File   Signature of File  
Lacey Burt Lee G. Violett                                                                              
Police Commander Interim Police Chief   
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Published legal notice on November 17, 2012 in The Daily News 
 
 
ATTACHMENT:    
 

A: Resolution  
          

72



RESOLUTION NO. 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK ACCEPTING THE 
STATE SUPPLEMENTAL LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT GRANT OF 
$100,000, APPROVING THE USE OF THE FUNDS IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH STATE REQUIREMENTS AND REALLOCATING $43,272 

 
WHEREAS, the California State Legislature created the Citizen’s Option for Public 
Safety (COPS) Program in fiscal year 1996-97; and 
 
WHEREAS, effective September 8, 2000, cities were guaranteed a minimum grant 
award of $100,000; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City must create a Supplemental Law Enforcement Special Fund 
(SLESF) for the grant funds; and 
 
WHEREAS, the funds cannot be used for administrative overhead exceeding 0.5 
percent or allocated to fund the costs of any capital project or construction project that 
does not directly support frontline law enforcement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the SLESF for the COPS Program currently includes encumbered, but 
unspent funds of $43,272 from fiscal year 2011-12. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Menlo Park 
does hereby accept the State Supplemental Local Law Enforcement Grant of $100,000; 
and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council approves reallocating fiscal year 
2011-12 encumbered State Supplemental Local Law Enforcement Grant funds in the 
amount of $43,272; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council approves the use of State 
Supplemental Local Law Enforcement Grant funds in accordance with state 
requirements, as outlined below. 
 

• Communications services and frame relays for MDTs  $22,000 

• Replacement parts for MDTs including monitors and CPUs $30,000 

• Body Worn Video Cameras and required support technology            $65,000 
 

• Other front line police equipment and services $26,272 
 $143,272 
 
I, Margaret S. Roberts, City Clerk of the City of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the 
above and foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a 
meeting by said Council on the twenty-seventh day of November, 2012, by the following 
votes: 
 
AYES:   

73



 
NOES:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of 
said City on this twenty-seventh day of November, 2012. 
 
 
                                            
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC 
City Clerk 

 

74



   
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
 

Council Meeting Date: November 27, 2012 
Staff Report #: 12-182 

 
Agenda Item #:E-2 

 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Consider a Request for a Rezoning, Conditional Development 

Permit, Heritage Tree Removal Permit, and Below Market 
Rate Housing Agreement for a Proposed Office, Research 
and Development (R&D), Manufacturing, and Warehousing 
Development on the Property Located at 1 and 20 Kelly Court 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council concur with the recommendation of the 
Planning Commission and approve the following actions related to the 20 Kelly Court 
Project, subject to the specific actions contained in Attachment A:  
 

1. Environmental Review: Adopt a finding that the redevelopment of the site is 
categorically exempt under Class 32 (Section 15332, "In-Fill Development 
Projects") of the current State CEQA Guidelines;   
 

2. Rezoning: Introduce an Ordinance rezoning the property from M-2 (General 
Industrial) to M-2(X) (General Industrial, Conditional Development) (Attachment 
B); 
 

3. Conditional Development Permit: Adopt a Resolution (Attachment C) 
approving the Conditional Development Permit for the construction of a 37,428-
square-foot office/R&D and manufacturing/assembly building subject to the 
requirements of the Conditional Development Permit (Attachment D); 

 
4. Heritage Tree Removal: Adopt a Resolution approving the heritage tree removal 

permit (Attachment E); and 
 

5. Below Market Rate (BMR) Housing Agreement: Approve the Below Market 
Rate Housing In-Lieu Fee Agreement, recommended by the Housing 
Commission on September 5, 2012, and recommended by the Planning 
Commission on November 5, 2012 (Attachment F).  

 
 
 
 

75



BACKGROUND 
 
C S Bio, Inc. was founded in 1993 in San Carlos and moved to Menlo Park in 2003. 
Upon relocation to Menlo Park, C S Bio Co. received Planning Commission approval of 
a use permit for the conversion of an industrial building to R&D and office, and for the 
storage and use of hazardous materials. Subsequently, the Planning Commission 
approved a use permit revision on April 5, 2010 to modify the storage location, and 
types and quantities of hazardous materials stored on-site. In 2007, the use of the 
Hetch Hetchy right-of-way was incorporated into a request for an administrative parking 
reduction, to apply the City’s use-based guidelines in conjunction with the conversion of 
warehouse space to R&D/lab space at 20 Kelly Court. 
 
The facility at 20 Kelly Court is the company’s corporate headquarters. C S Bio is a 
provider of automated instrumentation for peptide synthesis. The applicant states that 
the company has grown significantly and that the existing space is unable to meet the 
company’s current needs and its projected future growth. The applicant intends to 
increase its production capacity and improve the quality of its research and 
development (R&D) and good manufacturing practice (GMP) production spaces, as well 
as modernize C S Bio’s existing building at 20 Kelly Court. Prior to submittal of a formal 
application, the applicant requested a study session review of the project by the 
Planning Commission. On April 2, 2012, the Planning Commission conducted a study 
session to provide input and direction to staff and the applicant on an initial version of 
this proposal. The Planning Commission was generally supportive of the proposed 
project and provided guidance on a number of topics. 
 
Since the study session, the applicant refined the project and included the Planning 
Commission’s feedback. On November 5, 2012, the Planning Commission reviewed the 
revised project and unanimously recommended that the City Council approve the 
project with allowance for flexibility with regard to the exterior colors to deviate from the 
colors identified on the color and materials board, provided the modified colors are 
consistent with the color renderings.    
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The applicant is proposing to utilize the conditional development permit (CDP) to 
exceed the permitted height of the M-2 (General Industrial) zoning district, and to also 
establish the allowed signage, building setbacks, required parking, permit the outside 
storage of nonhazardous materials, and allow for the use and storage of hazardous 
materials at the site, including a diesel generator. In order to obtain a CDP, the property 
must be rezoned to the X (Conditional Development) district, which is a combining 
district that combines special regulations or conditions with one of the Zoning 
Ordinance’s established zoning districts. According to the Zoning Ordinance, a CDP 
“may be issued to allow adjustment of the requirements of the district in order to secure 
special benefits possible through comprehensive planning of such large development. 
Further, such adjustment is intended to allow relief from the monotony of standard 
development; to permit the application of new and desirable development techniques; 

76



and to encourage more usable open space than would otherwise be provided with 
standard development.” In order to apply for a CDP, the project site must be one acre in 
size. The draft resolution approving the CDP and the draft CDP itself are included in 
Attachments C and D, respectively. The draft rezoning ordinance is included in 
Attachment B. For proposals requesting a CDP and X rezoning, the Planning 
Commission acts in a recommending capacity to the City Council, which is the final 
decision making body.  
 
Site Location 
 
The project site is located at 1 and 20 Kelly Court. The two sites are adjacent properties 
located at the end of Kelly Court, which is a dead-end public street accessed from 
O’Brien Drive. As a part of the proposed project, the two existing parcels would be 
merged. The rear property line of both parcels abuts the Hetch Hetchy right-of-way, 
which is owned by the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC). Both 
properties are located within the FEMA flood zone. A location map is included as 
Attachment G. 
 
Proposed Project 
 
The applicant is proposing to demolish the 17,718 square foot building on the parcel 
addressed 1 Kelly Court and to demolish approximately 6,258 square feet from the 
existing building on the 20 Kelly Court parcel. The demolition at 20 Kelly Court would be 
limited to the metal tilt-up portion of the existing building, located at the rear of the 20 
Kelly Court building. The project would result in the merger of the two lots and 
construction of an addition of approximately 25,701 square feet to the remaining 
structure, which would result in a three story tall building, with a total gross floor area of 
37,428 square feet, a net increase of approximately 1,725 square feet. With the 
exception of the front setback, the proposed building additions would meet all setback 
requirements of the M-2 district. The proposed setbacks are discussed more in the Site 
Layout and Setbacks section of the report. The proposed site improvements would also 
include modifications to the parking lot. Parking is discussed in more detail in the 
Parking section of the report. 
 
At 32.8 percent building coverage, the proposed development would be well below the 
maximum permitted coverage of 50 percent. Finally, the structure is proposed to have a 
floor area ratio (FAR) of 55 percent, which is consistent with the maximum permissible 
FAR in the M-2 zone of 55 percent for general industrial uses, including but not limited 
to, warehousing, manufacturing, printing, assembling, related office and laboratory 
uses, and shipping and receiving. The M-2 zoning district restricts general office uses to 
45 percent FAR; however, the office uses contained in the proposed building would be 
related to the production and R&D nature of the proposed building.  
 
The site contains two existing buildings (addressed 1 & 20 Kelly Court), containing a 
total of 35,703 square feet. The following table represents the current land use 
breakdown at the site: 

77



 
Existing Land Use Breakdown (1 & 20 Kelly Court Buildings) 
Office 7,741 square feet 
R&D 6,224 square feet 
Manufacturing 11,095 square feet 
Warehousing 10,643 square feet 
Total 35,703 square feet 
 
The proposed development would result in a single three-story building. The proposed 
building would contain 37,428 square feet of gross floor area, which would contain the 
following land uses: 
 
Proposed Land Use Breakdown (20 Kelly Court) 
Office 18,365 square feet 
R&D 4,624 square feet 
Manufacturing 12,097 square feet 
Warehousing 2,342 square feet 
Total 37,428 square feet 
 
The additional floor area would allow the company to expand its production capacity at 
the site. The increase in manufacturing and R&D related activities at the site would 
result in an increase in the quantities of hazardous materials stored and used on-site. 
The applicant has submitted a Hazardous Materials Business Plan (HMBP), chemical 
inventory, and chemical location and safety plan for the increase in the use and storage 
of hazardous materials at the subject site. The proposed hazardous materials increase 
is discussed in more detail in the Hazardous Materials section of the staff report. The 
proposed project is designed to meet all applicable FEMA flood zone requirements. The 
applicant has provided a project description letter (Attachment I), which discusses the 
proposal in more detail.  
 
Site Layout and Setbacks 
 
The portion of the existing building located on the 20 Kelly Court parcel that would 
remain is currently located at the front of the property. The addition would be located to 
the right of the existing structure, which would concentrate the proposed building in the 
center of the merged lot. The proposed development would be designed in an “L” 
shape. The existing front, left corner of the building is set back 15 feet from the side 
property line. Since the left side property line contains two line segments at different 
angles, the back left corner of the existing building contains a 60-foot side setback, 
which would be increased to 86 feet, after the demolition of the rear portion of the 
existing building. The existing front setback is approximately six feet, and the proposed 
design would include a new front entry canopy, which would reduce the front setback to 
four inches. The reduced front setback would be limited to the proposed canopy, as the 
existing building wall would remain in the same location. The canopy would be an 
accent feature on the building, located at the end of a cul-de-sac, which would limit 

78



impacts of the reduced setback on the streetscape. In addition, the minimum setback 
would be four inches, but the curvilinear front lot line results in greater setbacks for the 
other portions of the building. The CDP can be used to define all development 
regulations on a parcel, with the exception of density and intensity (FAR). Therefore, the 
reduced setback can be approved as part of the proposed CDP. The proposed right 
side addition would contain a 56.5 foot setback, and the rear setback of the proposed 
building would be 38 feet, as measured to the Hetch Hetchy right-of-way.  
 
The property would contain two access points, at the left and right corners of the front 
property line. The main drive aisle would ring the building and parking would be 
provided along the ring road to the left, right, and rear of the proposed building. A 
service yard that would contain an emergency generator, an outdoor fire-rated chemical 
storage unit, and the outside storage of equipment and material would be located to the 
rear of the building. The applicant is also proposing to locate a new trash enclosure 
along the left side property line in the general location of the existing trash enclosure. 
The proposed trash enclosure location has been reviewed by Recology, and per City 
requirements would contain a roof.  
 
Design and Materials 
 
The proposed project is designed in a contemporary architectural style. The proposed 
three story addition would be predominately clad in painted cement plaster panels, and 
would also contain recessed stucco wall panels, which would be painted in 
complimentary colors and which would add articulation to the north and east building 
facades. Four main colors, or equivalent paint colors, would be utilized on the facades 
of the building: warm white or golden yellow for the painted cement plaster, and blue 
grey or terra cotta red for the accent metal and/or cement plaster panels. The proposed 
window system would contain clear glass. The proposed windows would have 
aluminum mullions. Consistent with the contemporary architectural style, the applicant is 
proposing to utilize horizontal and vertical aluminum accent mullions. The proposed 
front entry canopy would be metal clad and utilize clear anodized aluminum, consistent 
with the majority of the aluminum mullions on the building. In addition, the design 
incorporates metal sunshades along the north and east elevations. A color and 
materials board will be provided to the Council, which identifies the colors and materials 
in more detail.  
 
The proposed three-story addition would contain an entry lobby/elevator tower, with an 
office/conference room on the third level, at the southern corner of the proposed 
addition. The tower has a proposed height of approximately 44 feet and would be a key 
architectural element of the proposed project. The tower would contain full height 
windows. The tower is offset at a slight angle from the rest of the building, which adds 
articulation and helps define the significance of the stair tower and main entry. The 
existing concrete tilt-up building would be clad in painted metal and/or cement plaster 
panels, consistent with the proposed addition. A portion of the existing building would 
retain the cement plaster finish, but the finish would be painted in similar colors to the 
proposed addition. The applicant’s plan set contains building perspectives (Plan set 

79



sheets C2-C6), which identify the proposed color and materials. The proposed design 
also contains a stair tower at the rear elevation as well as a viewing deck above the 
third floor roof decks. The applicant is requesting an increase in height above the 35-
foot height limit, as part of the CDP, which is discussed in more detail in the building 
height section of the report. All roof mounted equipment would be fully screened from 
view, per the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance.   
 
The proposed building incorporates many environmentally friendly building materials. 
The applicant has submitted a LEED checklist (Attachment J) that identifies that the 
project will be designed to the LEED Gold standard. The applicant intends to certify the 
building; however, the certification is not required for the project.   
 
The proposed project would contain a large deck on the third floor, as well as a smaller 
deck on the second floor, adjacent to the break room, and a small viewing deck above 
the third floor, located along the east side of the building. The proposed decks are 
discussed in more detail in the Building Height section of the report.  
 
Trees and Landscaping 
 
The existing parcels contain minimal landscaping. The applicant has submitted an 
arborist report (Attachment K) that identifies the health of the 15 trees on site, including 
trees on the Hetch Hetchy right-of-way. The site contains numerous small trees 
between two and five inches in diameter. The 1 Kelly Court parcel contains no 
landscaped area, and landscaping on the 20 Kelly Court parcel is limited to small 
shrubs and a heritage size stone pine tree along the front façade of the building, and 
two trees along the left side façade of the building. The 20 Kelly Court parcel also 
contains a limited amount of shrubs along the left side property line. As part of the 
proposal, the applicant is proposing to remove the existing 31-inch diameter Italian 
stone pine, in fair condition. The City Arborist has tentatively approved this application. 
The applicant is proposing to replace the heritage tree removal with a 48-inch box 
Chinese pistache, and a 48-inch box madrone tree, both of which would be located 
along the front façade of the proposed building. A copy of the draft resolution for the 
removal of the heritage size Italian stone pine is contained in Attachment E. 
 
The applicant has submitted a preliminary landscape plan, which is included with the 
project plans. The applicant is proposing to provide landscaping along all facades of the 
building, and would utilize landscape elements to create a more defined main entryway, 
specifically with regard to the interaction between the main entry/tower and Kelly Court. 
The proposed project would also include a landscaped employee courtyard located 
along the back left façade of the building. Along the side property lines, shrubs and 
trees would be planted to help soften the edge of the project from the neighboring 
properties, where the site design provides room for larger landscaping features. 
 
 
 
 

80



Parking and Circulation 
 
In the M-2 zoning district, one parking space is required for every 300 square feet of 
gross floor area, which shall not be located in the front one-quarter of any required front 
yard. Per this requirement and based on the proposed gross floor area of 37,428 square 
feet, 125 parking spaces are required on-site.  
 
As part of the project, the applicant is requesting application of the use-based parking 
guidelines rather than the requirements prescribed in the Zoning Ordinance, which are 
particular to a specific district rather than the use. For warehouse and manufacturing 
uses, the use-based guidelines recommend a parking ratio of one space per 1,000 
square feet of gross floor area, and for office and R&D uses, one space per 300 square 
feet of gross floor area. Although the use-based guidelines recommend fewer spaces 
for the warehouse and manufacturing uses, the recommendation for office and R&D 
uses is consistent with the Zoning Ordinance requirements. Applying the use-based 
ratios to the subject property’s proposed use breakdown, the Zoning Ordinance 
requirement for 125 parking spaces would be reduced to 92 parking spaces. The 
applicant is proposing 92 parking spaces; however, in order to meet the recommended 
92 parking spaces, the applicant is proposing to locate 56 spaces in a tandem 
formation. Tandem parking is not permitted under standard zoning, but can be allowed 
through the CDP. In addition, the tandem parking arrangement allows for the applicant 
to limit the amount of improvements to the Hetch Hetchy parcel and reduce the amount 
of paving on-site, allowing for more open space to be located on the Hetch Hetchy 
parcel. The tandem parking would contain two rows of 28 spaces. A portion of the 
required parking spaces would be located on the Hetch Hetchy right-of-way. The project 
plans indicate that the Hetch Hetchy right-of-way would also be utilized for additional 
landscape reserve spaces, which would allow for up to 121 parking spaces, if the 
additional parking is determined to be necessary in the future due to operational 
changes or changes in the tenancy of the building.  
 
The Hetch Hetchy right-of-way is owned by the SFPUC and the applicant would like to 
limit the amount of improvements on the SFPUC parcel. The applicant states that the 
proposed facility is anticipated to contain 65 employees, and therefore it is unlikely that 
the tandem spaces will typically be necessary. However, if the tandem spaces are 
utilized, the applicant states that a parking program would be managed internally to 
ensure that employees do not park off-site. The applicant’s project description letter 
(Attachment I) provides more information on the proposed parking lot layout and design. 
The proposed parking lot is designed to allow for the conversion of the tandem parking 
spaces to fully accessible spaces by adding a drive aisle on the SFPUC parcel, and 
reconfiguring the parking if necessary, including the use of the additional landscape 
reserve. The conversion of the tandem spaces or landscape reserve is permitted 
through the CDP, and can be requested by staff or the applicant.  
 
Staff believes the application of the use-based parking guidelines is appropriate for the 
proposed project given the use of the building as a mixed use office/R&D and 
manufacturing building, and that a single tenant would occupy the building, which would 

81



allow for the proposed tandem parking spaces to be monitored to ensure that the 
proposed parking arrangement is operating appropriately. Staff has added language in 
the draft CDP (Attachment D), which would require the applicant to remove the tandem 
parking scenario and convert the landscape reserve parking, if staff is made aware of 
on-site parking issues or employees parking in the neighborhood. Staff has also added 
language in the CDP requiring the conversion of the landscape reserve parking, if the 
building is no longer occupied by a single tenant in the future, due to the conflicts that 
could arise between a multi-tenant situation and the proposed tandem parking.  In 
addition, if at some time in the future the applicant loses the lease for the surface rights 
for the Hetch Hetchy right-of-way (ROW), the applicant is required to lease an 
equivalent number of parking spaces off-site for the benefit of its employees, revise the 
land use breakdown and/or reduce the floor area of the building such that the number of 
on-site parking spaces complies with the City’s use-based parking guidelines, or a 
combination thereof. 
 
Building Height 
 
The increase in height greater than 35 feet is permissible through the application of a 
CDP. The elements that would exceed the 35 foot height limit are a relatively small 
portion of the overall building. The third floor roof deck of the proposed building would 
be 30 feet above grade, and the surrounding parapet wall would be 33.5 feet above 
grade, which is below the maximum permitted height of the M-2 zoning district. The 
main entry lobby and stair tower would extend to 44 feet above grade, and the rear stair 
tower would extend to 47 feet above grade. As an employee amenity and architectural 
feature, the applicant is proposing to construct a small viewing deck, above the third 
floor deck. The proposed viewing deck would be located 42 feet above grade and the 
metal railing would extend to 45 feet, six inches above grade. The proposed building is 
located in an industrial district, surrounded by other industrial buildings. The building is 
set back from the property lines and not adjacent to any residential uses that might be 
impacted by the increase in height.  Specifically the viewing deck, which would be the 
highest occupied area, would be located 86 feet from the right side property line, which 
is occupied by a manufacturing use. The increase in height provides visual interest to 
the structure and is in keeping with the contemporary design of the development. The 
viewing deck would also provide an amenity to the employees at the site.  
 
Outside Storage 
 
The proposed building is designed with a loading dock along the rear façade of the 
building. The loading dock is located between the proposed three story addition, and the 
landscaped patio area, located at the back left side corner of the building. The applicant 
is proposing to locate an emergency generator within this area (discussed more in the 
hazardous materials section of the report), as well as an outdoor fire-rated storage unit 
for hazardous materials. The applicant is also requesting that the CDP allow for the 
storage of nonhazardous materials and equipment within this area. The loading dock 
area is screened from view on the front and right sides by the proposed building, and 
would be screened from the left and rear sides by a proposed 12-foot tall welded wire 

82



trellis system with vines (green screen). All outside storage would be completely 
screened from the public right-of-way and surrounding properties. Additionally, the 
outside storage of materials and equipment would not exceed the noise ordinance 
limits, and would not displace required parking on-site.  
 
Signage 
 
The applicant originally requested approval of a master sign program to provide an 
approximately 27 square foot entry sign, which would be located on top of the proposed 
canopy along the front façade. The sign would consist of individual letters measuring 
three feet, five inches in height. (Since the letters are individual and contain significant 
spacing, the 27 square feet was initially calculated using the square footage of each 
individual letter, rather than overall dimensions of the entry signage.) The proposed 
letter height would exceed the City’s Design Guidelines for Signs by approximately two 
feet, but can be approved by the City Council and regulated through the CDP. The 
individual letters would be front lit, and would be set forward of the building façade, 
along the front canopy. The letters would be four inches in depth and would contain a 
metal finish. The proposed sign would help identify the site as C S Bio’s corporate 
headquarters. While the letter size exceeds the Design Guidelines, staff believes the 
increase in height for the letters is appropriate, as it is consistent with the increase in 
height of the building and is located at the end of a cul-de-sac street, where site visibility 
is limited.  
 
The Planning Commission recommended that the applicant consider alternative font 
styles for the proposed sign, and subsequently the applicant requested additional sign 
area after the Planning Commission meeting. The applicant requested the increase to 
allow for flexibility, as the individual letters of different font styles may be slightly 
different in width than the current proposal, which could potentially increase the overall 
square footage of the entry sign.  
 
Instead of increasing the sign area, staff believes it would be better to change how the 
sign area is calculated to allow flexibility with regard to the font style, and to account for 
future company name changes. Staff originally calculated the sign area for the entry 
signage using the individual letters, but staff believes is would be more beneficial to 
calculate the sign area using the overall dimensions (height and length) of the entry 
sign. Therefore, staff is proposing that the CDP be modified to allow for a 130 square 
foot entry sign, which would generally correspond with the 37 feet, one inch by three 
feet, five inch dimensions of the currently proposed sign. The entry sign would still be 
required to contain individual letters, of approximately the same height and design as 
the C S Bio sign. In addition to the main entry sign, staff believes it would be appropriate 
to allow for an additional monument sign, if desired by the applicant in the future. 
Therefore, staff has revised the CDP to allow for an approximately 130 square foot entry 
sign and an additional 20 square foot monument sign, for a total permitted sign area of 
150 square feet, as compared to a maximum of 100 feet. 
 
 

83



Hazardous Materials 
 
As part of the expansion, the applicant is requesting to increase the quantities of 
hazardous materials used and stored at the site. The applicant provided an additional 
project description letter that is specific to the use and storage of hazardous materials, 
which explains the proposal in more detail (Attachment L). Proposed hazardous 
materials include combustible liquids, flammable liquids, corrosives, carcinogenic 
liquids, toxics, inert gases, flammable gases, highly toxic gases, and cryogenic fluids. 
The proposed chemical inventory is comparable to the previously approved inventory 
with regard to hazard classes, with the exception of oxidizing gases, flammable gases, 
highly toxic gases, and corrosives, which have been added to the proposed inventory as 
part of this expansion. A complete list of the types of chemicals is included in 
Attachment M. The applicant has prepared a comparison table identifying the 2010 use 
permit chemical quantities and types, and identifies the proposed modifications. The 
chemical inventory comparison is included in Attachment N. The project plans, included 
as Attachment H, provide the locations of chemical use and storage. All hazardous 
materials would be stored and used inside the building, with the exception of the diesel 
emergency generator and an exterior fire rated enclosure.  Only trained personnel 
would handle the hazardous materials.  
 
The applicant is proposing to locate an emergency generator within the equipment 
yard/loading dock, located at the rear of the building. The emergency generator would 
contain 660 gallons of diesel fuel and would be tested on a weekly basis for 15 minutes. 
The applicant intends to test the generator in the afternoon to avoid testing the 
generator during school hours. The proposed generator would be enclosed in a sound 
attenuated enclosure to reduce the noise impacts to neighboring businesses. The 
generator is rated at 73.9 dBA at 21 feet.  
 
The Hazardous Materials Business Plan (HMBP), included as Attachment O, provides 
the types and quantities of chemicals that would be used and stored, and includes an 
emergency response plan, an employee-training plan, and a record keeping plan.  
While the applicant provided a specific chemical inventory and HMBP at this time, in 
order to allow for flexibility with potential future modifications in the types and quantities 
of hazardous materials, the draft CDP (Attachment D) provides for future modifications 
to be made without requiring the applicant to obtain a revision to the CDP or a use 
permit from the Planning Commission. The CDP proposes to limit the types and 
quantities of hazardous materials within the building through the maximum allowable 
quantities based on the thresholds set by the California Fire Code. For reference, the 
Planning Commission reviewed and approved a similar blanket use permit for the use 
and storage of hazardous materials at 1455 Adams Drive (Menlo Labs) that utilized the 
maximum allowable quantities of the Fire Code to regulate the allowable quantities.  
 
The Fire District currently performs an annual inspection of the facility and provides the 
tenant with an inspection report for the building to ensure that the building and its 
occupants are in compliance with all applicable Fire Codes. The Fire District would 
continue to inspect the facility annually as part of this approval. If the building tenant 

84



modifies its’ chemical inventory in the future, the tenant would be required to submit a 
chemical inventory to the Fire District for all chemicals above the Fire Code permit 
thresholds. Simultaneously, the tenant would submit an updated HMBP to the County, 
for all chemicals above the reportable thresholds of the California Health and Safety 
Code. 
 
The Menlo Park Fire Protection District, City of Menlo Park Building Division, West Bay 
Sanitary District, and San Mateo County Environmental Health Services Division were 
contacted regarding the proposed use and storage of hazardous materials on the 
project site. Their correspondence has been included as Attachment P. Each entity 
found the proposal to be in compliance with all applicable standards and has approved 
the proposal. Although the subject parcel is located nearby residences, and schools, 
there would be no unique requirements for the proposed use, based on the specific 
types and amounts of chemicals that are proposed. 
 
Below Market Rate (BMR) Housing Agreement 
 
Per the Zoning Ordinance, commercial projects inclusive of 10,000 square feet or more 
are subject to the BMR requirements. Since the proposed structure is inclusive of 
37,428 square feet of floor area, the project is subject to BMR requirements. The 
proposed project would increase the existing gross floor area at the site by 1,725 
square feet, and would modify the amount of office/R&D uses at the site. On September 
5, 2012, the Housing Commission reviewed the proposed Below Market Rate (BMR) 
Agreement associated with the project. The staff report from the meeting and the draft 
minutes are included as Attachments Q and R, respectively.   
 
The applicant proposes to pay a commercial linkage fee per the BMR requirements 
since residential development is not permitted at the site and the applicant does not 
own any sites in the city that are available and feasible for construction of BMR units to 
satisfy the requirement. The current in-lieu rate for office/R&D (Group A) uses is $14.71 
per square foot and $7.98 per square foot for manufacturing and warehouse (Group B) 
uses.  The rate is adjusted annually on July 1 and the applicable fee for the Project will 
be based upon the amount of square footage within Group A and Group B, as well as 
the rate that is in effect at time of payment. The in-lieu fee is required to be paid prior to 
building permit issuance. The estimated BMR in-lieu fee for the proposed project is 
$74,497.02, based upon credit for the existing 35,703 square feet of warehouse, office, 
R&D, and manufacturing uses, and the proposed 37,428 square feet of proposed 
office/R&D and manufacturing/assembly uses. The draft BMR agreement is included as 
Attachment F. The Housing Commission indicated that they were supportive of the 
redevelopment of the site and recommended approval of the proposed BMR 
Agreement, 5-0, with Commissioner Clarke absent. The Planning Commission 
subsequently voted 7-0 to recommend approval of the BMR Agreement to the Council.  
 
 
 
 

85



ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
The City Public Works Department prepared a trip generation analysis for the proposed 
project. This analysis concluded that the proposed project would result in a net increase 
of 13 trips in the AM peak hour, and a net increase of 12 trips in the PM peak hour.  The 
proposed project is also anticipated to generate 108 additional trips during the day than 
the existing use. Given that the net amount of trips generated in the AM peak hour 
would only increase by 13 trips and these would be spread throughout the roadway 
network in different directions, the traffic impacts associated with these trips is 
anticipated to be less than significant at nearby intersections. As such, the proposed 
project is categorically exempt under Class 32 (Section 15332, "In-Fill Development 
Projects") of the current California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines. The 
trip generation analysis is available for public review at the Department of Community 
Development. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
Staff has not received any correspondence on this item.  

IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
The project sponsor is required to pay planning permit fees, based on the City’s Master 
Fee Schedule, to fully cover the cost of staff time spent on the review of the project. 
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
CDPs allow adjustment of the requirements of the underlying zoning district in order to 
secure special benefits possible through comprehensive planning of large 
developments and to provide relief from the monotony of standard development, to 
permit the application of new and desirable development techniques, and to encourage 
more usable open space than would otherwise be provided with standard development.  
The proposed project would be consistent with the purposes of a CDP.  The rezoning of 
the project site from M-2 to M-2(X) is consistent with the General Plan. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
The proposed project complies with all applicable City requirements and would result in 
redevelopment of a site with an office/R&D and manufacturing/assembly building, which 
would allow an existing business to remain in Menlo Park, while expanding its 
operations and updating its corporate headquarters. The proposed building would be 
designed in a contemporary style, and would revitalize an existing site. While the 
general area contains warehousing and manufacturing buildings, designed as low-rise 
concrete tilt-ups, recent façade improvements and building approvals have been 
designed in a more contemporary style. The project would provide sidewalks along the 
full property frontage on Kelly Court. The project would redevelop an existing parcel with 

86



a modern building more suitable to a company’s corporate headquarters, while 
providing the necessary facilities for R&D and manufacturing. In addition, the use and 
storage of hazardous materials has been reviewed by the relevant agencies and 
conditions of approval would continue to require the tenant to seek ongoing approvals 
from the Fire District and the San Mateo County Department of Environmental Health. 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the project per the recommended 
actions listed in Attachment A.  
 
  Signature on File     Signature on File   
Kyle Perata Arlinda Heineck 
Assistant Planner  Community Development Director 
 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE:  Public notification consisted of publishing a notice in the local 

newspaper and notification by mail of owners and occupants within 
1,250 feet of the property.  

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Recommended Actions for City Council 
B. Draft Rezoning Ordinance 
C. Draft Resolution for CDP 
D. Draft Conditional Development Permit 
E. Draft Resolution for Heritage Tree Removal 
F. Draft Below Market Rate (BMR) Housing Agreement 
G. Location Map 
H. Project Plans  
I. Project Description Letter 
J. Draft LEED Checklist 
K. Arborist Report, prepared by Arbor Resources, dated May 18, 2012 
L. Hazardous Materials Project Description Letter 
M. Chemical Inventory 
N. Chemical Inventory Comparison Matrix 
O. Hazardous Materials Business Plan 
P. Hazardous Materials Agency Referral Forms 

• Menlo Park Fire Protection District 
• San Mateo County Environmental Health Department  
• West Bay Sanitary District 
• Menlo Park Building Division 

Q. Housing Commission Staff Report (without plans) from the Meeting of 
September 5, 2012 

R. Minutes of the Housing Commission Meeting of September 5, 2012 
  

87



Note: Attached are reduced versions of maps and diagrams submitted by the 
applicants. The accuracy of the information in these drawings is the responsibility of the 
applicants, and verification of the accuracy by City Staff is not always possible. The 
original full-scale maps, drawings and exhibits are available for public viewing at the 
Community Development Department. 
 
EXHIBITS TO BE PROVIDED AT MEETING 
 
Color and Materials Board 
 
DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR REVIEW AT CITY OFFICES AND WEBSITE  
 
• Planning Commission Staff Report for the meeting of November 5, 2012 
• Planning Commission Staff Report for the meeting of April 2, 2012 
 
 
  

88



DRAFT 
 

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDED ACTIONS FOR APPROVAL 
 

20 Kelly Court Project 
 
 
The Planning Commission recommends that the City Council take the following actions: 
 
Environmental Review 
 
1. Adopt a finding that the redevelopment of the site is categorically exempt under 

Class 32 (Section 15332, "In-Fill Development Projects") of the current State CEQA 
Guidelines. 

 
Rezoning 
 
2. Introduce an Ordinance rezoning the property from M-2 (General Industrial) to M-

2(X) (General Industrial, Conditional Development) (Attachment B). 
 
Conditional Development Permit 
 
3. Adopt a Resolution (Attachment C) approving the Conditional Development Permit 

for the construction of a 37,428-square-foot office/R&D and manufacturing/assembly 
building subject to the requirements of the Conditional Development Permit 
(Attachment D). 

 
Heritage Tree Removal Permit 
 
4. Adopt a Resolution approving the heritage tree removal permit (Attachment E). 
 
Below Market Rate Housing Agreement 
 
5. Approve the Below Market Rate Housing In-Lieu Fee Agreement, recommended by 

the Housing Commission on September 5, 2012, and recommended by the Planning 
Commission on November 5, 2012. (Attachment F).  

 
 
 
 
 
 

89



APN:
055433240

APN:
055433130

O'BRIEN DR

KE
LL

Y C
T

CA
SE

Y C
T1  CASEY CT

10  KELLY CT

1055  OBRIEN DR

1  KELLY CT

20  KELLY CT

1075  OBRIEN DR

1001  OBRIEN DR

1020  OBRIEN DR

1320  WILLOW RD

1030  OBRIEN DR
1060  OBRIEN DR

1215  OBRIEN DR

1100  OBRIEN DR

¯ 0 110 22055
FeetCITY OF MENLO PARK

1 - 20 Kelly Court - Rezoning Exhibit A

REZONING:
M-2 (General Industrial) to M-2(X)
(General Industrial, Conditional 
Development)

90



DRAFT – November 27, 2012 
 

RESOLUTION NO.       
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO 
PARK, CALIFORNIA APPROVING A CONDITIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
PERMIT FOR THE PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 1 AND 20 KELLY 
COURT 

 
WHEREAS, the Zoning Ordinance establishes that a Conditional Development Permit 
(“CDP”) may be issued to allow adjustment of requirements in order to secure special 
benefits possible through comprehensive planning of large development, and that such 
adjustment is intended to allow relief from the monotony of standard development; to 
permit the application of new and desirable development techniques; and to encourage 
more usable open space than would otherwise be provided with standard development; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has received an application from C S Bio (“Applicant”), to approve 
a CDP for the construction of an office, R&D, and manufacturing building and conduct 
associated project actions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed development will not be detrimental to the health, safety, 
morals, comfort and general welfare of the persons residing or working in the 
neighborhood of such proposed development, and will not be detrimental to property 
and improvements in the neighborhood or the general welfare of the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, all required public notices and public hearings were duly given and held 
according to law; and 
 
WHEREAS, after notice having been lawfully given, a public hearing was scheduled and 
held before the Planning Commission of the City of Menlo Park on November 5, 2012 
whereat all persons interested therein might appear and be heard; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Menlo Park having fully reviewed, 
considered and evaluated all the testimony and evidence submitted in this matter voted 
affirmatively to recommend to the City Council of the City of Menlo Park to approve the 
CDP; and 
 
WHEREAS, after notice having been lawfully given, a public hearing was scheduled and 
held before the City Council of the City of Menlo Park on November 27, 2012 whereat 
all persons interested therein might appear and be heard. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Menlo Park 
hereby approves the Conditional Development Permit for the Property attached hereto 
as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference.   
 

91



I, Margaret S. Roberts, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and 
foregoing Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting 
by said Council on the twenty-seventh day of November, 2012, by the following votes:  
  
AYES:    
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:   
 
ABSTAIN:   
 
 
 
  
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC  
City Clerk 
 

92



DRAFT – November 27, 2012 
 

CONDITIONAL DEVELOPMENT PERMIT 
 

1 and 20 Kelly Court (“20 Kelly Court”) 
 

1. GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 

1.1 Applicant: Jason Chang for C S Bio, Inc. 
 
1.2 Property Owner: Chang Heng Wei Trust 
 
1.3 Nature of Project: Conditional Development Permit for the demolition of the 

existing building located at 1 Kelly Court and partial demolition of the building 
located at 20 Kelly Court. The project site currently includes two legal parcels, 
which would be merged as part of the proposed project. The project site 
contains two buildings with a total gross floor area of approximately 35,703 
square feet. The project would result in the demolition of approximately 23,976 
square feet of gross floor area, and the construction of 25,701 square feet of 
gross floor area, for a total gross floor area of 37,428 square feet, which is a net 
increase of approximately 1,725 square feet of gross floor area.  The CDP 
allows the development to exceed the maximum height limit of 35 feet, and 
establishes the required parking, allowed signage, required setbacks, and 
incorporate the outside storage of nonhazardous materials and equipment 
within a service yard. The Hetch Hetchy right-of-way to the rear of the property, 
a separate parcel, would be utilized for required parking spaces, which would 
partially be contained in landscape reserve. The proposed project would also 
include an increase in the quantities of hazardous materials from the previously 
approved use permit due to the increase in production activities, associated 
with the development and manufacturing of instruments for the biotech industry. 
All hazardous materials, with the exception of diesel fuel for a proposed 
emergency generator, would be stored within the building, or in a fire-rated 
chemical storage container. As part of this proposal, a heritage size Italian 
stone pine (31-inch diameter), in fair condition is proposed to be removed. 

 
1.4 Property Location (Project site): 20 Kelly Court and 1 Kelly Court 
 
1.5 Assessor's Parcel Numbers: The Project site currently contains two legal 

parcels (1 and 20 Kelly Court), which would be merged as part of the project. 
The current parcels contain the following APNs: 055-421-130 (1 Kelly Court) 
and 055-433-130 (20 Kelly Court).  

 
1.6 Area of Property: 68,228 square feet (1.57 acres)  
 
1.7 Zoning: M-2 (X) (General Industrial, Conditional Development) 
 
1.8 Previous entitlements: The Conditional Development Permit for 20 Kelly Court 

supersedes the previously granted use permit and architectural approvals for 
the individual parcels.   

93



 
2. DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS: 
 

2.1 Floor Area Ratio (FAR) shall not exceed 55 percent of the project site. 
 
2.2 Building coverage shall not exceed 50 percent of the project site. 
 
2.3 Building setbacks shall be in accordance with the approved plans. 
 
2.4 Building height shall not exceed 47 feet for the front stair tower, 44 feet for the 

main entry tower, 45 feet, six inches for the viewing deck, and 42 feet for the 
rear stair tower. All heights shall be measured from the average level of the 
highest and lowest point of the existing grade of that portion of the lot covered 
by the structure (height excludes elevator equipment rooms, ventilating and air 
conditioning equipment).   

 
2.5 The on-site circulation and parking spaces shall consist of 92 parking spaces 

using the City’s use-based guidelines, a portion of which are located in a 
tandem formation. If the City is notified of a parking issue at the site, the 
applicant would be required to convert the tandem spaces to fully accessible 
spaces by adding a drive aisle on the SFPUC parcel. The additional landscape 
reserve spaces may be converted if the City is notified of a parking issue at the 
site, or if the applicant requests to convert the landscape reserve spaces to 
parking, in accordance with the approved plans. The City Planning and 
Engineering Divisions will review and take action on the proposed landscape 
reserve conversion, as well as the conversion of the tandem parking spaces to 
fully accessible spaces. 
 
If at some time in the future the applicant loses the lease for the surface rights 
for the Hetch Hetchy right-of-way (ROW), the applicant is required to lease an 
equivalent number of parking spaces off-site for the benefit of its employees, 
revise the land use breakdown and/or reduce the floor area of the building such 
that the number of on-site parking spaces complies with the City’s use-based 
parking guidelines, or a combination thereof.  
 
In addition, if in the future the building is no longer occupied by a single tenant, 
the property owner shall convert the tandem parking spaces to fully accessible 
spaces and if deemed necessary, convert the additional landscape reserve to 
parking, in accordance with the approved plans. The City Planning and 
Engineering Divisions will review and take action on the proposed modifications 
to the on-site parking.  
 

2.6 All rooftop equipment shall be fully screened and integrated into the design of 
the building.  Roof-top equipment shall comply with noise requirements of the 
Municipal Code. 

 
 
 
 

94



3. USES: 
 

3.1 The development consists of one building totaling 37,428 square feet of office, 
R&D, manufacturing, and assembly uses. The maximum square footages of 
individual land uses within the building shall be based on the following table 
(uses listed by intensity, with most intense use listed first): 

 
Proposed Land Use Breakdown (20 Kelly Court) 
Office 18,365 square feet 
R&D 4,624 square feet 
Manufacturing 12,097 square feet 
Warehousing 2,342 square feet 
Total 37,428 square feet 

  
The building may deviate from the above table, provided that more intense 
land uses are replaced by less intense uses.  

 
3.2 Outdoor storage: Storage of nonhazardous materials and equipment is limited 

to the visually screened loading dock at the rear of the building. This area shall 
also contain the emergency generator and a fire rated hazardous materials 
cabinet. 
 

3.3 Hazardous Materials: Hazardous materials are permitted to be stored and used 
at the site, provided that hazardous materials are stored in accordance with the 
California Fire Code and control areas are constructed in accordance with the 
California Building Code. The aggregate total quantity of hazardous materials 
used and stored, per control area, within the building shall not exceed the 
quantities listed in Table 2703.1.1(1) of the 2010 California Fire Code and 
subsequent updated codes, including the amounts allowed per footnotes d 
(sprinklers) and e (cabinets) of the table.  

 
3.3.1.1 When chemical quantities exceed the reportable limits as defined 

by the California Health and Safety Code, the tenant shall provide a 
Hazardous Materials Business Plan (HMBP), or equivalent 
document to the San Mateo County Environmental Health Division 
and the Sanitary District. 
 

3.3.1.2 If the tenant modifies the types and/or quantities of chemicals used 
and stored at the site, the tenant shall obtain a revised Fire Permit 
from the Menlo Park Fire District. 

 
3.3.1.3 The quantities and types of hazardous materials stored at the site 

shall only be permitted for a single tenant. If the building is 
subdivided into multiple suites, each individual tenant will need to 
apply for a suite specific use permit for the storage and use of 
hazardous materials through the Menlo Park Planning Division.  

 
 
 

95



4 SIGNS: 
 

4.1 The main tenant signage shall be constructed in accordance with the approved 
plans. The maximum height of the proposed letters shall be 3 feet, five inches. 
The main tenant signage shall be limited to 130 square feet, which would 
generally correspond with the 37 feet, one inch by three feet, five inch 
dimensions of the currently proposed sign identified in the project plans. The 
entry sign would still be required to contain individual letters, of approximately 
the same height and design as the C S Bio sign. and shall be located on top of 
the front canopy. Additional signage may be permitted in accordance with the 
Zoning Ordinance signage requirements and the Sign and Awning Design 
Guidelines up to a total maximum of 150 square feet. 

 
5 RECORDATION: 

 
5.1 Concurrent with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the 

applicant shall record the Conditional Development Permit with the County 
of San Mateo County. 
 

5.2 The Conditional Development Permit shall be in force on the effective date 
of the Development Agreement. 

 
6 MODIFICATIONS: 

 
6.1 Modifications to the approved project plans may be considered according to the 

following: 
 

6.1.1 Substantially Consistent Modifications, which include any changes to 
or modifications of any portion of the Project which C S Bio, Inc. 
and/or Owner make or propose to make to the Project, provided such 
changes or modifications are in substantial compliance with and/or 
substantially consistent with the approved plans and the Project 
Approvals, as determined by the Community Development Director 
(in his/her reasonable discretion).  

 
6.1.2 Minor modifications, which do not affect permitted uses, density or 

intensity of use, restrictions and requirements relating to subsequent 
discretionary actions, conditions or covenants limiting or restricting 
the use of the Property or similar materials changes, based on the 
determination that the proposed modification(s) is consistent with 
other building and design elements of the approved Conditional 
Development Permit, and will not have an adverse impact on the 
character and aesthetics of the Property. The Planning Commission 
shall be notified of approved minor modifications, and a member of 
the Commission may request within 14 days of receipt of the notice 
that the item(s) be reviewed by the Planning Commission. 

 
6.1.3 Major modifications (such as significant changes to the exterior 

appearance of the building, parking layout, or additional gross floor 

96



area), to the approved plans, as determined by the Community 
Development Director, may be allowed, subject to review and 
approval by the Planning Commission. The Planning Commission’s 
action shall be based on the determination that the proposed 
modification is compatible with other building and design elements or 
onsite/offsite improvements of the approved Conditional 
Development Permit and will not have an adverse impact on safety 
and/or the character and aesthetics of the site.  

 
6.2 Revisions to the Project which involve relaxation of the development 

standards identified in Section 2, material changes to the uses identified in 
Section 3, exceedance of the signage maximum square footages identified in 
Section 4, or modifications to the conditions of approval identified in Section 8 
(other than changes deemed to be Substantially Consistent Modifications, 
pursuant to Section 6.1.1 that can be authorized by the City Manager), 
constitute Conditional Development Permit amendments that require public 
hearings by the Planning Commission and City Council. Such revisions may 
also require modifications to the plans and/or Development Agreement. Any 
application for amendment shall be made by the property owner and/or 
applicant, in writing, to the Planning Commission. The Planning Commission 
shall then forward its recommendation to the City Council for revision(s) to the 
Conditional Development Permit. 

 
7. PROJECT SPECIFIC CONDITIONS - GENERAL: 
 

7.1 Indemnity by Owner:

 

 The Owner shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless 
City, and its elective and appointive boards, commissions, officers, agents, 
contractors and employees (collectively, “City Indemnified Parties”) from any 
and all claims, causes of action, damages, costs or expenses (including 
reasonable attorneys’ fees) arising out of or in connection with, or caused on 
account of, the development and occupancy of the Project, any Approval with 
respect thereto, or claims for injury or death to persons, or damage to 
property, as a result of the operations of Owner or its employees, agents, 
contractors, representatives or tenants with respect to the Project 
(collectively, “Claims”); provided, however, that Owner shall have no liability 
under this Section 7.1 for Claims arising from the gross negligence or willful 
misconduct of any City Indemnified Party, or for Claims arising from, or 
alleged to arise from, the repair or maintenance by the City of any 
improvements that have been offered for dedication by Owner and accepted 
by the City. 

7.2 Indemnity By C S Bio, Inc: C S Bio, Inc. shall indemnify, defend and hold 
harmless the City Indemnified Parties from any and all claims, causes of 
action, damages, costs or expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) 
arising out of or in connection with, or caused on account of, the development 
and occupancy of the Project, any Approval with respect thereto, or claims for 
injury or death to persons, or damage to property, as a result of the 
operations of C S Bio or its employees, agents, contractors, representatives 
or landlords with respect to the Project (collectively, “Claims”); provided, 

97



however, that C S Bio shall have no liability under this Section 7.2 for Claims 
arising from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of any City Indemnified 
Party, or for Claims arising from, or alleged to arise from, the repair or 
maintenance by the City of any improvements that have been offered for 
dedication by Owner and accepted by the City. As to C S Bio, the provisions 
of this Section 7.2 shall only apply to Claims arising from events which 
occurred in whole or in part before the later of C S Bio’s vacating of the 
Property and the expiration or earlier termination of the Lease.  Should C S 
Bio no longer be the tenant, the terms of this Section 7.2 shall apply to any 
new tenant for all Claims arising during the new tenant’s tenancy.  
 

7.3 Project Plans:

 

 Development of the Project shall be substantially in 
conformance with the following plans submitted by DES Architects and 
Engineers dated received by the Planning Division on October 31, 2012, 
consisting of 34 plan sheets, recommended for approval to the City Council 
by the Planning Commission on November 5, 2012, and approved by the City 
Council on _________, 2012, except as modified by the conditions contained 
herein and in accordance with Section 6 (modifications) of this document. 

7.4 Requirements of External Agencies

 

: Prior to building permit issuance, the 
applicants shall comply with all Sanitary District, Menlo Park Fire Protection 
District, Recology, and utility companies’ regulations that are directly 
applicable to the project. 

7.5 Requirements of Internal Departments: 

 

Prior to building permit issuance, the 
applicants shall comply with all requirements of the Building Division, 
Engineering Division, and Transportation Group that are directly applicable to 
the project. 

7.6 Demolition and Recycling: 

 

Prior to demolition permit and building permit 
issuance, the applicant shall comply with the requirements of Chapter 12.48 
(Salvaging and Recycling of Construction and Demolition Debris) of the City 
of Menlo Park Municipal Code, and is subject to review and approval by the 
Engineering and Building Divisions. 

7.7 Construction Safety and Erosion Control Plan: 

 

Prior to demolition permit 
issuance, the applicant shall submit a plan for 1) construction safety fences 
around the periphery of the construction area, 2) dust control, 3) erosion and 
sedimentation control, 4) tree protection fencing, and 5) construction vehicle 
parking. The plans shall be subject to review and approval by the Building 
and Engineering Divisions prior to issuance of a demolition permit. The 
fences and erosion and sedimentation control measures shall be installed 
according to the approved plan prior to commencing demolition.  

7.8 Heritage Trees: Prior to demolition permit issuance, the applicant shall submit 
a heritage tree preservation plan, detailing the location of and methods for all 
tree protection measures, as described in the arborist report. The project 
arborist shall submit a letter confirming adequate installation of the tree 
protection measures. The project sponsor shall retain an arborist throughout 

98



the term of the project, and the project arborist shall submit periodic 
inspection reports to the Building Division. The heritage tree preservation plan 
shall be subject to review and approval by the Planning Division. 

 
7.9 Truck Route Plan: 

 

Prior to demolition permit issuance, the applicant shall 
submit a truck route plan and permit to be reviewed and approved by the 
Transportation Senior Engineer. 

7.10 Utilities: 

 

Concurrent with the submittal of a complete building permit 
application, the applicant shall submit a plan for any new utility installations or 
upgrades for review and approval by the Planning, Engineering, and Building 
Divisions. All utility equipment that is installed outside of a building and that 
cannot be placed underground shall be properly screened by landscaping. 
The plan shall show exact locations, dimensions, and colors of all meters, 
transformers, junction boxes, relay boxes, and other equipment boxes. The 
utility plans shall also show backflow and Double Check Detector Assembly 
(DCDA) devices.  

7.11 Grading and Drainage Plan: 

 

Concurrent with the submittal of a complete 
building permit application, the applicant shall submit a Grading and Drainage 
Plan for review and approval by the Engineering Division. The Grading and 
Drainage Plan shall be prepared based on the City’s Grading and Drainage 
Plan Guidelines and Checklist and the Project Applicant Checklist for the 
National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit 
Requirements. The erosion and sediment control plans shall be attached to 
the Grading and Drainage plans and may be similar to the erosion control 
plan provided for the demolition permit. The Grading and Drainage Plan shall 
be approved prior to or concurrent with the issuance of a building permit. 

7.12 Geotechnical Report: 

 

Concurrent with the submittal of a complete building 
permit application, a design-level geotechnical investigation report shall be 
submitted the Building Division for review and confirmation that the proposed 
development fully complies with the California Building Code. The report shall 
determine the project site’s surface geotechnical conditions and address 
potential seismic hazards. The report shall identify building techniques 
appropriate to minimize seismic damage. 

7.13 Stormwater: 

 

Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall enter into 
and record a “Stormwater Treatment Measures Operations and Maintenance 
(O&M) Agreement” with the City subject to review and approval by the 
Engineering Division. With the executed agreement, the property owner is 
responsible for the operation and maintenance of stormwater treatment 
measures for the project. The agreement shall run with the land and shall be 
recorded by the applicant with the San Mateo County Recorder’s Office. 

7.14 Landscape Parking Reserve: If the applicant seeks to convert all or a portion 
of the identified landscape parking reserve to parking, a complete grading and 
drainage plan shall be submitted illustrating that there will be no net increase 
in impervious area and/or stormwater runoff on the Property, to the 

99



satisfaction of the Public Works Director. In addition, if lighting is proposed as 
part of the conversion of the landscape parking reserve, a complete lighting 
plan shall be submitted that illustrates no net increase in light spillover to 
adjacent properties, to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director.   

 
8.  PROJECT SPECIFIC CONDITIONS  
 

8.1 Below Market Rate Housing Agreement: 

 

Prior to or concurrent with the 
submittal of a complete building permit application, the applicant shall execute 
the Below Market Rate (BMR) Housing Agreement. Prior to building permit 
issuance, the applicant shall pay the in lieu fee of approximately $74,497.02 
in accordance with the BMR Housing Agreement (as of July 1, 2012). The 
BMR Housing Agreement shall be subject to review and approval of the 
Planning Division. The BMR fee rate is subject to change annually on July 1 
and the final fee will be calculated at the time of fee payment. 

8.2 Traffic Impact Fee: 

 

Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall pay a 
Traffic Impact Fee (TIF) based on the rates for the mix of uses within the 
building, for a total estimated TIF of $33,771.29, subject to the Municipal 
Code Section 13.26. The fee rate is subject to change annually on July 1 and 
the final calculation will be based upon the rate at the time of fee payment. 
The TIF rate is adjusted each year based on the ENR Construction Cost 
Index percentage change for San Francisco.  

8.3 Flood Waters:

 

 Concurrent with the submittal of a complete building permit 
application, the applicant shall submit a study identifying how flood waters will 
be directed around the structure to ensure that the project will have no 
adverse impact to the potential flooding on other parcels, subject to review 
and approval of the Planning and Engineering Divisions.  The mapped 
direction of potential flood waters would be from O’Brien Drive.  (Mapped 
source of floods is San Francisquito Creek water traveling from under Hwy 
101.) 

8.4 O’Brien Ditch Erosion Control:

 

 Concurrent with the submittal of a complete 
building permit application, the applicant shall submit specific construction 
details and materials to be used for the slope protection of the O’Brien ditch, 
subject to review and approval of the Planning and Engineering Divisions.  

8.5 O’Brien Ditch Permitting Requirements

 

: Prior to building permit issuance, the 
applicant shall be required to obtain all necessary permits through the 
Regional Water Quality Board for work within the O’Brien ditch, subject to 
review and approval of the Planning and Engineering Divisions. 

 
 

 
 

100



DRAFT – November 27, 2012 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO 
PARK, CALIFORNIA APPROVING A HERITAGE TREE REMOVAL 
PERMIT FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 20 KELLY COURT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park (“City”) has received an application from C S Bio for 
removal of one heritage tree at the property located at 20 Kelly Court in Menlo Park due 
to conflicts with the proposed site improvements, in particular a new front sidewalk and 
modified vehicular access point; and  

 
WHEREAS, the removal of Heritage Trees within the City is subject to the requirements 
of Municipal Code Chapter 13.24, Heritage Trees; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Arborist has reviewed the request, determined that the tree is in 
fair health, and recommended approval of the removal; and 

 
WHEREAS, the applicant is proposing to replace the heritage tree removal with a 48-
inch box Chinese pistache and a 48-inch box madrone tree, both of which would be 
located along the front façade of the proposed building; and 
 
WHEREAS, all required public notices and public hearings were duly given and held 
according to law; and  
 
WHEREAS, after notice having been lawfully given, a public hearing was scheduled and 
held before the Planning Commission of the City of Menlo Park on November 5, 2012 
whereat all persons interested therein might appear and be heard; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Menlo Park having fully reviewed, 
considered and evaluated all the testimony and evidence submitted in this matter voted 
affirmatively to recommend to the City Council of the City of Menlo Park to approve the 
Heritage Tree Removal Permit; and 

 
WHEREAS, after notice having been lawfully given, a public hearing was scheduled and 
held before the City Council of the City of Menlo Park on November 27, 2012 whereat 
all persons interested therein might appear and be heard.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Menlo Park 
hereby approves the Heritage Tree Removal Permit.   
 

101



I, Margaret S. Roberts, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and 
foregoing Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting 
by said Council on the twenty-seventh day of November, 2012, by the following votes:  
  
AYES:    
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:   
 
ABSTAIN:   
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of 
said City on this twenty-seventh day of November, 2012. 
 
 
  
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC  
City Clerk 
 

102



BELOW MARKET RATE HOUSING IN LIEU FEE AGREEMENT 
 
 
This Below Market Rate Housing In Lieu Fee Agreement (“Agreement”) is made as of 
this ____ day of _____, 2012 by and between the City of Menlo Park, a California 
municipality (“City”) and C S Bio Co, 20 Kelly Court, Menlo Park, California, 94025, a 
California Corporation (“Developer”), with respect to the following: 
 

RECITALS 
 
A. Developer owns that certain real property in the City of Menlo Park, County of San 

Mateo, State of California, consisting of approximately, 1.57 acres or 68,228 square 
feet, more particularly described as Assessor’s Parcel Numbers: 055-433-240 and 
055-433-130 (“Property”) and more commonly known as 1 Kelly Court, and 20 Kelly 
Court.  

 
B. Developer proposes to completely demolish the existing building located at 1 Kelly 

Court and partially demolish the existing building located at 20 Kelly Court, for a 
total demolition of 23,976 square feet.  Developer proposes to construct 25,701 
square feet of new gross floor area, resulting in a total building of 37,428 square 
feet. The demolition and construction are collectively referred to as the “Project.”  
The Project would contain a net increase of 1,725 square feet of gross floor area. 
The use of the new building would contain a combination of office, R&D, 
warehouse, and manufacturing. Developer has applied to the City for a conditional 
development permit for the Project. 

 
C. Developer is required to comply with Chapter 16.96 of City’s Municipal Code (“BMR 

Ordinance”) and with the Below Market Rate Housing Program Guidelines 
(“Guidelines”) adopted by the City Council to implement the BMR Ordinance.  In 
order to process its application, the BMR Ordinance requires Developer to submit a 
Below Market Rate Housing Agreement.  This Agreement is intended to satisfy that 
requirement.  Approval of a Below Market Rate Housing Agreement is a condition 
precedent to the approval of the applications and the issuance of a building permit 
for the Project. 

 
D. Residential use of the property is not allowed by the applicable zoning regulations.  

Developer does not own any sites in the City that are available and feasible for 
construction of sufficient below market rate residential housing units to satisfy the 
requirements of the BMR Ordinance.  Based on these facts, the City has found that 
development of such units off-site in accordance with the requirements of the BMR 
Ordinance and Guidelines also is not feasible. 

 
E. Developer, therefore, is required to pay an in lieu fee as provided for in this 

Agreement.  Developer is willing to pay the in lieu fee on the terms set forth in this 
Agreement, which the City has found are consistent with the BMR Ordinance and 
Guidelines. 

103



NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1.  Developer shall pay the in lieu fee as provided for in the BMR Ordinance and 
Guidelines.  The applicable in lieu fee is that which is in effect on the date the 
payment is made.  The in lieu fee will be calculated as set forth in the table below; 
however, the applicable fee for the Project will be based upon the amount of square 
footage within Group A and Group B at the time of payment. 

 
 Use Group Fee/ 

SF SF Fee 

Existing Office Portion A-Office/R&D       $14.71 13,965 ($205,425.15) 
Existing Non-Office Portion B- All other Com     $7.98 21,738 ($173,469.24) 
Proposed Office Building A-Office/R&D        $14.71 22,989 $338,168.19 
Proposed Non-Office Portion   B- All other Com     $7.98 14,439 $115,223.22 
Total Fee    $74,497.02 

 
 
2. Developer shall pay the fee before the City issues a building permit for the Project.  

Developer may pay the fee at any time after the approval of this Agreement by the 
Planning Commission.  If for any reason, a building permit is not issued within a 
reasonable time after Developer’s payment of the fee, upon request by Developer, 
City shall promptly refund the fee, with out interest, in which case the building 
permit shall not be issued until payment of the fee is again made at the rate 
applicable at the time of payment. 

 
3. This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto 

and their successors and assigns.  Each party may assign this Agreement, subject 
to the reasonable consent of the other, and the assignment must be in writing. 

 
4. If any legal action is commenced to interpret or enforce this Agreement or to collect 

damages as a result of any breach of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be 
entitled to recover all reasonable attorney’s fees and costs incurred in such action 
from the other party. 

 
5. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of 

the State of California and the venue for any action shall be the County of San 
Mateo. 

 
6. The terms of this Agreement may not be modified or amended except by an 

instrument in writing executed by each of the parties hereto. 
 

7. This Agreement supersedes any prior agreements, negotiations, and 
communications, oral or written, and contains the entire agreement between the 
parties as to the subject matter hereof. 
 

104



8. Any and all obligations or responsibilities of Developer under this Agreement shall 
terminate upon the payment of the required fee. 

 
9. To the extent there is any conflict between the terms and provisions of the 

Guidelines and the terms and provisions of this Agreement, the terms and 
provisions of this Agreement shall prevail. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of 
the day and year first written above. 

 
CITY OF MENLO PARK   C S Bio Co. 
 
 
 
By: _____________________  By: _______________________ 

      Alex D. McIntyre  Jason Chang 
 City Manage Director of Operations 
 

105



1

1100

1240

1315

1392

1

1050

1317

1350

10

1350

970960

1320 1374

980

1140

1370

1003

1380

1055 20

1390

985

1399

1340

1221

1020

1060

950

1001

1030

1120

871

980

960

1215

1400

1160

1430

1180

1075

1100

1010

965

2400

1190

1200

1401

967
1105

1283
1305

1301

1396

800
1279

820

1313

1328

1256
1254

1352

1272

1376

1263

13681334

1280

1316
1317

1332

1338

1284

1392

1364

1388

1269

1356

1276

1360

1264

1275
1271

1380

1324

1384

1308

1305

1394

1268

1259 1312

1372

1309

1264

1260

1321

1304

1268

1320
1323

1272

1329

1304 1331

1255

1335
1339 13411308 13471312 13491316 1353

1298

1322 1363

O'BRIEN  DR

WILLOW  RD

ALBERNI  ST

CARLTON  AVE

IVY  DR

HAMILTON  AVE

RALMAR  AVE

HAMILTON  CT

KAVANAUGH  DR

POPLAR  AVE

MENALTO  AVE

LAUREL  AVE

KELLY  CT

CASEY  CT

KIRKWOOD  CT

CITY OF MENLO PARK
LOCATION MAP

1 & 20 KELLY COURT ´
PROJECT
LOCATION

DRAWN: KTP CHECKED: KTP DATE:11/19/12 SCALE: 1" = 300' SHEET: 1

G1

106



PLANNING PERMIT SUBMITTAL

M  e  n  l  o   P  a  r  k   ,   C  a  l  i  f  o  r  n  i  a

CS BIO - RENOVATION AND EXPANSION

OCTOBER   24, 2 0 1 2

2  0   K  e  l  l  y   C  o  u  r  t

ATTACHMENT H

107



COVER SHEET

1 PROJECT DATA, SHEET INDEX AND VICINITY MAP

2 VICINITY MAP

3 TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY

4a EXISTING FLOOR PLANS - 20 KELLY CT

4b EXISTING FLOOR PLANS - 1 KELLY CT

5 EXISTING BUILDING USE DIAGRAMS

6a PROPOSED SITE PLAN

6b PROPOSED SITE PLAN - BUILDING SETBACKS

6c PROPOSED ALTERNATE SITE PLAN

7    PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN

8 PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR PLAN

 

9 PROPOSED THIRD FLOOR PLAN

10 PROPOSED ROOF PLAN

11 SITE AREA AND BUILDING COVERAGE CALCULATION PLANS

12 PROPOSED BUILDING GFA CALCULATION PLANS

13 PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN USE DIAGRAMS

14 PROPOSED BUILDING ELEVATIONS

15 PROPOSED BUILDING ELEVATIONS

16 PROPOSED BUILDING SECTIONS

17 LANDSCAPE PLAN

18 EXISTING TREE PLAN

19 GRADING PLAN

20 UTILITY PLAN

21   FIRE TRUCK TURNING

22 DESIGN AND LANDSCAPE DETAILS

HAZMAT

H1      SITE PLAN NOTED  FOR HMBP/HAZMAT

H2      1ST FLOOR PLAN NOTED FOR HMBP/HAZMAT

H3      2ND FLOOR PLAN NOTED FOR HMBP/HAZMAT

COLOR EXHIBITS

C1 SITE PHOTO

  

C2 BUILDING PERSPECTIVE

C3 BUILDING PERSPECTIVE

C4 BUILDING PERSPECTIVE

C5 BUILDING PERSPECTIVE

C6 BUILDING SIGNAGE

C7 COLOR AND MATERIAL FINISHES

C8 STORMWATER TREATMENT PLAN

ARCHITECTS

DES ARCHITECTS + ENGINEERS

399 BRADFORD STREET

REDWOOD CITY, CALIFORNIA 94063

PHONE: (650) 364-6453

FAX: (650) 364-2618

WEBSITE: WWW.DES-AE.COM

CONTACT: SUSAN ESCHWEILER/KENNY HUNG

CLIENT/OWNER

CS BIO CO.

20 KELLY COURT

MENLO PARK, CALIFORNIA 94025

PHONE: (650) 322-1111

FAX: (650) 322-2278

WEBSITE: WWW.CSBIO.COM

CONTACT: JASON CHANG

PROJECT SITE AREA: 68,228 SQ. FT.

ACCESS EASEMENT ON 10 KELLY CT: 1,039 SQ. FT.

ADJACENT HETCH HETCHY RIGHT OF WAY: Ñ 30,000 SQ. F.T

ZONING DESIGNATION: M-2

BUILDING HEIGHT LIMIT: 35 FT

BUILDING SETBACKS:

- FRONT YARD 20 FT

- REAR YARD 0 FT

- SIDE YARD 10 FT

(CAN BE REDUCED ZERO IF SIDE YARD IS CORRESPONDINGLY

INCREASED)

TOTAL BUILDING AREA:

1 KELLY CT 17,718 SQ. FT.

20 KELLY CT 17,985 SQ. FT.

35,703 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA RATIO: 0.52

EXISTING SITE COVERAGE: 50 %

EXISTING BUILDING HEIGHT: ~ 25 FT MAX.

(TO TOP OF PARAPET)

PARKING PROVISION: 48 CARS

EXISTING PROJECT

PROPOSED BUILDING AREA (OVERALL PROJECT-EXISTING):

NEW BUILDING ADDITION

- FIRST FLOOR 11,501        SQ. FT.

- SECOND FLOOR  10,953 SQ. FT.

- THIRD FLOOR   3,247 SQ. FT.

TOTAL NEW ADDITION AREA 25,701 SQ. FT.

OUTDOOR CHEMICAL STORAGE (NOT INCLUDED)      270 SQ. FT.

EXISTING BUILDING TO REMAIN

EXISTING BUILDING AREA 35,703 SQ. FT.

- DEMOLISH  METAL BUILDING   6,258 SQ. FT.

- DEMOLISH 1 KELLY BUILDING 17,718 SQ. FT.

EXISTING BUILDING AREA TO REMAIN 11,727 SQ. FT.

TOTAL BUILDING AREA

NEW BUILDING ADDITION 25,701 SQ. FT.

EXISTING BUILDING AREA 11,727 SQ. FT.

TOTAL NEW BUILDING AREA 37,428 SQ. FT.

NET INCREASE IN FLOOR AREA   1,725 SQ. FT.

PROPOSED FLOOR AREA RATIO

- SITE AREA                             68,228 SQ. FT.

- TOTAL BUILDING AREA      37,428 SQ. FT

- FAR 0.55

COVERAGE

SITE AREA 68,228 SQ. FT.

BUILDING/SITE COVERAGE AREA 22,360 SQ. FT.

BUILDING/SITE COVERAGE (REFER SHEET 11) 32.8%

LANDSCAPING RATIO: 21.5%

(BASED ON 68,228 SQ. FT.)

 

PROPOSED PROJECT

SITE AND ZONING REQUIREMENTS

3

a.

b.

c.

a.

b.

c.

d.

e.

a.

b.

c.

d.

e.

2

1

d.

e.

f.

g.

f.

h.

i.

THE PROJECT CONFORMS TO THE CITY FIRE REGULATIONS - FIRE

HYDRANTS HAVE BEEN PROVIDED TO COVER THE ENTIRE SITE.

26'-0" WIDE DRIVEWAYS HAVE BEEN PROVIDED FOR THE MOVEMENT OF

FIRE TRUCKS THROUGH THE SITE

THE PROJECT WILL HAVE FIRE SPRINKLERS AND FIRE EXTINGUISHERS

AS REQUIRED BY THE MENLO PARK FIRE DEPARTMENT.

OUTDOOR CHEMICAL STORAGE ROOMS WOULD BE SELF CONTAINED

AND SPRINKLERS WILL BE PROVIDED AS PER FIRE DEPARTMENT

REGULATIONS

 

1.

2.

3.

4.

BUILDING SETBACKS:

- FRONT YARD TO BUILDING                                Ñ 4'-8" MIN

- FRONT YARD SET BACK TO ENTRY CANOPY                                  4"

- REAR YARD 32' MIN

- SIDE YARD 86' MIN (LEFT)

56' MIN (RIGHT)

PARKING PROVISION:

- PARKING REQUIRED @ 1/300 FOR OFFICE/R&D USE           77 CARS (22,833 SF)

- PARKING REQUIRED @ 1/1,000 FOR WAREHOUSE/MFG. USE 15 CARS (14,372 SF)

-TOTAL PARKING REQUIRED                                                                92 CARS

PARKING PROVIDED

- PROJECT SITE + SFPUC IMPROVEMENT 59 CARS

-HETCH-HETCHY SITE                                                                    33 CARS

TOTAL PARKING PROVISION 92 CARS

- FUTURE PARKING (LANDSCAPE RESERVE) 28 CARS

PROPOSED BUILDING HEIGHT:

- TOP OF ROOF FLOOR 30 FT MAX.

- TOP OF ENTRY TOWER 44 FT MAX

- TOP OF VIEWING DECK 44 FT MAX

- TOP OF ELEVATOR TOWER 47 FT MAX

 

108



109



20 KELLY CT

(EXISTING CONCRETE TILT-UP AND METAL

FRAME BUILDING)

1 KELLY CT

(EXISTING METAL FRAME BUILDING

TO BE DEMOLISHED)

110



(E) MEZZANINE

OFFICE

RESTROOM

RESTROOM

(E) ASSEMBLY

(E) STORAGE

(E) CHEMICAL

STORAGE

(E) STORAGE

(E) R&D AREA

(E) QUALITY CONTROL

(E) PACKAGING

(E) LAB

(E) LOCKERS

(E) BREAK ROOM

(E) RECEIVING

(E) LOBBY(E) CONFERENCE

(E) CHANGING

ROOM

(E) EQUIPMENT

ROOM

(E)  LAB

(E) R&D AREA

(E)  R&D AREA

(E)  LAB

(E) RECEIVING

STORAGE/ WAREHOUSE

111



(E)LOBBY

(E)OFFICE

(E)OFFICE

(E)OFFICE

(E) LOBBY

(E) OFFICE(E) OFFICE

(E) OFFICE (E) OFFICE

112



113



NEW OR RELOCATED HANDICAP PARKING AT BUILDING

ENTRANCES

CONCRETE PAD FOR EMERGENCY GENERATOR

OUTDOOR TERRACE

ENTRY GATE (BOTH VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS),

STEEL GATE AND FENCE, BLACK POWDER COAT

FINISH, 6'-0" HT.

EXISTING ELECTRICAL SWITCHGEAR AND

TRANSFORMER (WITH NEW SCREENING)

STORMWATER TREATMENT AREA

NEW LANDSCAPED AREAS AT KELLY COURT

ENTRY PLAZA AND LANDSCAPING

NEW TRASH ENCLOSURE (ROOF OUTLINE SHOWN)

GREEN SCREEN

OUTDOOR FIRE-RATED CHEMICAL STORAGE UNIT

REALIGNED 26' DRIVEWAY AND ADDITIONAL ACCESS

EASEMENT

LANDSCAPED PATIO - AMENITIES AREA FOR EMPLOYEES

ACCESSIBLE  HATCH FOR UNDERGROUND PIPES

NEW PUBLIC SIDEWALK

SCREENED SERVICE YARD AND OUTDOOR STORAGE

OF MATERIAL AND EQUIPMENT

REFER TO SHEET 6B FOR DRIVEWAY AND PARKING

STALL DIMENSIONS AND BUILDING SETBACK.

114



115



116



(E) MANUFACTURING

FUTURE R & D AREA

(E) WAREHOUSE

(E) R&D AREA

(E) QUALITY CONTROL

(RE-MODELED)

(E) LAB

(E) LOCKERS

(E) RECEIVING

LOBBY

(E) CONFERENCE

(RE-MODELED)

(N) GALLERY

CLEAVAGE (1)

SYNTHESIS (3)

CLEAVAGE (2)

PROPOSED

CANOPY

PROPOSED

COVERED

ENTRY

PROPOSED

COVERED

ENTRY

117



(E) MEZZANINE

OFFICE

RESTROOM

RESTROOM

FEMALE MALE

CONFERENCE

OPEN

MEETING

OPEN

TO BELOW

OFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE

STR/ELEC

OFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE

DISPLAY

FOYER

GMP QC

STABILITY

OFFICE

(E) MEZZANINE

OFFICE

RESTROOM

RESTROOM

FEMALE MALE

CONFERENCE

OPEN

MEETING

OPEN

TO BELOW

OFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE

STR/ELEC

OFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE

DISPLAY

FOYER

GMP QC

STABILITY

OFFICE

118



SCREENED AREA FOR

MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT

OFFICE

OUTDOOR DECK

DECK

OFFICE

COVERED

DECK

SCREENED AREA FOR

EXISTING MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT

@ CONCRETE TILT-UP

BUILDING ROOF

METAL SCREEN

OPEN STAIR

FOR VIEWING

DECK

ENCLOSED

STAIR

119



OFFICE

ROOF

OFFICE ROOF

CANOPY ROOF

VIEWING DECK

ROOF OF THE

STAIR TOWER

MECHANICAL

EQUIPMENT

BELOW

MECHANICAL

EQUIPMENT

BELOW

GLASS

RAILING

DECK BELOW

DECK BELOW

120



PROJECT SITE AREA: 68,228 SQ. FT.

COVERAGE

Building: 22,090 SQ. FT.

Chemical Storage:      270 SQ. FT.

IMPERVIOUS

Paved Walkway/Curbs:   3,920 SQ. FT.

Driveways/Loading Area: 24,354 SQ. FT.

Uncovered Parking Spaces:   5,681 SQ. FT.

Trash Enclosure:      274 SQ. FT.

PERVIOUS LANDSCAPE

Landscaped Area : 11,682 SQ. FT.

SITE AREA

A.

1 LEGEND2

BUILDING FOOTPRINT

LANDSCAPED AREA

PAVED WALKWAY/CURBS

DRIVEWAYS/LOADING AREA

UNCOVERED PARKING SPACES

MISC. COVERED/PAVED SURFACE

121



1 2

a

b

c

d

e

f

g h

i

j
k

l

5

4

3

6

7

8

9
11

m

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

1

2

3

4

5

n

9

6

8

1

2

3

4

5

No    Area (sq. ft.)

 6057

   3964

   5743

  336

   3204

6

7

8

   408

  792

   459

9    103

10    326

11    130

Total
21522 sq. ft.

First Floor Area

1

2

3

4

No    Area (sq.ft.)

1487

336

405

768

5

7

2160

6

438

5074

Total
12659 sq. ft.

8 778

9 448

10 285

11 261

Second Floor Area

1

2

3

4

No    Area (sq.ft.)

734

466

258

298

5

9

499

6

334

278

Total
3247 sq. ft.

Third Floor Area

No  Exclusion

b

a

c

d

e

f

g

h

i

k

l

m

j

 6

 6

n  6

 9

 10

 4.5

 12.5

 9

 3

 7.5

 8

 1.5

 1.5

 1.5

Total  86

 Exclusion

8 234

7 146

12 129

13 90

EXISTING NEW

FIRST FLOOR 10,021 SQ. FT. 11,501 SQ. FT.

SECOND FLOOR    1,706 SQ. FT. 10,953 SQ. FT.

THIRD FLOOR     3,247 SQ. FT.

11,727 SQ. FT. 25,701 SQ. FT.

TOTAL FLOOR AREA OF PROJECT 37,428 SQ. FT.

 

FLOOR AREA CALCULATION

PER MENLO PARK ZONING ORDINANCE SEC. 16.04

a.

b.

122



(E) MEZZANINE

OFFICE

RESTROOM

RESTROOM

FEMALE MALE

CONFERENCE

OPEN

MEETING

OPEN

TO BELOW

OFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE

STR/ELEC

OFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE

DISPLAY

FOYER

GMP QC

STABILITY

OFFICE

(E) MANUFACTURING

FUTURE R & D AREA

(E) WAREHOUSE

(E) R&D AREA

(E) QUALITY CONTROL

(RE-MODELED)

(E) LAB

(E) LOCKERS

(E) RECEIVING

LOBBY

(E) CONFERENCE

(RE-MODELED)

(N) GALLERY

CLEAVAGE (1)

SYNTHESIS (3)

CLEAVAGE (2)

PROPOSED

CANOPY

PROPOSED

COVERED

ENTRY

PROPOSED

COVERED

ENTRY

SCREENED AREA FOR

MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT

OFFICE

OUTDOOR DECK

DECK

OFFICE

COVERED

DECK

METAL SCREEN

OPEN STAIR

FOR VIEWING

DECK

ENCLOSED

STAIR

123



124



125



126



PROPOSED PLANT LIST

STORMWATER TREATMENT PLANT LIST

KEY NOTES

127



1

2

3

4

5

6

78

9

10

11

15

12

14 13

KELLY COURT

EXISTING TREE LIST

LEGEND:

NOTES:

3

128



LEGEND:

129



130



131



132



NEW OR RELOCATED HANDICAP PARKING AT BUILDING

ENTRANCES

CONCRETE PAD FOR EMERGENCY GENERATOR

OUTDOOR TERRACE

ENTRY GATE (BOTH VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS),

METAL FENCES AND DOORS

EXISTING ELECTRICAL SWITCHGEAR AND

TRANSFORMER (WITH NEW SCREENING)

STORMWATER TREATMENT AREA

NEW LANDSCAPED AREAS AT KELLY COURT

ENTRY PLAZA AND LANDSCAPING

NEW TRASH ENCLOSURE

GREEN SCREEN

OUTDOOR FIRE-RATED CHEMICAL STORAGE UNIT

REALIGNED 26' DRIVEWAY AND ADDITIONAL ACCESS

EASEMENT

LANDSCAPE RESERVE AND PATIO

ACCESSIBLE  HATCH FOR UNDERGROUND PIPES

NEW PUBLIC SIDEWALK

H-RATED CHEMICAL STORAGE

DIESEL STORED IN GENERATOR TANK

133



(E) MANUFACTURING

FUTURE R & D AREA

(E) WAREHOUSE

(E) R&D AREA

(E) QUALITY CONTROL

(RE-MODELED)

(E) LAB

(E) LOCKERS

(E) RECEIVING

LOBBY

(E) CONFERENCE

(RE-MODELED)

(N) GALLERY

CLEAVAGE (1)

SYNTHESIS (3)

CLEAVAGE (2)

PROPOSED

CANOPY

PROPOSED

COVERED

ENTRY

PROPOSED

COVERED

ENTRY

CA3

CA2

Areas where hazardous materials may be stored and/ or used.

This is conceptual, and will be finalized once the design

has been finalized.

H-rated bulk hazardous materials storage.

Anticipated control areas in new building delineated by solid

black line CA4 will be the rest of the building.

Locations of emergency eyewash/showers, fire extinguishers,

first aid kits, etc to be determined after the design is finalized.

HMBP-HAZMAT

CA1

134



(E) MEZZANINE

OFFICE

RESTROOM

RESTROOM

FEMALE MALE

CONFERENCE

OPEN

MEETING

OPEN

TO BELOW

OFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE

STR/ELEC

OFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE

DISPLAY

FOYER

GMP QC

STABILITY

OFFICE

(E) MEZZANINE

OFFICE

RESTROOM

RESTROOM

FEMALE MALE

CONFERENCE

OPEN

MEETING

OPEN

TO BELOW

OFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE

STR/ELEC

OFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE

DISPLAY

FOYER

GMP QC

STABILITY

OFFICE

Areas where hazardous materials may be stored and/ or used.

This is conceptual, and will be finalized once the design

has been finalized.

Locations of emergency eyewash/showers, fire extinguishers,

first aid kits, etc to be determined after the design is finalized.

 

HMBP-HAZMAT

135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



C S Bio Project Description  

October 24, 2012 

 

 

 

 

 

 

399 Bradford Street          Redwood City, California  94063            Tel  650�364�6453            Fax 650�364�2618          www.des�ae.com 

 

 

CS Bio – Renovation and Expansion  

 

CS Bio is a leading provider of automated instrumentation for peptide synthesis. It was 

founded in 1993 and has an established corporate headquarters, R&D lab and 

manufacturing facility in Menlo Park. The company has grown significantly and the 

existing space can no longer meet its current needs and future growth. The company is 

looking to increase production capacity and improve the quality of its R&D and GMP 

production spaces. The purpose of this project is to modernize CS Bio’s existing 

buildings at 20 Kelly Court and to integrate the adjacent property, 1 Kelly Court, for a 

new manufacturing and office facility. 

 

Project 

The proposed project is located at 1 and 20 Kelly Court, Menlo Park. The two lots are 

owned by CS Bio and will be merged. The resulting combined lot area will be 68,228 

square feet. There is also an existing access easement of 1,039 sq. ft. to the 

southwestern corner of the site, shared with the 10 Kelly Court property. The lots are 

currently zoned as M2. The existing structures on site include (i) two connected one4

story buildings at 1 Kelly Court and (ii) a one4story building at 20 Kelly Court. These 

buildings are currently used as offices, R&D, warehouse and manufacturing facilities. 

They equal a total building area of 35,703 sq ft at 0.52 FAR. The existing parking 

provides 48 uncovered stalls on the surface parking lots. There is minimal landscaping 

at the front entry, along the western property line and at the adjacent Hetch Hetchy right4

of4way which lies to the north of the site.  

 

This CS Bio project is composed of 3 components/phases:  

(1) Demolish the existing one4story building at 1 Kelly Court site and construct a new 34

story office/manufacturing facility with the associated site improvements, 

(2) Demolish the metal4frame building at the rear of 20 Kelly Court and construct a new 

screened service yard and landscape patio, 

(3) Enhance the exterior of the concrete tilt4up building to match the new construction.  

 

The new 3–story building will have a total of 25,701 square feet of space for office and 

manufacturing uses. It will be sited at a slightly higher elevation (approximately one foot 

ATTACHMENT I

143



  

 

C S Bio – Renovation and Expansion 
October 24, 2012 

Page 2 of 5 

 

 

 

 

 

P:\CSBio\20KellyCourt\9859002\Admin\IssuedPkgs\12�1024 

Submittal\Documents\CS Bio Project description� October 24, 2012 Rev 3.doc 

©2012 

DES Architects + Engineers, Inc. 

 

higher) to meet FEMA requirements and will be connected to the existing concrete tilt4up 

building on the first floor level with ramp and stairs. A new entry lobby/elevator tower, 

placed at the southern corner, will be created as the key architectural element. This 

tower will have a very transparent appearance with full4height glazing, accent painted 

metal mullions, sunshades and metal panels. Another architecture feature is a metal 

clad box4like element at the north4east end which frames a deck at the second floor and 

viewing decks at the roof levels. Internal stairs will connect these different levels. Other 

exterior finishes of the new building will include painted cement plaster finishes, painted 

metal panels as an accent element, low4E tinted vision and spandrel glazing, metal 

sunshades/canopies, and decks with metal or glass railings. Mechanical equipment will 

be located within screened areas on the roof. The exterior of the existing concrete tilt4up 

building will be re4painted and new architectural features will be added to unify it with the 

new building. Exterior storage for hazardous materials will be provided behind the 20 

Kelly Court building in a self4enclosed chemical storage unit designed for this purpose. 

The service yard will also include an emergency generator and will be enclosed by a 

“green screen”.  

 

The existing parking lot and loading area will be reconstructed to accommodate 

additional parking spaces, landscaping, outdoor patios and walkways. CS Bio is willing 

to obtain a permit from SFPUC to utilize 4 parcels of Hetch Hetchy property to the north 

of the site. It will utilize part of the paved area (restored by SFPUC at the conclusion of 

their major pipe installation) for parking purposes. The rest of the leased property will be 

used as a landscape reserve and improved for future parking if CS Bio needs it.  

 

Two approximately 180’ long landscaped strips will be created along the eastern and 

western property line for rainwater and stormwater treatment. Based on a hydrology 

study, these areas are designed to satisfy the treatment needs of both the project site 

and the Hetch Hetchy property, including the Landscape Reserve (if or when it is 

improved).  

 

One heritage tree and 14 non4heritage trees will be removed.  With the new 

improvements, a water4conserving plant palette will be installed, including 24 new trees. 

144



  

 

C S Bio – Renovation and Expansion 
October 24, 2012 

Page 3 of 5 

 

 

 

 

 

P:\CSBio\20KellyCourt\9859002\Admin\IssuedPkgs\12�1024 

Submittal\Documents\CS Bio Project description� October 24, 2012 Rev 3.doc 

©2012 

DES Architects + Engineers, Inc. 

 

In addition to the new pathways and patios on4site, a new sidewalk will be installed 

rimming Kelly Court. 

 

This project will enhance the neighborhood and C S Bio’s image while providing the 

much4needed square footage for future growth. It will add a net 1,725 square feet to 

existing uses, thus resulting in a total of 37,428 square feet of building area. The outside 

Chemical Storage unit is included in the coverage but is not included in the Gross Floor 

Area calculations because this is a non4occupiable space.  The unit measures 9’42.5” in 

interior height but has a shelf across at 4’46” (less than 6’46”) and therefore a person 

cannot stand up within the unit.  The unit is not conditioned space and does not have a 

building code compliant exit door, and has no windows or skylights. The FAR will be at 

0.55 based on the combined site of 1 and 20 Kelly Court. Site coverage by structures will 

be 33%.  

 

The new building as proposed will exceed the 35’ height limitation in the M2 zone.  The 

extra height is need to allow for the production and mechanical equipment on the first 

floor and the third floor roof decks with access to mechanical equipment which supports 

the manufacturing process.  The top of the elevator tower is anticipated to be 47’ and the 

viewing decks, 44’. 

 

All exit paths, building structure and 26’ wide driveway for fire access will be within the 

project site.   

 

 

Parking  

This project is required to provide 92 parking stalls based on the proposed office and 

manufacturing use. To satisfy this requirement, it will have 59 new parking stalls on the 

subject properties (1 and 20 Kelly Court). Additionally, it will obtain a permit for the Hetch 

Hetchy property (4 parcels) to the north and use portion of the land for parking. San 

Francisco Public Utilities Commission has recently re4paved part of the property that pre4

existed before the underground pipe replacement project. Utilizing a tandem parking 

concept, this paved area will provide the additional 33 stalls. The rest of the Hetch 

145



  

 

C S Bio – Renovation and Expansion 
October 24, 2012 

Page 4 of 5 

 

 

 

 

 

P:\CSBio\20KellyCourt\9859002\Admin\IssuedPkgs\12�1024 

Submittal\Documents\CS Bio Project description� October 24, 2012 Rev 3.doc 

©2012 

DES Architects + Engineers, Inc. 

 

Hetchy property will remain as dirt/landscape reserve. This concept of tandem parking is 

justified by the following reasons: 

 

1. C S Bio estimated that the new combined facility (office, manufacturing, R&D and 

warehouse) would have 65 employees max. It does not need additional parking 

stalls. It also encourages employees using public transit and ride4share programs. 

2. The tandem parking program will be operated and co4ordinated internally, so that C 

S Bio's employees and visitors will not need to find parking spaces on street. 

3. It will best utilize the existing asphalt4paved area without creating more impervious 

surfaces and reduce the need of treatment.  

4. It will facilitate future repair work at the Hetch Hetchy property with reduced amount 

of paving.  

5. It will provide significant savings to C S Bio. The company can invest more into the 

new facility and exterior improvements. The finished project will greatly enhance the 

image of O'Brian Drive neighborhood and encourage other re4development projects. 

 

 

Signage 

The project proposes to have a new company sign at the front façade of the existing 

concrete tilt4up building. The new sign, measured to roughly 3’45” x 37’41”, will sit on top 

of a metal canopy and below the roof parapet. The individual letters will be constructed 

of metal and externally lit. It is designed to complement other exterior enhancement of 

the existing 20 Kelly Ct building such as the metal canopy and wall projections. The sign 

will also highlight the new facility and it will be visible from Kelly Ct and O'brien Drive. We 

believe that only the increased letter height can achieve this effect and be compatible 

with the scale and proportion of other architectural elements. Together, they add to the 

distinct character of the project. 

 

The proposed sign design is included as part of the Conditional Development Permit 

application. 

 

 

146



  

 

C S Bio – Renovation and Expansion 
October 24, 2012 

Page 5 of 5 

 

 

 

 

 

P:\CSBio\20KellyCourt\9859002\Admin\IssuedPkgs\12�1024 

Submittal\Documents\CS Bio Project description� October 24, 2012 Rev 3.doc 

©2012 

DES Architects + Engineers, Inc. 

 

Hazardous Materials 

CS Bio uses hazardous materials such as solvents, acids and compressed gases in the 

development and manufacture of its products.  CS Bio currently has a Hazardous 

Materials Business Plan in place and will be updating it with the construction of the new 

facility. The facility generates hazardous wastes (primarily solvents), which are 

transported off4site for disposal by a licensed contractor. 

 

Facility operations do not require an industrial wastewater discharge permit, nor an air 

emissions permit.  The diesel generator will require an air emissions permit, and once a 

unit is ready to be installed, a permit application will be submitted to the Bay Area Air 

Quality Management District. 

 

The attached Building Occupancy Classification Forms serve as the chemical inventory, 

and include allowances for future growth.  

 

 

 

147



LEED Scorecard LEED�NC v2009
Project name: CS Bio Renovation and Expansion NEW CONSTRUCTION
Project address: 20 Kelly Court, Menlo Park
DES project number: 9859.002

Points Achieved Total Points Achieved and Targeted: Total Rating System Possible Points: 110

Points Targeted Rating Level Pre�Certification Estimate:

Points Questionable

Points Not Possible Certified 40�49 points   Silver 50�59 points   Gold 60�79 points   Platinum 80�110 points

23 1 2 Sustainable Sites 26 Points 7 3 4 Materials & Resources 14 Points

Yes T ? No Yes T ? No

Y Prereq 1 Construction Activity Pollution Prevention P Y Prereq 1 Storage & Collection of Recyclables P

1 Credit 1 Site Selection 1 1 Credit 1.1* Building Reuse, Maintain 55% of Existing Walls, Floors & Roof 1

5 Credit 2 Development Density & Community Connectivity 5 1 Building Reuse, Maintain 75% of Existing Walls, Floors & Roof 1

1 Credit 3 Brownfield Redevelopment 1 1 Building Reuse, Maintain 95% of Existing Walls, Floors & Roof 1

6 Credit 4.1 Alternative Transportation, Public Transportation Access 6 1 Credit 1.2 Building Reuse, Maintain 50% of Interior Nonstructural Elements 1

1 Credit 4.2 Alternative Transportation, Bicycle Storage & Changing Rooms 1 1 Credit 2 Construction Waste Management, Divert 50% 1

3 Credit 4.3 Alternative Transportation, Alternative Fuel Vehicles 3 1 Construction Waste Management, Divert 75% 1

2 Credit 4.4 Alternative Transportation, Parking Capacity 2 1 Credit 3 Materials Reuse, 5% 1

1 Credit 5.1 Site Development, Protect or Restore Habitat 1 1 Materials Reuse, 10% 1

1 Credit 5.2 Site Development, Maximize Open Space 1 1 Credit 4 Recycled Content, 10% (post<consumer + 1/2 pre<consumer) 1

1 Credit 6.1 Stormwater Design, Quantity Control 1 1 Recycled Content, 20% (post<consumer + 1/2 pre<consumer) 1

1 Credit 6.2 Stormwater Design, Quality Control 1 1 Credit 5 Regional Materials, 10% Extracted, Processed & Manufactured 1

1 Credit 7.1 Heat Island Effect, Non<Roof 1 1 Regional Materials, 20% Extracted, Processed & Manufactured 1

1 Credit 7.2 Heat Island Effect, Roof 1 1 Credit 6 Rapidly Renewable Materials 1

1 Credit 8 Light Pollution Reduction 1 1 Credit 7 Certified Wood 1

5 3 2 Water Efficiency 10 Points 11 4 Indoor Environmental Quality 15 Points

Yes T ? No Yes T ? No

Y Prereq 1 Water Use Reduction P Y Prereq 1 Minimum IAQ Performance P

2 Credit 1 Water Efficient Landscaping, Reduce by 50% 2 Y Prereq 2 Environmental Tobacco Smoke (ETS) Control P

2 Water Efficient Landscaping, Reduce by 50% and No Potable 2 1 Credit 1 Outdoor Air Delivery Monitoring 1

2 Credit 2 Innovative Wastewater Technologies 2 1 Credit 2 Increased Ventilation 1

2 Credit 3 Water Use Reduction, 30% 2 1 Credit 3.1 Construction IAQ Management Plan, During Construction 1

1 Water Use Reduction, 35% 1 1 Credit 3.2 Construction IAQ Management Plan, Before Occupancy 1

1 Water Use Reduction, 40% 1 1 Credit 4.1 Low�Emitting Materials, Adhesives & Sealants 1

1 Credit 4.2 Low�Emitting Materials, Paints & Coatings 1

10 9 16 Energy & Atmosphere 35 Points 1 Credit 4.3 Low�Emitting Materials, Flooring Systems 1

Yes T ? No 1 Credit 4.4 Low�Emitting Materials, Composite Wood & Agrifiber Products 1

Y Prereq 1 Fundamental Commissioning of Building Energy Systems P 1 Credit 5 Indoor Chemical & Pollutant Source Control 1

Y Prereq 2 Minimum Energy Performance P 1 Credit 6.1 Controllability of Systems, Lighting 1

Y Prereq 3 Fundamental Refrigerant Management P 1 Credit 6.2 Controllability of Systems, Thermal Comfort 1

1 Credit 1 Optimize Energy Performance, 12% 1 1 Credit 7.1 Thermal Comfort, Design 1

1 Optimize Energy Performance, 14% 1 1 Credit 7.2 Thermal Comfort, Verification 1

1 Optimize Energy Performance, 16% 1 1 Credit 8.1 Daylight & Views, Daylight 75% of Spaces 1

1 Optimize Energy Performance, 18% 1 1 Credit 8.2 Daylight & Views, Views for 90% of Spaces 1

1 Optimize Energy Performance, 20% 1

1 Optimize Energy Performance, 22% 1 6 Innovation in Design Process 6 Points

1 Optimize Energy Performance, 24% 1 Yes T ? No

1 Optimize Energy Performance, 26% 1 1 Credit 1 Exemplary Performance: 1

1 Optimize Energy Performance, 28% 1 1 Exemplary Performance: 1

1 Optimize Energy Performance, 30% 1 1 Exemplary Performance: 1

1 Optimize Energy Performance, 32% 1 1 Innovation in Design: 1

1 Optimize Energy Performance, 34% 1 1 Innovation in Design: 1

1 Optimize Energy Performance, 36% 1 1 Credit 2 LEED™ Accredited Professional 1

1 Optimize Energy Performance, 38% 1

1 Optimize Energy Performance, 40% 1 1 3 2 Regional Priority: 94089 4 Points

1 Optimize Energy Performance, 42% 1 Yes T ? No

1 Optimize Energy Performance, 44% 1 1 Credit 1 Regional Priority: SSc5.2 1

1 Optimize Energy Performance, 46% 1 1 Regional Priority: WEc2

1 Optimize Energy Performance, 48% 1 1 Regional Priority: WEc3 1

1 Credit 2 Onsite Renewable Energy, 1% 1 1 Regional Priority: EAc2

1 Onsite Renewable Energy, 3% 1 1 Regional Priority: MRc1.1 1

1 Onsite Renewable Energy, 5% 1 1 Regional Priority: IEQc8.1 1

1 Onsite Renewable Energy, 7% 1

1 Onsite Renewable Energy, 9% 1

1 Onsite Renewable Energy, 11% 1

1 Onsite Renewable Energy, 13% 1

2 Credit 3 Enhanced Commissioning 2

2 Credit 4 Enhanced Refrigerant Management 2

3 Credit 5 Measurement & Verification 3

2 Credit 6 Green Power 2

63

GOLD

Prepared by DES Architects + Engineers 

63

23

26

DRAFT
ATTACHMENT J

148



ATTACHMENT K

149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



� � � � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � 	 � � �  �  � � � � � �  � � � 	  � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  !" # $ % & & � � � ' ( )* + , - + , "� � � � � � . � / � � ) %  0 � � & � 1 �  � � � � � � ) 0 � ) 0 � . / % % � 2 �  ' . % 3 � � � ( � 4 � 3 � � 1 � % � ) � 3 % . � � ) 0 % . � 5 % ( .� � 3  ' . ) � � � % � ) � 3 % . ) � ) 0 % & � 2 % .  � % �  % .  � � � ' � � ) � 2 � ( � 4 % ( , 6 � % � ( . ! 7 0 %  � � � � � � 8 � .2 � ' � 3 % 3 � � , 9 9 - ! : ' ( � � � ) � � & � ( � 3 '  ) & � � % 8 � . �  � � � & % ) % & � � % � 2 � ' ) � � � ) % 3 . � � ) 0 % . � 5 % ( . 2 � (� � � ' 2 �  ) ' ( � � 1 � � 3 � ( �  % . . 3 % 4 % & � � � % � ) � 8 � ) 0 � 2 �  ' . � � � % � ) � 3 % � ( � 3 '  ) � � � ! : ' (  � � � & % ) %& � � % � 2 � ' ) � � � ) % 3 . � � ) 0 % . � 5 % ( .  � � / % 2 � ' � 3 � � & � / � ( � ) � ( � % . 2 ( � � ( % . % � (  0 � ( 1 � � � 5 � ) � � � . ) �� � � ' 2 �  ) ' ( � � 1 2 �  � & � ) � % . 8 � ( & 3 8 � 3 % ! � � � � � � & . � 0 � . � 2 ' & & .  � & % � ; < = � � . � %  ) % 3 � % � ) � 3 %� ( � 3 '  ) � � � & � / � ( � ) � ( � � � 3 0 � & 3 . � < ( ' 1 > � � ' 2 �  ) ' ( � � 1 ? �  % � . % 2 ( � � ) 0 % . ) � ) % � 2 � � & � 2 � ( � � � ! @ A BC D E F G F H I J K L M N E B O P L H A E N O H L Q J B J H F M B O C L K K B O B D K E A D R M M B S B G L J Q B R H D R M E T U V W K D M B J B J H F M B O C L KH L X F E L G L W I D R M E G F R F E D G O H N M F B O YZ [ \ F L N O B O A D ] D K M L N O Q D H B K F D G O O N E A D O O L G S B R H O ^ D E F M O D R M E L Q J K B O O B M W D O B O F R H A B M B S B G L J Q B R H D R MQ D R N C D E H N K B L C F H O J K L M N E H O Y @ A B C D E F G F H I W B R B K D H B O A D ] D K M L N O _ D O H B O ` J K F Q D K F G I O L G S B R H O a ^ _ A F E A D K BH K D R O J L K H B M L C C O F H B C L K M F O J L O D G P I D G F E B R O B M E L R H K D E H L K Yb D E F G F H I L J B K D H F L R O M L R L H K B c N F K B D R F R M N O H K F D G _ D O H B _ D H B K M F O E A D K W B J B K Q F H ^ R L K D R D F K B Q F O O F L R OJ B K Q F H Y @ A B C N H N K B M F B O B G W B R B K D H L K _ F G G K B c N F K B D R D F K B Q F O O F L R O J B K Q F H ^ D R M L R E B D N R F H F O K B D M I H L P BF R O H D G G B M ^ D J B K Q F H D J J G F E D H F L R _ F G G P B O N P Q F H H B M H L H A B \ D I d K B D d F K e N D G F H I U D R D W B Q B R H f F O H K F E H Yd g D ] D K M L N O U D H B K F D G O \ N O F R B O O V G D R F O F R E G N M B M _ F H A H A F O D J J G F E D H F L R Y @ A F O g U \ V F O J K B G F Q F R D K I ^ D R M _ F G GP B K B S F O B M D O R B E B O O D K I L R E B H A B C D E F G F H I M B O F W R A D O P B B R C F R D G F ] B M Y@ A B D H H D E A B M \ N F G M F R W h E E N J D R E I Z G D O O F C F E D H F L R b L K Q O O B K S B D O H A B E A B Q F E D G F R S B R H L K I ^ D R M F R E G N M BD G G L _ D R E B O C L K C N H N K B W K L _ H A Y

ATTACHMENT L

169



UN-035 1/7 - Rev. 09/05/08 

Building Occupancy Classification Inventory Form 
For Use by Unidocs Member Agencies or where approved by your Local Jurisdiction 

 
Plan Check No.:       Proposed Occupancy Classification:  Signature of Preparer: Date: 8/13/12 

Control Area No.: B1-1 Is this area protected by an automatic sprinkler system?   Yes;   No. How Many Floors Does This Building Have? 2
 

1.  
Room 

No. 

2.  
Chemical Name & 

Concentration 

3.  
CFC 

Class* 

4.  
Quantity in 

Storage 

5. 
 

Quantity in Use* 

6.  
Stored in  
Approved 
Cabinet 

 (Not Trade Name) Physical Health  Open System Closed System  

Mfg Acetic Acid  - Corr 10.5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.2 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

R&D,Lab,
Mfg Acetic Anhydride CL II Corr 10 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.05 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Lab, Mfg Acetone  FL IB Irr 12  
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

R&D,Lab,
Mfg Acetonitrile  FL IB Irr 250 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

40 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

R&D,Lab,
Mfg  Dichloromethane  - carcinog

en 50 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

29 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

R&D,Lab,
Mfg Diisopropylcarbodiimide  reactive tox 200 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

30.7 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg N,N’-Dicyclohexylcarbodiimide - Corr, 
sens 25 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

R&D,Lab,
Mfg N,N-Diisopropylethylamine FL IB Corr 8 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

3 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

R&D,Lab,
Mfg Dimethylformamide  CL II Carcino

gen 300 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

181 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg, Lab 1,2-Ethanedithiol CL II Tox 1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.05 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg, Lab Ethanol FL IB Irr 40  
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.001 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.03 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

* Please see the instructions on the reverse side of this page for a list of CFC hazard classes and definitions of Open System use and Closed System use. 
 

     

 

170



UN-035                                                               - Rev. 09/05/08 

Building Occupancy Classification Inventory Form 
For Use by Unidocs Member Agencies or where approved by your Local Jurisdiction 

 
Plan Check No.:       Proposed Occupancy Classification:  Signature of Preparer: Date: 7/13/12 

Control Area No.:  Is this area protected by an automatic sprinkler system?   Yes;   No. How Many Floors Does This Building Have? 2
 

1.  
Room 

No. 

2.  
Chemical Name & 

Concentration 

3.  
CFC 

Class* 

4.  
Quantity in 

Storage 

5. 
 

Quantity in Use* 

6.  
Stored in  
Approved 
Cabinet 

 (Not Trade Name) Physical Health  Open System Closed System  

Mfg, Lab Ethyl Ether FL IA Irr 40 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Formic Acid  CL II Corr 40 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.2 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Hydrochloric Acid  - Corr 10 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.05 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

R&D,Lab,
Mfg Isopropyl Alcohol FL IB Irr 40 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.001 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

R&D,Lab,
Mfg Methanol FL IB Irr 30  

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.2 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

3.25 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Phosphoric Acid - Corr 15 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.05 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

2 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

R&D,Lab,
Mfg piperidine FL IB Corr,tox 150 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

10 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

R&D,Lab,
Mfg Triethylamine FL IB Corr,tox 6 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.2 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

4 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg, Lab Trifluoroacetic Acid - Corr,tox 100 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.3 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

6 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg, Lab Triisopropylsilane CL II Irr 75 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Nitric Acid 70% OX2 Corr 10 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.2 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

* Please see the instructions on the reverse side of this page for a list of CFC hazard classes and definitions of Open System use and Closed System use. 
 

     

 

171



UN-035 3/7 - Rev. 09/05/08 

Building Occupancy Classification Inventory Form 
For Use by Unidocs Member Agencies or where approved by your Local Jurisdiction 

 
Plan Check No.:       Proposed Occupancy Classification:  Signature of Preparer: Date: 7/13/12 

Control Area No.:  Is this area protected by an automatic sprinkler system?   Yes;   No. How Many Floors Does This Building Have? 2
 

1.  
Room 

No. 

2.  
Chemical Name & 

Concentration 

3.  
CFC 

Class* 

4.  
Quantity in 

Storage 

5. 
 

Quantity in Use* 

6.  
Stored in  
Approved 
Cabinet 

 (Not Trade Name) Physical Health  Open System Closed System  

Mfg Chloroform - Carcino
gen 3 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.02 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg, Lab Dimethyl sulfoxide  CL IIIB Sens 12 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.005 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg 1,4 dioxane FL IB carcinog
en 4 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.001 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Sulfuric acid WR2,OX1 Corr,tox 1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.05 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Ethyl acetate FL IB Irr 10 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg 4-methylmorpholine FL IC Corr 2 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.005 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Hexanes FL IB - 5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Tetrahydrofuran FL IB Sens 1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.05 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg, Lab Anisole CL II - 1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.02 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.06 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg, Lab Ammonium Hydroxide - Corr, 
Tox 15 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.2 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

* Please see the instructions on the reverse side of this page for a list of CFC hazard classes and definitions of Open System use and Closed System use. 
 

     

 
 
 

172



UN-035                                                               - Rev. 09/05/08 

Building Occupancy Classification Inventory Form 
For Use by Unidocs Member Agencies or where approved by your Local Jurisdiction 

 
Plan Check No.:       Proposed Occupancy Classification:  Signature of Preparer: Date: 7/13/12 

Control Area No.:  Is this area protected by an automatic sprinkler system?   Yes;   No. How Many Floors Does This Building Have? 2
 

1.  
Room 

No. 

2.  
Chemical Name & 

Concentration 

3.  
CFC 

Class* 

4.  
Quantity in 

Storage 

5. 
 

Quantity in Use* 

6.  
Stored in  
Approved 
Cabinet 

 (Not Trade Name) Physical Health  Open System Closed System  

Mfg Benzene FL IB Carcinoge
n 2 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

.5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg, Lab Pyridine FL IB carcinog
en 4 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.005 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Toluene FL IB OHH 6 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg, Lab Phenol Corr, FS tox 2 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.005 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Compressed Air - - - 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

N/A 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

3 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

QC Compressed Oxygen gas OX - - 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

N/A 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

3 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Compressed Nitrogen gas NFG - 225 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

N/A 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

225 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg, Lab Compressed Hydrofluoric Gas corrosive highly 
toxic 1.5 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

N/A 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Liquid Nitrogen Cryo - - 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

N/A 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

67 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Carbon Dioxide Solid (Dry Ice)           - - 50 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

N/A 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

50 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

QC, Lab Compressed Helium gas - - - 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

N/A 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

9 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

QC Compressed Hydrogen gas Flam gas - - 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

N/A 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

3 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

R&D, 
Mfg Fmoc protected natural amino acids - Irr 400 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

10 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

173



UN-035 5/7 - Rev. 09/05/08 

Mfg, Lab Fmoc protected unusual amino acids - Irr 30 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg, Lab Boc protected natural amino acids - Irr 200 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.05 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg, Lab Boc protected unusual amino acids - Irr 10 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.05 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Polystyryl resins - - 60 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

12 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

R&D,Lab,
Mfg 

O-Benzotriazole-N,N,N’,N’-tetramethyl-uronium-
hexafluoro-phosphate (HBTU) reactive Irr 30 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.3 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg, Lab 
2-(1H-7-Azabenzotriazol-1-yl)--1,1,3,3-tetramethyl 
uronium hexafluorophosphate Methanaminium 
(HATU) 

reactive Irr 20 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.005 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

R&D,Lab,
Mfg Hydroxybenzotriazole hydrate (HOBt.H2O) 

Combusti
ble tox 30 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

3 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Biotin - Irr 200 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.02 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Sodium chloride - - 30 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.005 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Magnesium sulfate - - 1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.05 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Sodium Sulfate  - - 2 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Sodium bicarbonate - - 20 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Potassium Carbonate  - - 10 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg potassium chloride - - 1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Lauric acid - tox 1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Benzoic acid - tox 1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Copper iodide - Irr 0.2 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Silver carbonate - - 0.3 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

174



UN-035                                                               - Rev. 09/05/08 

Mfg cholic acid  - - 0.2 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg 3-Bromopropionic acid Combustible  tox 0.2 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Palmitic acid - - 1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Tartaric acid - Irr 0.1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg p-Toluenesulfonic acid flammable tox 0.5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Chloranil - tox 0.3 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Imidazole - Irr 0.8   
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Octadecylamine - Irr 0.5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Polyethyleneglycol - - 0.2 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg sodium thiophenolate - tox 0.5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Triphenylmethanol - tox 0.6 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg 2-napthoyl chloride - Irr 0.05 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Sodium Cyanoborohydride FS Tox, 
corr 0.1 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Succinic anhydride WR1 Sens 0.2 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Bromothymol blue - tox 0.1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Thiourea - Highly 
tox 0.1 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg 4, 4'-dimethoxybenzephenone - Irr 0.05 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg 2,4'-Dimethoxyacetophenone - Irr 0.2 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Phenyl silane - tox 0.1  gal. 0.01  gal.   gal.  Yes 

175



UN-035 7/7 - Rev. 09/05/08 

 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 No 

Mfg 3,6‐Dioxa‐1,8‐octanedithiol  oxidizer tox 0.2 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Boron trifluoride dimethyl etherate combustible tox 0.15 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Benzyl amine combustible Highly 
tox 0.05 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg methyl levulinate  Combustible - 0.15 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg 2,2,2‐trifluoroethanol Combustible tox 0.2 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg ethanol amine Combustible Highly 
tox 0.2 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg octyl amine Combustible Highly 
tox 0.1 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg benzoyl chloride  CL IIIB, WR1 Corr 0.25 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg butyl alcohol FL IC OHH 0.3 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.05 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg heptanoic acid - tox 0.2 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg 1‐octanol CL IIIB sens 0.1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg 2‐butene‐1,4‐diol Combustible - 0.1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg, Lab Thioanisole  CL II Irr 0.3 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.001 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg benzaldehyde CL IIIB Irr 0.1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg Acrylic acid Combustible Highly 
Tox 0.15 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Mfg hexylamine Combustible Tox 0.1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

* Please see the instructions on the reverse side of this page for a list of CFC hazard classes and definitions of Open System use and Closed System use. 
     

  

176



UN-035 1/2 - Rev. 09/05/08 

Building Occupancy Classification Inventory Form 
For Use by Unidocs Member Agencies or where approved by your Local Jurisdiction 

 
Plan Check No.:       Proposed Occupancy Classification:  Signature of Preparer: Date: 8/13/12 

Control Area No.: B2-1 Is this area protected by an automatic sprinkler system?   Yes;   No. How Many Floors Does This Building Have? 2
 

1.  
Room 

No. 

2.  
Chemical Name & 

Concentration 

3.  
CFC 

Class* 

4.  
Quantity in 

Storage 

5. 
 

Quantity in Use* 

6.  
Stored in  
Approved 
Cabinet 

 (Not Trade Name) Physical Health  Open System Closed System  
Pur, 

Buffer Misc acids  - Corr 50 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Pur, 
Buffer Misc flam liquids  FL IB Irr 20 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Pur, 
Buffer Acetonitrile  FL IB Irr 220 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

40 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Pur, 
Buffer Dichloromethane  - carcinog

en 100 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

29 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Pur, 
Buffer Diisopropylcarbodiimide  reactive tox 100 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

30.7 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Pur, 
Buffer N,N’-Dicyclohexylcarbodiimide - Corr, 

sens 25 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Pur, 
Buffer N,N-Diisopropylethylamine FL IB Corr 16 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

3 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Pur, 
Buffer Dimethylformamide  CL II Carcino

gen 400 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

181 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Pur, 
Buffer Misc combustible liquids CL II Tox 10 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Pur, 
Buffer Misc toxic liquids - Tox 10 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

* Please see the instructions on the reverse side of this page for a list of CFC hazard classes and definitions of Open System use and Closed System use. 
 

     

 
 

177



UN-035                                                               - Rev. 09/05/08 

Building Occupancy Classification Inventory Form 
For Use by Unidocs Member Agencies or where approved by your Local Jurisdiction 

 
Plan Check No.:       Proposed Occupancy Classification:  Signature of Preparer: Date: 8/13/12 

Control Area No.: B2-2 Is this area protected by an automatic sprinkler system?   Yes;   No. How Many Floors Does This Building Have? 2
 

1.  
Room 

No. 

2.  
Chemical Name & 

Concentration 

3.  
CFC 

Class* 

4.  
Quantity in 

Storage 

5. 
 

Quantity in Use* 

6.  
Stored in  
Approved 
Cabinet 

 (Not Trade Name) Physical Health  Open System Closed System  
Pur, 

Buffer Isopropyl Alcohol FL IB Irr 60 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.001 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Pur, 
Buffer Methanol FL IB Irr 50  

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.2 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

3.25 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Pur, 
Buffer Phosphoric Acid - Corr 25 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.05 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

2 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Pur, 
Buffer piperidine FL IB Corr,tox 110 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

10 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Pur, 
Buffer Triethylamine FL IB Corr,tox 12 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.2 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

4 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Pur, 
Buffer Chloroform - Carcino

gen 3 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.02 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

 * Please see the instructions on the reverse side of this page for a list of CFC hazard classes and definitions of Open System use and Closed System use. 
 

     

 

178



UN-035 1/2 - Rev. 09/05/08 

Building Occupancy Classification Inventory Form 
For Use by Unidocs Member Agencies or where approved by your Local Jurisdiction 

 
Plan Check No.:       Proposed Occupancy Classification:  Signature of Preparer: Date: 8/13/12 

Control Area No.: B2-2 Is this area protected by an automatic sprinkler system?   Yes;   No. How Many Floors Does This Building Have? 2
 

1.  
Room 

No. 

2.  
Chemical Name & 

Concentration 

3.  
CFC 

Class* 

4.  
Quantity in 

Storage 

5. 
 

Quantity in Use* 

6.  
Stored in  
Approved 
Cabinet 

 (Not Trade Name) Physical Health  Open System Closed System  
Pur, 

Buffer Misc acids  - Corr 50 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Pur, 
Buffer Misc flam liquids  FL IB Irr 20 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Pur, 
Buffer Acetonitrile  FL IB Irr 220 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

40 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Pur, 
Buffer Dichloromethane  - carcinog

en 100 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

29 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Pur, 
Buffer Diisopropylcarbodiimide  reactive tox 100 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

30.7 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Pur, 
Buffer N,N’-Dicyclohexylcarbodiimide - Corr, 

sens 25 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Pur, 
Buffer N,N-Diisopropylethylamine FL IB Corr 16 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

3 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Pur, 
Buffer Dimethylformamide  CL II Carcino

gen 400 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

181 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Pur, 
Buffer Misc combustible liquids CL II Tox 10 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Pur, 
Buffer Misc toxic liquids - Tox 10 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

* Please see the instructions on the reverse side of this page for a list of CFC hazard classes and definitions of Open System use and Closed System use. 
 

     

 
 

179



UN-035                                                               - Rev. 09/05/08 

Building Occupancy Classification Inventory Form 
For Use by Unidocs Member Agencies or where approved by your Local Jurisdiction 

 
Plan Check No.:       Proposed Occupancy Classification:  Signature of Preparer: Date: 8/13/12 

Control Area No.: B2-2 Is this area protected by an automatic sprinkler system?   Yes;   No. How Many Floors Does This Building Have? 2
 

1.  
Room 

No. 

2.  
Chemical Name & 

Concentration 

3.  
CFC 

Class* 

4.  
Quantity in 

Storage 

5. 
 

Quantity in Use* 

6.  
Stored in  
Approved 
Cabinet 

 (Not Trade Name) Physical Health  Open System Closed System  
Pur, 

Buffer Isopropyl Alcohol FL IB Irr 60 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.001 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Pur, 
Buffer Methanol FL IB Irr 50  

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.2 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

3.25 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Pur, 
Buffer Phosphoric Acid - Corr 25 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.05 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

2 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Pur, 
Buffer piperidine FL IB Corr,tox 110 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

10 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Pur, 
Buffer Triethylamine FL IB Corr,tox 12 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.2 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

4 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Pur, 
Buffer Chloroform - Carcino

gen 3 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.01 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.02 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

 * Please see the instructions on the reverse side of this page for a list of CFC hazard classes and definitions of Open System use and Closed System use. 
 

     

 

180



UN-035 1/2 - Rev. 09/05/08 

Building Occupancy Classification Inventory Form 
For Use by Unidocs Member Agencies or where approved by your Local Jurisdiction 

 
Plan Check No.:       Proposed Occupancy Classification:  Signature of Preparer: Date: 8/13/12 

Control Area No.: B2-3 Is this area protected by an automatic sprinkler system?   Yes;   No. How Many Floors Does This Building Have? 2
 

1.  
Room 

No. 

2.  
Chemical Name & 

Concentration 

3.  
CFC 

Class* 

4.  
Quantity in 

Storage 

5. 
 

Quantity in Use* 

6.  
Stored in  
Approved 
Cabinet 

 (Not Trade Name) Physical Health  Open System Closed System  

Synthesis Acetic Acid  - Corr 7 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.2 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Synthesis Acetic Anhydride CL II Corr 5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.05 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Synthesis Acetonitrile  FL IB Irr 220 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

55 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Synthesis  Dichloromethane  - carcinog
en 50 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

29 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Synthesis Diisopropylcarbodiimide  reactive tox 200 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

30.7 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Synthesis N,N-Diisopropylethylamine FL IB Corr 8 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

3 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Synthesis Dimethylformamide  CL II Carcino
gen 300 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

181 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Synthesis Compressed Nitrogen gas NFG - 225 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

N/A 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

225 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Synthesis Misc flam liquids FL IB  50 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

     
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

           
           

* Please see the instructions on the reverse side of this page for a list of CFC hazard classes and definitions of Open System use and Closed System use. 
 

     

 

181



UN-035                                                               - Rev. 09/05/08 

Building Occupancy Classification Inventory Form 
For Use by Unidocs Member Agencies or where approved by your Local Jurisdiction 

 
Plan Check No.:       Proposed Occupancy Classification:  Signature of Preparer: Date: 8/13/12 

Control Area No.: B2-3 Is this area protected by an automatic sprinkler system?   Yes;   No. How Many Floors Does This Building Have? 2
 

1.  
Room 

No. 

2.  
Chemical Name & 

Concentration 

3.  
CFC 

Class* 

4.  
Quantity in 

Storage 

5. 
 

Quantity in Use* 

6.  
Stored in  
Approved 
Cabinet 

 (Not Trade Name) Physical Health  Open System Closed System  

     
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

     
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

     
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Synthesis Isopropyl Alcohol FL IB Irr 20 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.001 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Synthesis Methanol FL IB Irr 20  
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.2 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

3.25 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Synthesis Phosphoric Acid - Corr 10 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.05 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

2 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Synthesis piperidine FL IB Corr,tox 100 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

10 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Synthesis Triethylamine FL IB Corr,tox 6 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.2 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

4 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Synthesis Ammonium Hydroxide - Corr, 
Tox 5 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.2 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

     
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

     
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

* Please see the instructions on the reverse side of this page for a list of CFC hazard classes and definitions of Open System use and Closed System use. 
 

     

 

182



UN-035 1/1 - Rev. 09/05/08 

Building Occupancy Classification Inventory Form 
For Use by Unidocs Member Agencies or where approved by your Local Jurisdiction 

 
Plan Check No.:       Proposed Occupancy Classification:  Signature of Preparer: Date: 8/13/12 

Control Area No.: B2-4 Is this area protected by an automatic sprinkler system?   Yes;   No. How Many Floors Does This Building Have? 2
 

1.  
Room 

No. 

2.  
Chemical Name & 

Concentration 

3.  
CFC 

Class* 

4.  
Quantity in 

Storage 

5. 
 

Quantity in Use* 

6.  
Stored in  
Approved 
Cabinet 

 (Not Trade Name) Physical Health  Open System Closed System  

     
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0.2 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

QC Lab 
(2nd floor) Misc solvents FL IB  10 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

10   
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

1st Floor Misc solvents FL IB  5 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

H Room Acetonitrile  FL IB Irr 1000 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

1 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

55 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

H room Misc solvents FL IB  110 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

     
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

     
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

     
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

     
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

     
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

     
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

* Please see the instructions on the reverse side of this page for a list of CFC hazard classes and definitions of Open System use and Closed System use. 
 

     

 

183



UN-035 1/1 - Rev. 09/05/08 

Building Occupancy Classification Inventory Form 
For Use by Unidocs Member Agencies or where approved by your Local Jurisdiction 

 
Plan Check No.:       Proposed Occupancy Classification: H Signature of Preparer: Date: 8/13/12 

Control Area No.:  Is this area protected by an automatic sprinkler system?   Yes;   No. How Many Floors Does This Building Have?          1
 

1.  
Room 

No. 

2.  
Chemical Name & 

Concentration 

3.  
CFC 

Class* 

4.  
Quantity in 

Storage 

5. 
 

Quantity in Use* 

6.  
Stored in  
Approved 
Cabinet 

 (Not Trade Name) Physical Health  Open System Closed System  

     
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

   
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

 
    

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

   
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

 
    

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

   
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

   
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

   
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

H-rated 
Exterior Acetonitrile FL IB - 3850 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0  0 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

H-rated 
Exterior dimethylformamide CL II - 440 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0  0 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

H-rated 
Exterior dichloromethane carcinogen - 440 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0  0 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

H-rated 
Exterior Hazardous Waste solvents FL IB - 550 

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0  0 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Exterior quantities are estimates.  Maximum capacity of storage unit is 96 drums-the quantity of 
each material may vary, but number of drums will not exceed 96.  

 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

   
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

Generator Diesel fuel CL II  0 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

0  660 
 gal. 
 lbs. 
 ft.3 

 Yes 
 No 

* Please see the instructions on the reverse side of this page for a list of CFC hazard classes and definitions of Open System use and Closed System use. 
 

     

 

184



Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E

Hazard Classification Significant Chemical(s) Impacting Changes Unit of Measure Existing 2010 CUP Proposed CUP

diesel fuel Gallons not listed 660

n,n‐dimethylformamide Gallons 110 2564

110 3452

methanol Gallons 55 145

isopropyl alcohol Gallons 55 184

acetonitrile (ACN) Gallons 110 5990

piperidine Gallons 55 510

diisopropylcarbomide Gallons not listed 720

misc solvents Gallons not listed 300

waste solvents Gallons 220 550

495 8411

Corrosives not specified 1145

methylene chloride (aka dichloromethane) Gallons 110 860

110 876

Toxics not specified 725 gal + 764 lb

Nitrogen Cubic Feet 255 900

255 909

Oxidizing gases
not specified 3

Flammable gases
not specified 3

Highly Toxic gases
not specified 3

Liquid Nitrogen Gallons not listed 67

not listed 67

Some chemicals are classified with multiple hazards (e.g., piperidine is flammable, corrosive and toxic)

Inert Gases

Total Non‐flammable gases (cf)

Cryogenic fluids

Total Cryogens (gal)

Total Corrosive Liquids (gal)

Total oxidizing gases (cf)

Total highly toxic gases (cf)

Total flammable gases (cf)

Total Toxics (gal/lb)

CSBio Chemical Inventory Comparison

By Hazard Class

Combustible Liquids

Flammable Liquids

Total Combustible Liquids (gal)

Total Flammable Liquids (gal)

Total Carcinogenic Liquids (gal)

Carcinogenic Liquids

10/17/2012

ATTACHMENT N

185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



ATTACHMENT P

205



206



207



208



209



210



 
MEMORANDUM 

DATE: September 5, 2012 
 
TO:  Housing Commission 
 
FROM: Kyle Perata, Assistant Planner 
 
 
RE:  Approval of Below Market Rate Housing Agreement with CS 

Bio, Inc for commercial linkage fees for 20 Kelly Court 
 
 
 
SITE LOCATION 

 
The site currently contains two legal parcels that would be merged into one 
parcel as part of this project. The overall site is approximately 1.6 acres or 
68,228 sq ft, more particularly described as Assessor’s Parcel Numbers: 055-
433-240 and 055-433-130, or more commonly known as 1 and 20 Kelly Court.  
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The applicant is requesting a Conditional Development Permit (CDP) for the 
demolition of the existing building located at 1 Kelly Court and partial demolition 
of the building located at 20 Kelly Court. The project site currently includes two 
legal parcels, which would be merged as part of the proposed project. The 
project site contains two buildings with a total gross floor area of approximately 
35,703 square feet. The project would result in the demolition of approximately 
23,976 square feet of gross floor area, and the construction of 25,701 square feet 
of gross floor area, for a total gross floor area of 37,428 square feet, which is a 
net increase of approximately 1,725 square feet of gross floor area.  Both parcels 
are located in the M-2 (General Industrial) zoning district and the project would 
require a rezoning from M-2 (General Industrial) to M-2 (X) (General Industrial, 
Conditional Development District) and approval of a CDP to exceed the 
maximum height limit of 35 feet, and establish the required parking, allowed 
signage, required setbacks, and incorporate the outside storage of nonhazardous 
materials and equipment within a service yard. The Hetch Hetchy right-of-way to 
the rear of the property, a separate parcel, would be utilized for required parking 
spaces, which would partially be contained in landscape reserve. The proposed 

 

211



Housing Commission Meeting of September 5, 2012 
20 Kelly Court BMR Agreement 
Page 2 
 
 

 

project would also include an increase in the quantities of hazardous materials 
from the previously approved use permit due to the increase in production 
activities, associated with the development and manufacturing of instruments for 
the biotech industry. All hazardous materials, with the exception of diesel fuel for 
a proposed emergency generator, would be stored within the building, or in a fire-
rated chemical storage container. As part of this proposal, a heritage size Italian 
stone pine (31-inch diameter), in fair condition is proposed to be removed. 
 
The developer is required to comply with Chapter 16.96 of City’s Municipal Code, 
(“BMR Ordinance”), and with the BMR Housing Program Guidelines adopted by 
the City Council to implement the BMR Ordinance (“Guidelines”).  In order to 
process its application, the BMR Ordinance requires the developer to submit a 
Below Market Rate Housing Agreement.  This Agreement is intended to satisfy 
that requirement and must be approved prior to the issuance of a building permit.  
 
RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT COMPONENT 
 
Residential use of the property is not allowed by the applicable zoning 
regulations.  The developer does not own any sites in the city that are available 
and feasible for construction of sufficient below market rate units to satisfy the 
requirements of the BMR Ordinance.  Based on these facts, staff has found that 
development of such units off-site in accordance with the requirements of the 
BMR Ordinance and Guidelines is not feasible. 
 
BMR HOUSING PROGRAM REQUIREMENT 
 
The developer shall pay the applicable in lieu fee as provided in the BMR 
Ordinance and Guidelines. The applicable in lieu fee is that which is in effect on 
the date the payment is made. The in lieu fee will be calculated as set forth in the 
table below; however, the applicable fee for the Project will be based upon the 
amount of square footage within Group A and Group B at the time of payment. 
 
 Use Group Fee/ 

SF SF Fee 

Existing Office Portion A-Office/R&D       $14.71 13,965 ($205,425.15) 
Existing Non-Office Portion B- All other Com     $7.98 21,738 ($173,469.24) 
Proposed Office Building A-Office/R&D        $14.71 22,989 $338,168.19 
Proposed Non-Office Portion   B- All other Com     $7.98 14,439 $115,223.22 
Total Estimated Fee    $74,497.02 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed BMR agreement. 
 

212



Housing Commission Meeting of September 5, 2012 
20 Kelly Court BMR Agreement 
Page 3 
 
 

 

ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. 20 Kelly Court Proposed BMR Housing Agreement 
B. Project Plans (Select Sheets) 

 
V:\STAFFRPT\HC\2012\090512 - BMR Agreement 20 Kelly Court.doc  
 

213



� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� 	 	 
 � � � � � � � 
 	 �� �  � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � ! � " � � # � � � � � � � $ � � # % & � � ' � ( ) * + � � �)  � , � , � � � � � , - � . " , #  , � / ( % � 0 � � � � 1 � 2 % % � � 3 , � � � 3 # % % �4 5 6 7 8 9 : 8 8 6 ; < 6 = = > ? @ 5 > A > > @ 7 B C @ D D 8 ? > 8 6 @ E F G H I J A J 7 B @ 5 > K ? A 7 B 7 L @ 8 6 @ 7 M > N : 7 = ? 7 B C 4 D B O > 8 > B < > P D D A JQ R S S T U S S V4 D A A 7 L L 7 D B > 8 L W 8 > L > B @ F K B B > 9 D L > 8 X Y M D B B > 9 : 8 8 6 ; Z 4 5 6 7 8 [ X \ : = 7 6 B B 6 ] D ? 7 < ^ X N 8 7 C 7 ? _ 6 B P 6 B ? 6 = = Z _ 7 < > 4 5 6 7 8 [ X` 6 = = ; 4 6 ? 7 C 6 B X 4 6 8 D = ; B 4 = 6 8 ^ > Z 6 8 8 7 M > ? 6 @ E F a H I A 6 B ? = > O @ 6 @ b F a E I A [ J` @ 6 O O W 8 > L > B @ F c ; = > W > 8 6 @ 6 X W = 6 B B > 8 6 B ? \ : L @ 7 B 9 : 8 I 5 ; X 4 D A A : B 7 @ ; ] > M > = D I A > B @ 9 6 B 6 C > 8U d e f g S h T T R i i j k l m nP 6 B ? 6 = ` D : @ 5 X 9 > B = D W 6 8 ^ 8 > L 7 ? > B @ 6 B ? > A I = D ; > > o 7 @ 5 @ 5 > 4 6 = 7 O D 8 B 7 6 4 D 6 = 7 @ 7 D B O D 8 4 7 @ 7 p > B L o 7 @ 5] 7 L 6 q 7 = 7 @ 7 > L F L I D ^ > 8 > C 6 8 ? 7 B C Z r [ = > C 6 = 6 = @ > 8 B 6 @ 7 M > L @ D 8 > C : = 6 @ 7 D B L 8 > = 6 @ 7 B C @ D = D o 7 B < D A > 5 D : L 7 B C s = D o7 B < D A > 5 D : L 7 B C 6 B ? < 8 > 6 @ 7 B C 6 I : q = 7 < 5 D : L 7 B C 6 : @ 5 D 8 7 @ ; Jg d Q j t f S U Q g f u h k j u ur J K I I 8 D M 6 = D O \ : = ; E X v H r v ` I > < 7 6 = 9 > > @ 7 B C 9 7 B : @ > LU T l h R k F 9 D @ 7 D B w ` > < D B ? Z 9 D L > 8 w ] D ? 7 < ^ [ @ D 6 I I 8 D M > @ 5 > A 7 B : @ > L X I 6 L L > ? a H r Z 4 = 6 8 ^ > 6 q L > B @ [ Jx D @ > F 4 D A A 7 L L 7 D B > 8 4 = 6 8 ^ > 6 8 8 7 M > ? 6 @ E F a H I A Jv J y I ? 6 @ > D B @ 5 > z D : L 7 B C { = > A > B @ 6 B ? z D : L 7 B C { = > A > B @ ` : q < D A A 7 @ @ > >e f g S h T T R i i j k lx > M 6 ? 6 9 > 8 8 7 A 6 B V @ 5 6 B ^ > ? L @ 6 O O 6 B ? < D A A 7 L L 7 D B > 8 L X q : @ 7 L B D @ 7 B O 6 M D 8 D O 8 > ? : < 7 B C @ 5 > 5 D : L 7 B C7 B M > B @ D 8 ; J\ 6 ; ` 7 > C > = V L I D ^ > 8 > C 6 8 ? 7 B C @ 5 > L < 5 D D = ? 7 L @ 8 7 < @ X @ 5 > 8 > 6 8 > B D B > o O : B ? L 6 B ? @ 5 > L < 5 D D = L 6 8 > q > ; D B ?< 6 I 6 < 7 @ ; J K ? ? 7 @ 7 D B 6 = L @ : ? > B @ L 5 6 M > 6 O 7 L < 6 = 7 A I 6 < @ JO D = = D o 7 B C L I > 6 ^ > 8 L L I D ^ > 7 B O 6 M D 8 D O A 6 7 B @ 6 7 B 7 B C ` 5 6 8 D B W 6 8 ^ 6 L 6 W 6 8 ^ FP 7 < P : ? A 6 B{ ? 7 > | D = ? q > 8 C\ D 5 B P ; 6 B] 6 B 9 ; > 8 LP 7 < 5 6 8 ? z 6 8 ? > C 8 > >c = 6 : L ] D > 8 B > 8` 5 6 B ? 6 N 6 5 = > LP 6 B ? 6 = ` D : @ 5 V 6 = L D L I D ^ > 7 B L : I I D 8 @ D O 6 B 7 @ > A 5 > 8 > O > 8 > B < > ? 7 B > 6 8 = 7 > 8 < D A A > B @ L J\ 7 A } 7 L 5 > 8] > 8 > ^ 9 6 8 L 6 B D{ 8 7 < ~ 8 7 C 5 @\ 6 B > ; 9 ; > 8 L{ 8 7 < N ; : B B

ATTACHMENT R

214



9 6 ; 6 ` > o 6 = ?9 6 8 ; 9 > 8 ^ > 8 @9 7 @ @ 8 6 6 B ? K = > 6 8 z D ^ A 6 q 6 ? 7\ 6 B > @ � 7 @ @ = > O 7 > = ?N 7 = = 4 D C C L 5 6 = =c 7 A q > 8 = ; N 7 8 B9 7 < 5 6 > = 4 D 8 o 7 Bc 7 A | = > B Bl � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � JN G J 4 D B L 7 ? > 8 8 > < D A A > B ? 6 @ 7 D B @ D @ 5 > W = 6 B B 7 B C 4 D A A 7 L L 7 D B 8 > C 6 8 ? 7 B C @ 5 > N > = D o 9 6 8 ^ > @ P 6 @ > Z N 9 P [6 C 8 > > A > B @ O D 8 v H c > = = ; 4 D : 8 @ JU T l h R k F 9 D @ 7 D B w ` > < D B ? Z 9 D L > 8 w 4 6 ? 7 C 6 B [ @ D 6 I I 8 D M > 7 @ > A X I 6 L L > ? E H Jx D @ > F 4 D A A 7 L L 7 D B > 8 4 = 6 8 ^ > = > O @ 6 @ b F a E I A JN a J 4 D B L 7 ? > 8 8 > < D A A > B ? 6 @ 7 D B @ D @ 5 > W = 6 B B 7 B C 4 D A A 7 L L 7 D B 8 > C 6 8 ? 7 B C @ 5 > N > = D o 9 6 8 ^ > @ P 6 @ > Z N 9 P [6 C 8 > > A > B @ O D 8 r H G E � � N 8 7 > B ] 8 7 M > JU T l h R k F 9 D @ 7 D B w ` > < D B ? Z 9 : 8 8 6 ; w _ 6 B P 6 B ? 6 = = [ @ D 6 I I 8 D M > 7 @ > A X I 6 L L > ? E H JT d Q j e R Q l u U k � U k k R f k T j i j k l u4 r J 4 D A A 7 L L 7 D B 9 > A q > 8 P > I D 8 @K B : I ? 6 @ > o 6 L I 8 D M 7 ? > ? q ; K B B > 9 D L > 8 D B @ 5 > z D : L 7 B C ` @ > > 8 7 B C 4 D A A 7 @ @ > > J4 v J ] 7 L < : L L @ 5 > z D : L 7 B C { = > A > B @ 4 D A A : B 7 @ ; ~ D 8 ^ L 5 D I L 5 > = ? K : C : L @ r b 6 B ? v G X v H r v` D A > 7 B O D 8 A 6 @ 7 D B o 6 L L 5 6 8 > ? J� d h k � R Q i U l h R k h l j i u V x D B > Jj d e f g S h T T R i i j k l m � V x D B > J� d U � � R f Q k i j k l V � 5 > A > > @ 7 B C 6 ? � D : 8 B > ? 6 @ � F r H I A J

215



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

216



 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT  
 

Council Meeting Date: November 27, 2012 
Staff Report #: 12-180 

 
Agenda Item #: F-1 

 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS:  Approve a Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to 

Sign a Memorandum of Understanding Between the City 
of Menlo Park and the County of Alameda for the 
Regional Renewable Energy Procurement Project and 
Provide Feedback on the Potential of Installing 
Photovoltaic Carports at Four City Facilities  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council: 
 

1. Approve a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to sign a Memorandum of 
Understanding (Attachment A), between the City of Menlo Park and the County 
of Alameda for the Regional Renewable Energy Procurement Project; and 
 

2. Provide feedback on the potential of installing photovoltaic carports at four city 
facilities.  

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Regional Renewable Energy Procurement Project (R-REP) is an initiative that will 
utilize collaborative procurement to purchase renewable energy systems for public 
agencies throughout Alameda, Contra Costa, San Mateo, and Santa Clara Counties. 
Working collaboratively with other agencies instead of individually to purchase 
renewable power leads to a significant reduction in renewable energy system costs, 
transaction costs and administrative time, and enhances leverage for public agencies in 
negotiations for renewable energy systems.  
 
The project works by designating one lead agency to organize participants from other 
agencies, prepare and issue solicitations for renewable power vendors, and provide 
template documents for participants to finalize purchases. Agency participants are 
required to submit city/county facility sites with a high potential for renewable power 
generation to the lead agency. The lead agency then organizes all site information from 
participants into bundled packages for renewable power vendors to bid on.  
 
 

217



The lead agency for R-REP is Alameda County, and currently includes the following 
agency participants: 
 

• California Department of 
Transportation 

• California Highway Patrol 
• Castro Valley Sanitary District 
• Central Contra Costa Sanitary 

District 
• Berkeley 
• Fremont 
• Martinez 
• Mountain View 
• Menlo Park 
• Oakland 

• Redwood City 
• Richmond 
• Walnut Creek 
• Contra Costa County 
• Alameda County 
• San Mateo County 
• Santa Clara County 
• Delta Diablo Sanitation District 
• Hayward Area Recreation 

and Park District (HARD)

 
The R-REP is based upon the successful Silicon Valley Collaborative Renewable 
Energy Procurement (SV-REP) Project, which was the largest multi-agency 
procurement of renewable energy in the country at the time of completion. The project 
started in July 2007 and was completed in March 2011.  Nine agencies were involved in 
this project, and include: 
 

• Cupertino 
• Milpitas 
• Morgan Hill 
• Mountain View 
• Pacifica 
• Santa Clara County 

• Santa Clara County 
Transportation Authority 

• South Bayside Waste 
Management Authority 
(SBWMA) 

• Los Gatos 
 
Seventy sites were selected for the project, which resulted in installing 14.4 Mega Watts 
(MW) of photovoltaic power that covered over four million square feet of rooftops, 
ground mount facilities, and carports. All cities used power purchase agreements 
(PPAs) for financing the project. The Alameda R-REP expects to break this record with 
up to 40 MW of power generation potential across approximately 170 sites from 
participating agencies.  
 
The Alamada R-REP will differ from the SV-REP by expanding renewable power 
choices and financing options. R-REP allows agencies to choose from wind, solar, 
and/or fuel cell power projects.  Participants will also be able to choose from three 
financing options: 
 

1. Direct Purchase –This involves using existing cash reserves to outright purchase 
the systems. The agency would be responsible for all ownership concerns, 
including Operations & Maintenance (O&M), regular system cleaning, and 

218



monitoring of system production. In many situations, this may yield the greatest 
long-term returns, but requires cash up-front.  
 

2. Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) – This involves an agency entering into a 
contract with a third party to purchase all energy produced by a renewable 
energy system installed on property owned by the agency. This third party would 
own the system and would be fully responsible for all ownership costs, including 
financing, maintenance, insurance, and system production. This has less cost 
savings than direct purchase, but does not require cash up-front.  
 

3. Lease/Loan – In this situation, an agency would make payments to a third party 
on a monthly basis over 10 to 20 years. In many such arrangements, the agency 
would be responsible for all ownership concerns, just as with a Direct Purchase.  

 
During the solicitation process, renewable power vendors would provide costs for all 
three financing options, which would allow an agency to evaluate the best financing 
option to move forward with. However, if most participants are not interested in a 
particular financing option, such as direct purchase, then it would be excluded from the 
solicitation.  
 
Participating in a regional effort takes a commitment towards following timelines 
provided by the lead agency. Currently, to remain a participant in R-REP the City must: 
 

1. Complete feasibility studies for their selected sites by November 30, 2012. These 
studies provide preliminary data that will be used to develop solicitations by 
Alameda County.  
 

2. Submit a signed MOU from the City Council by November 30, 2012 (Attachment 
A) to Alameda County. The MOU defines the roles and responsibilities of each 
Participating Agency and enables the development of the R-REP Request for 
Proposal (RFP) by Alameda County on behalf of the participating agencies. 

 
Upon completion of the feasibility studies by all participating agencies, a technical and 
financial consultant retained by Alameda County at no cost to participating agencies will 
assist in the design of the procurement process and provide support during the 
solicitation process, proposal evaluation, and contract negotiations.   
 
Renewable power vendors will be selected through a fair, open and competitive bid 
process and the Public Contracting Code will be followed. Once vendors are selected 
by Alameda County and a committee of participating agencies, the discretion to proceed 
with the development of a project at each of the sites considered will still be retained by 
participating agency Boards and City Councils. Vendors are expected to be selected in 
March 2013. This item will then be reviewed by Council again in May 2013 for final 
consideration on project sites and financing.  
 

219



The City of Menlo Park will specifically benefit from the installation of renewable energy 
through sustained reductions in utility operating costs, and reducing up to 473 tons of 
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions from government operations per year. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Menlo Park Potential Renewable Power Sites 
The City has completed feasibility studies (Attachment B) for the following sites being 
considered for inclusion in the project: 
 

• Corporation yard 
• Arrillaga Gymnasium 
• Belle Haven Childcare Center 
• Onetta Harris Community Center/Menlo Park Senior Center/Kelly Park 
• Arrillaga Gymnastics Center 

 
Staff did consider other sites, such as the library and the entire civic center, but the age 
of rooftops, building structure capacity, and complicated metering did not allow for a 
cost effective renewable energy project.  
 
Only photovoltaic (PV) systems were evaluated for each site on rooftop and carports. 
Technology for fuel cells has not been widely used yet and is not necessarily the more 
environmentally friendly choice because it still requires some type of gas, such natural 
gas. Wind power was also not evaluated due to a number of barriers, such as the length 
of time it would require for environmental clearance, potential noise levels, and 
community aesthetic values.  
 
One of the main findings in the feasibility study determined that all sites except for the 
Belle Haven Childcare Center would utilize some carport structures in order to achieve 
an 80% energy offset with renewable power.  There is flexibility in the placement of 
carports for some sites, such as the Corporation Yard and Onetta Harris Community 
Center, where the maximum system size shown in the feasibility study is not needed for 
a significant energy offset. However, most sites have a constrained area due to tree 
shading and usable roofing area. The Onetta Harris Center may have the option for only 
rooftop PV; however, in order to provide the best pricing opportunities, the sites will be 
submitted as shown in the feasibility study.  
 
At this time the design of the carports is unknown, and only conceptual placements of 
carports are shown in the feasibility report and Attachment C. Once a vendor is selected 
by the City in May 2013, detailed drawings of carport designs will be submitted and 
brought to Council for final approval. Installing carports may be considered a new 
structure on city facilities, and staff is working with the Community Development 
Department on the appropriate review process. At this time staff is seeking feedback 
from the City Council to include sites with carports in the R-REP.  The City can at any 
time withdraw or remove sites from R-REP after the vendor is selected.  
 

220



Financing Options and Associated Savings  
The feasibility study also evaluated costs and savings for direct purchase, power 
purchase agreements (PPAs), and loans for PV systems. Table 1 provides a summary 
of the results in the feasibility study.  
 

*Percent savings not calculated at Net Present Value (NPV). Solar rebates are included in the savings. 
Operations and Maintenance of PV system is included for direct purchase and loan.  
 
It is important to note that savings will be greater than shown above by 10-15% when 
sites are bundled with 19 other agencies. Although direct purchase provides the largest 
savings, it is not a likely path for the City because it would require an upfront cost 
estimated at $1.7 million. The City could consider a loan for the PV systems. The 
California Energy Commission is offering one percent interest loans to government 
agencies that install renewable power.  
 
A PPA is another viable option for the City to consider because it requires no upfront 
cost, still provides operational savings, and does not require the City to operate and 
maintain the PV system. In addition, PPAs generally include a buy out option after 
seven to ten years, which could increase savings further. PPAs offer fixed pricing over 
the term of the contract that is lower than PG&E rates. This is a substantial benefit not 
only because of the cost savings, but it allows the city to appropriately budget energy 
consumption costs for facilities rather than trying to predict PG&E pricing, which has 
increased 60% between 2000 and 2010 (U.S. Energy Information Administration). 
PG&E prices are expected to continue to increase due to SB 1078 that requires PG&E 
and other utilities to achieve a 33% renewable power mix by 2020. Currently, PG&E is 
at a 19% renewable power mix. This will require installation of new infrastructure with 
costs passed on to rate payers.  
 
Key Details in the Memorandum of Understanding  
As noted earlier, signing the MOU is essential to the process because it defines the 
roles and responsibilities of participating agencies and is intended to provide stability to 

Table 1: Summary of Operational Savings by Installing PV over 25 years 
Costs and 
Savings* over 25 
Years 

Corp 
Yard 

Gymnasium Childcare 
Center 

Onetta 
Harris 

Gymnastics Total 

Current 
Energy 
Costs (NPV) 

$446,756  $1,437,775  $148,582  $728,370  $1,050,348  $3,811,832  

Direct 
Purchase 
Savings* 

71% 69% 60% 60% 57% Average 
63%*  
($1,840,387) 

Loan Savings* 64% 61% 51% 50% 47% Average 
55%*  
($1,818,280) 

PPA Savings*  47% 43% 33% 31% 27% Average 
36%* 
($1,345,558) 

221



the project during the procurement solicitation process. One of main provisions of the 
MOU states that participating agencies and the County of Alameda cannot withdraw 
sites listed from the project 30 days prior to the solicitation issuance until vendors have 
been selected. However, there is no penalty or liability as a result of any withdrawal 
after the 30 days.  
 
The reason for this term is that solicitation will include “bundles,” inclusive of renewable 
sites across agencies. The intention of bundling sites is to achieve economies of scale 
and sufficiently reduce vendors’ transaction costs so as to receive the best pricing 
possible. If agencies are able to withdraw from the project from thirty days prior to the 
issuance of the RFP, or at any time during the solicitation, this will impact the bundling 
strategy, which may then negatively impact pricing for the other agencies included in 
that bundle. 
 
The City Attorney has participated in reviewing numerous drafts of the MOU prior to 
approving the final version in Attachment A.  
 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
If the City chooses a PPA, there would be no upfront costs to install the system and no 
operations and maintenance costs. The City would pay for the energy produced by the 
PV systems, which would offset current costs paid to PG&E, and as noted in the 
feasibility study would produce cost savings to the city in the first year. 
 
If a loan financing option is chosen, the City would have to make payments for the 
system through existing funds. The City could use the cost savings from the PV system 
to make payments on the loan. Further analysis would be required to determine if this is 
the best option for the City.  
 
If a direct purchase option is chosen, the City would need to use existing cash reserves 
to purchase the PV system. The City could use the cost savings from the PV system to 
replenish the City’s reserves or utilize savings for community renewable or energy 
conservation programs consistent with the City’s Climate Action Plan.  
 
The impact to participate in R-REP is staff time, and continued participation could shift 
environmental project and program priorities. If the City decides to move forward with 
installing PV systems at city facilities in May 2013, staff recommends hiring a project 
management consultant to review design and construction activities to ensure that PV 
systems will operate according to vendor specifications and agreed upon terms. 
Depending on the number of sites approved, the estimated cost for this task would be 
up to $50,000, and would be incorporated in the FY 13-14 sustainable practices 
operating budget funded by the General Fund.  
 
 
 
 

222



POLICY ISSUES 
 
Installing renewable power on city facilities is consistent and recommended in the 
Climate Action Plan. This project could potentially reduce 473 tons of GHG emissions 
per year for the City. In addition, the project is consistent with sustainable budget 
practices by reducing operating costs.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
Installing PV rooftops and carports are exempt from California Environmental Quality 
Review (CEQA) under Existing Facilities 15301. In addition, state legislation SB 226 
(2011) exempts both PV rooftop and parking lot projects from environmental review. 
The legislation is in the process of being codified into CEQA guidelines.  
 
Signature on File______________ Signature on File _____________ 
Rebecca Fotu  Charles Taylor 
Environmental Programs Manager Public Works Director 
 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this 

agenda item being listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
  

A. Resolution and Memorandum of Understanding 
 

B. Solar Feasibility Study by Optony  
 

C. PV Carport Design Samples 
 
 

223



RESOLUTION NO. 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO 
PARK AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
MENLO PARK AND THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA FOR THE 
REGIONAL RENEWABLE ENERGY PROCUREMENT PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park has identified the installation of photovoltaic (PV) 
systems on City owned properties as a key measure in the City’s Climate Action Plan; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park wishes to take advantage of potential efficiencies 
when such purchases are made in large volumes; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Regional Renewable Energy Procurement Project (R-REP) will allow 
large volume purchases of renewable energy or renewable energy generation 
equipment to be made through a regional, multi-jurisdiction purchasing arrangement 
whereby project sites are aggregated into groups on the basis of  the type of technology 
and geographic location, various risk and other financing related factors; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park acknowledges that the transaction costs associated 
with purchasing renewable energy can be reduced when all the participating agencies 
agree to the same terms and conditions incorporated within standardized template 
documents; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park desires that Alameda County, by and through its 
General Services Agency, shall be the Lead Agency for issuing a solicitation to 
purchase renewable energy; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park thereby wishes to participate in the R-REP.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Menlo Park 
hereby authorizes the City Manager to enter into an Memorandum of Understanding 
(Exhibit A) between the City of Menlo Park and the County of Alameda for the Regional 
Renewable Energy Procurement Project. 
 
I, Margaret S. Roberts, City Clerk of the City of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that 
the above and foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a 
meeting by said Council on the twenty-seventh day of November, 2012, by the 
following vote: 
 
AYES:   

NOES:   

224



ABSENT:   

ABSTAIN:  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of 
said City on this twenty-seventh day of November, 2012. 
 
 
 
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC  
City Clerk  
        

225



 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING FOR REGIONAL RENEWABLE ENERGY 

PROCUREMENT 

 

This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) is entered into as of ____________ __, 2012 (the 

“Effective Date”) by and among the following California jurisdictions: County of Alameda 

(“Alameda County”), ____________________, ____________________, 

____________________, ____________________, ____________________, 

____________________, ____________________, ____________________, 

____________________, ____________________, ____________________, 

____________________, ____________________, ____________________, 

____________________, ____________________, ____________________, 

____________________, and  ____________________.   Signatories to this MOU are referred 

to herein as “the “Parties” and individually as a “Party”. 

 

Recitals 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to purchase renewable energy for their operations; 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to take advantage of potential efficiencies when such purchases are 

made in large volumes; 

 

WHEREAS, large volume purchases of renewable energy or renewable energy generation 

equipment will be made through  a regional, multi-jurisdiction purchasing arrangement whereby 

project sites are aggregated into groups on the basis of  the type of technology and geographic 

location, various risk and other financing related factors;  

 

WHEREAS, large volume purchases likely result in more efficient procurement than would 

otherwise be available if individual jurisdictions independently purchased renewable energy; 

226



 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire that Alameda County, by and through its General Services 

Agency, shall be the lead Party for issuing a solicitation to purchase renewable energy (the 

“Solicitation”);  

 

WHEREAS, the Parties acknowledge that the transaction costs associated with purchasing 

renewable energy can be reduced when the Parties agree to the same terms and conditions 

incorporated within standardized template documents; and 

 

WHEREAS, at the completion of the Solicitation process, subject to the approval of their 

respective Board, Council or applicable governing body, the Parties may enter into power 

purchase, financing, real estate and/or other agreements with selected vendors (“Vendors”) 

substantially in the forms of the Template Documents to be prepared pursuant to Sections 1.A 

and 1.B of this MOU. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of their mutual promises and agreements, and subject to 

the terms, conditions and provisions hereinafter set forth, the Parties agree as follows: 

 

SECTION 1. ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF ALAMEDA COUNTY 

 

A. Alameda County shall (i) prepare and issue the Solicitation, and be the lead jurisdiction 

and point of contact for the bidders, (ii) create templates of transaction documents, which 

may include, without limitation, a direct acquisition agreement, Qualified Energy 

Conservation Bond documentation, a form of power purchase agreement and a form of 

lease (the “Template Documents”),  and (iii) timely coordinate and communicate with 

Parties, as necessary throughout the procurement process through recommendation for 

award and negotiations with the bidders. 

 

B. Alameda County will consult with the Parties with respect to the content of the 

Solicitation and the terms and conditions contained within Template Documents, 

provided, however, that any comments or concerns must be communicated to Alameda 

County within the allotted timeframe as provided by Alameda County, with such 

timeframe to afford a reasonable opportunity to respond.  

227



 

 

C. The Parties agree that Alameda County shall be the single point of contact for Vendors 

and necessary third parties throughout the Solicitation process, in order to avoid the 

potential for confusion. Alameda County agrees to provide the Parties with all relevant 

information in a timely manner.  

D. In addition to participating as the lead jurisdiction under this MOU, Alameda County is 

also a participant in the R-REP and has identified locations for renewable energy in 

Alameda County.  As such, Alameda County is conducting site surveys and will list 

potential sites within the R-REP solicitation document.  

E. Any Party may separately pursue its own solicitation of renewable energy and/or related 

facilities. 

 

SECTION 2.  ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTICIPATING 

JURISDICTIONS 

 

A.  Each Party has undertaken its own due diligence prior to entering into this MOU to 

determine the feasibility of solar, fuel cell or other feasible technology to be located at 

project sites.    

 

B. Each Party is responsible for meeting its individual legal, procedural and other 

requirements for the procurement of renewable energy. 

 

C. Parties are responsible for promptly providing site surveys, if available, of their proposed 

real property sites that may accommodate renewable energy installations, and each such 

site survey shall be prepared by a licensed engineer in a uniform, industry standard 

format.  Each Party acknowledges that to the extent it does not undertake a site survey for 

a particular site, such site (i) may not be considered for inclusion in the R-REP 

solicitation, or (ii) may be aggregated by Alameda County with other such sites into a 

higher risk group, and that pricing for such a group may be less favorable. 

 

D. Upon conclusion of the Solicitation process, the Parties may, subject to the approval of 

their respective Board, Council or applicable governing entity, enter into binding 

228



 

agreements, substantially in the form of the Template Documents, with the selected 

Vendors, provided that each Party determines, to its satisfaction, that the Vendors are 

responsible, and comply with the Party’s terms, conditions and requirements. The Parties 

may also negotiate with Vendors in order to conform the Template Documents with 

requirements of law, regulation and policy.  Alameda County shall not be responsible for 

reference checks, performance, or for compliance with any agreement, regulations, laws 

or policies, except as to this MOU and any contracts between Alameda County and 

Vendor(s). Parties are not required to contract with any Vendor. 

 

E. Parties agree to participate in the Solicitation under the lead role of Alameda County and 

agree to work cooperatively and promptly with Alameda County throughout the 

Solicitation process.  The Parties agree that time is of the essence; and failure of a Party 

to provide the required information in the requested format and within the reasonable 

deadlines established by Alameda County may result in termination of that Party’s 

participation in the Solicitation. 

 

SECTION 3. TERM OF MOU. 

The term of this MOU shall commence on the Effective Date and shall expire on June 30, 2015. 

 

SECTION 4. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE. 

The law governing this MOU shall be that of the State of California.  In the event that suit shall 

be brought by any Party to this MOU, the Parties agree that venue shall be exclusively vested in 

the State’s courts of the County of Alameda  or if federal jurisdiction is appropriate, exclusively 

in the United States District Court, Northern District of California, Oakland, California. 

 

SECTION 5. WARRANTY DISCLAIMER; LIABILITY; WAIVER. 

 

A. No warranty, express or implied, is provided by any Party as to results or success of the 

Solicitation, this MOU, or any agreements ultimately entered into by the Parties.  Each 

Party acknowledges that the others have not made, and are not making, any assurances, 

guaranties or promises with respect to the subject matter of this MOU and that each Party 

229



 

is ultimately responsible for conducting its own due diligence with respect to feasibility, 

pricing, technology, third parties and all other matters in any way related to the subject 

matter of this MOU.   

 

B. In no event shall any Party, nor its officers, agents, employers, or representatives be liable 

for any direct, indirect, incidental, special, exemplary, or consequential damages 

(including, but not limited to, procurement of substitute goods or services, loss of use, 

data, or profits, or business interruption) however caused and on any theory of liability, 

whether in contract, strict liability, or tort (including negligence or otherwise) arising in 

any way, directly or indirectly, from this MOU, participation in the Solicitation, or any 

agreement(s) between a Party and any third party, even if advised of the possibility of 

such damage. 

 

C. Each Party is responsible for negotiation, execution, administration and enforcement of 

any contract with a Vendor or third party related to the subject matter of this MOU, and 

the agreements ultimately entered into by each Party shall not be cross-defaulted or cross-

collateralized in any respect with the agreements entered into by any other Party to this 

MOU. 

 

D. No waiver by any Party to this MOU of any breach or violation of any term or condition 

of this MOU shall be deemed to be a waiver of any other term or condition contained 

herein or a waiver of any subsequent breach or violation of the same or any other term or 

condition. 

 

230



 

SECTION 6. NOTICES. 

Notices shall be deemed effective on the date delivered if delivered by personal service or 

nationally recognized overnight delivery service, or, if mailed, three (3) days after deposit in the 

U.S. Postal Service mail.  All notices and other communications required or permitted to be 

given under this MOU shall be in writing and shall be personally served, delivered by overnight 

service, or by mail, first class, certified or registered postage prepaid and return receipt 

requested, addressed to the respective Parties as follows: 

  

To: County of Alameda, GSA 

1401 Lakeside Drive, 10
th
 Floor 

Oakland, CA 94612 

Attn: Caroline Judy 

 

To: Castro Valley Sanitary District          

21040 Marshall Street 

Castro Valley, CA 94546-6021 

Attn: William Parker    

To: California Department of Transportation 

1120 N St. MS-57 

Sacramento, CA 95814 

Attn: Jeanne Scherer 

 

To: Central Contra Costa Sanitary District 

5019 Imhoff Place 

Martinez, CA 94553 

Attn: Melody LaBella 

To: California Highway Patrol 

601 North 7th Street 

P.O. Box 942898 

Sacramento, CA 95811 

Attn: Alyson Cooney  

To: City of Berkeley 

2180 Milvia Street, 2
nd

 Floor  

Berkeley, CA 94704 

Attn: Billi Romain 

 

To: City of Emeryville 

1333 Park Avenue 

Emeryville, CA 94608 

Attn: Peter Schultze-Allen 

 

 

To: City of Fremont 

39550 Liberty St. 

P.O. Box 5006 

Fremont, CA 94538 

Attn: Amy Rakley 

 

To: City of Martinez 

525 Henrietta Street 

Martinez, CA 94553 

Attn: Mike Chandler 

 

To: City of Menlo Park 

701 Laurel Street 

Menlo Park, CA 94025 

Attn: Rebecca Fotu 

To: City of Mountain View 

500 Castro Street 

P.O. Box 7540 

Mountain View, CA 94039-7540 

Attn: Steve Attinger 

 

To: City of Oakland 

250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5301 

Oakland, CA 94612 

Attn: Scott Wentworth 

To: City of Redwood City 

1017 Middlefield Road 

Redwood City, CA 94063 

Attn: Vicki Sherman 

To: City of Richmond 

450 Civic Center Plaza 

Richmond, CA 94804 

Attn: Adam Lenz 

231



 

 

To: City of Walnut Creek 

1666 North Main Street 

Walnut Creek, CA 94596 

Attn: Gwen Ho-Sing-Loy 

 

To: Contra Costa County 

Public Works Department 

2467 Waterbird Way 

Martinez, CA  94553 

Attn: Andy Green 

 

To: County of San Mateo 

555 County Center, 5th Floor 

Redwood City, CA 94063 

Attn: Andy Jain 

 

To: County of Santa Clara 

2310 N. First Street, 2nd Floor, Suite 200  

San Jose, CA 9513 

Attn: Lin Ortega 

To: Delta Diablo Sanitation Dist. To: Hayward Area Recreation and Park District 

2500 Pittsburg-Antioch Highway 

Antioch, CA 94509 

Attn: Dean Eckerson 

1099 E Street 

Hayward, CA 94541 

Attn: Larry Lepore 

  

 

SECTION 7. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 

A. If any term, condition or covenant of this MOU is held by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this MOU 

shall be valid and binding on the Parties. 

 

B. This MOU may be executed in counterparts and will be binding as executed. 

 

C. All changes or extensions to this MOU shall be in writing in the form of an amendment 

executed by all Parties. 

 

D. This MOU is entered into only for the benefit of the Parties executing this MOU and not 

for the benefit of any other individual, entity, or person. 

 

SECTION 8. WITHDRAWAL. 

 

A. No Party may withdraw from this MOU during the period from 30 days before the 

issuance of the Solicitation and the date that Vendor(s) have been selected. The date of 

the Solicitation will be pursuant to the schedule developed by Alameda County in 

collaboration with the Parties for such Solicitation. 

232



 

B. Withdrawal by any Party from this MOU shall not preclude the remaining Parties from 

continuing the Solicitation contemplated under this MOU and from using the Template 

Documents created by any Party to this MOU, unless otherwise prohibited by law. 

C. Notice of withdrawal must be provided in writing to Alameda County GSA. 

 

SECTION 9.  INDEMNIFICATION 

In lieu of and notwithstanding the pro rata risk allocation that might otherwise be imposed on the 

Parties pursuant to Government Code Section 895.6, the Parties agree that all losses or liabilities 

incurred by a Party that are in any way related to this MOU shall not be shared pro rata but, 

instead, the Parties agree that, pursuant to Government Code Section 895.4, each of the Parties 

hereto shall fully indemnify and hold each of the other Parties, their officers, board members, 

employees, and agents, harmless from any claim, expense or cost, damage or liability occurring 

by reason of the negligent acts or omissions or willful misconduct of the indemnifying Party, its 

officers, employees, or agents, under or in connection with or arising out of any work, authority, 

or jurisdiction delegated to such Party under this MOU.  No Party, nor any officer, board 

member, or agent thereof shall be responsible for any damage or liability occurring by reason of 

the negligent acts or omissions or willful misconduct of another Party hereto, its officers, board 

members, employees, or agents, under or in connection with or arising out of any work authority 

or jurisdiction delegated to such other Party under this MOU. 

 

SECTION 10.   NON-DISCRIMINATION 

The Parties shall comply with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws, regulations and 

policies concerning nondiscrimination and equal opportunity in contracting.  Such laws include 

but are not limited to the following: Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended; 

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990;  The Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Sections 503 and 

504); California Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code sections 12900 et seq.); 

and California Labor Code sections 1101 and 1102.  Parties shall not discriminate against any 

subcontractor, employee, or applicant for employment because of age, race, color, national 

origin, ancestry, religion, sex/gender, sexual orientation, mental disability, physical disability, 

medical condition, political beliefs, organizational affiliations, or marital status in the 

recruitment, selection for training including apprenticeship, hiring, employment, utilization, 

233



 

promotion, layoff, rates of pay or other forms of compensation.  Nor shall Parties discriminate in 

performing its obligations under this MOU because of age, race, color, national origin, ancestry, 

religion, sex/gender, sexual orientation, mental disability, physical disability, medical condition, 

political beliefs, organizational affiliations, or marital status.    

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this MOU as of the Effective Date 

 

County of Alameda 

AYES: 

NOES: 

EXCUSED: 

 

_____________________________________ 

PRESIDENT, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  

 

ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM:     

   

By ___________________________  By __________________________________ 

 

 

234



 

CITY OF MENLO PARK 

 

By: _____________________________________ 

 

ATTEST:       

By ___________________________ ________ 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:        

By ___________________________ ________ 

235



 Solar Feasibility Study for the City of Menlo Park  Final 

                           Confidential: Analysis prepared for the City of Menlo Park by Optony Inc. 
www.optony.com 

 

 

   
Solar Feasibility Study 

for the City of Menlo Park 

 

 
November 2, 2012 

  

FINAL 
 

 Prepared by: Optony, Inc. 

 
Contact: Ammar Khan 
     mohammad.khan@optony.com 
     408-567-9216 

  
  
 
 

 

  
 

Contents 
INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................................................... 2 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ...................................................................................................................................... 3 

SITE EVALUATIONS .......................................................................................................................................... 4 

ECONOMIC AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ......................................................................................................... 19 

NEXT STEPS .................................................................................................................................................. 21 

METHODOLOGY & ASSUMPTIONS .................................................................................................................... 22 

ABOUT OPTONY INC. ..................................................................................................................................... 23 

ATTACHMENT A - SOLAR PV PROJECT ANALYSIS SUMMARY .................................................................................. 24 

 

 
  
 

 
 

 
 

236

nsmariano
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B

nsmariano
Typewritten Text



 Solar Feasibility Study for the City of Menlo Park  Final 

         Confidential: Analysis prepared for the City of Menlo Park by Optony Inc. 
www.optony.com 

Solar Feasibility Study for the City of Menlo Park 

November 2, 2012 

This report has been prepared for the City of Menlo Park to provide a solar analysis of five potential sites for 

solar installation, with recommendations for future actions that best fit the needs and opportunities for 

renewable energy at City facilities.  

 

 What you will learn from this report: 

1. How Optony conducted this analysis for the City and the analytical approach used to develop this report. 

2. The best City sites for photovoltaic solar installations, from both technical and economic perspectives. 

3. The recommended photovoltaic (PV) solar system sizes and detailed site characteristics. 

4. Next steps for pursuing the recommended option with an approximate timeline.  

 

Introduction 

The City of Menlo Park has engaged Optony Inc. to conduct a solar feasibility for multiple City-owned sites. Solar electric 

(also called photovoltaic, or PV) installations can reduce the City’s reliance on utility-generated energy while reducing 

operational costs. By producing on-site power from a clean and renewable source (sunlight), the City can reduce its carbon 

footprint and demonstrate environmental leadership to both City residents and to neighboring jurisdictions. 

 

The City of Menlo Park, like many California municipalities, 

is faced with environmental and economic challenges. A 

major cost of operations for municipal facilities is the 

electricity usage, paid to the utility company—in this case, 

Pacific Gas & Electric (PG&E). Cities like Menlo Park are also 

required by California Assembly Bill 32 to reach specified 

carbon dioxide emissions reductions, which is expected to 

be achieved, at least partially, through investments in 

energy efficiency and on-site energy generation. Solar 

electric systems help on both accounts. Through Net Energy 

Metering (NEM) with the utility company, City electrical 

accounts with solar installations can save money on energy 

costs, while reducing greenhouse gas emissions. NEM 

allows for solar generation exported to the grid to be credited at the same price as the City would pay for energy use at the 

same time-of-day and year. There are restrictions to how much credit NEM accounts can accrue, but generally, these net-

metering arrangements give the highest value for solar production. An additional benefit of solar project construction is 

increased local economic activity, both for installation labor teams and for surrounding businesses.  

237



 Solar Feasibility Study for the City of Menlo Park  Final 

                           Confidential: Analysis prepared for the City of Menlo Park by Optony Inc. 
www.optony.com 

 

Executive Summary  

Optony has performed a detailed technical and financial analysis of sites presented by the City. Table 1 shows a brief 

summary of the results of this study. The criteria for site evaluation include electricity usage at the site, physical space 

available for PV installation, accessibility of the site for construction, existing conditions at the site including age of the 

building and structural and electrical limitations, planned energy or structural renovations, as well as surrounding 

vegetation and other shading concerns. 

 

The team collected twelve months of prior electric usage data for each site and performed a thorough analysis on all 

material aspects of a potential PV system using industry standard tools and our market leading approach. Based on the data 

analysis, we have identified sites that are viable for solar PV system installations, both from a technical and economic 

perspective.  

 

In the following pages, we have mapped out usable areas for solar PV using a modular approach to provide system and 

project design flexibility. Along with usable areas, the report analyzes potential output and details site-specific 

opportunities and constraints.  

Next steps for system procurement have been recommended for when the City proceeds with these solar projects. It is very 

important to be aware of the time-sensitive availability of certain state and federal incentives. For example, the U.S. 

Treasury Department-sponsored Investment Tax Credit (ITC) program is slated to expire in 2016. This program, which 

allows for significant cash-flow benefits for tax-eligible PV system owners, can lead to lower pricing for third-party 

ownership installation models such as PPA’s, and sometimes leases, as described below. 

 

Financial modeling is included for three likely financing mechanisms: Direct Purchase, Power Purchase Agreement, and 

Lease. Optony recommends that the City consider several or all of these options during the procurement phase when 

deciding to pursue solar projects: 

1. Direct Purchase – The City would use existing cash reserves to purchase the system outright. In this situation, the 

City would be responsible for all ownership concerns, including Operations & Maintenance (O&M), regular system 

cleaning, and monitoring of system production. In many situations, this may yield the greatest long-term returns, 

but requires cash up-front and operational costs. 

 
2. Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) – The City would enter into a contract with a third party to purchase all energy 

produced by a PV system installed on property owned by the City.  This third party would own the PV system and 

would be fully responsible for all ownership costs, including financing, maintenance, insurance, and system 

production. 

 

3. Lease/Loan – Instead of paying for purchase costs up-front, the City would pay a third party on a monthly basis 

over 10 to 20 years. In many such arrangements, the City would be responsible for all ownership concerns, just as 

with a Direct Purchase. Locally-issued bonds or renewable energy bonds, such as CREBs (Clean Renewable Energy 

Bonds) and QECBs (Qualified Energy Conservation Bonds), would fall into this category. 

 
Detailed in the following sections is a thorough report of Optony’s methodology, findings, and recommendations for this 

solar feasibility study. Optony is pleased to work with the City of Menlo Park, and we look forward to many opportunities 

for collaboration in the near future! 
 

238



 Solar Feasibility Study for the City of Menlo Park  Final 

         Confidential: Analysis prepared for the City of Menlo Park by Optony Inc. 
www.optony.com 

Site Evaluations 

The team conducted site visits at five sites presented by the City of Menlo Park: 

 Corporation Yard 

 Arrillaga Family Gymnasium 

 Belle Haven Childcare Center 

 Onetta Harris Community Center 

 Arrillaga Family Gymnastics Center 

 
A site inspection involves reviewing the overall layout of the 

proposed facility and identifying potential location 

opportunities and challenges. The age, materials, and condition of the rooftop, if available for development, are assessed, 

as photovoltaic systems typically have a 25-year lifespan and are costly to remove for roof repair or replacement. For 

rooftop sites, additional space-limiting concerns are evaluated, including the presence of HVAC equipment, parapets, 

skylights, and conduits - all of which cannot be easily relocated. For parking lot or parking structure carport PV systems, the 

main site selection issues are the availability of space for construction, surrounding vegetation, and distance to the 

electrical interconnection point. For both installation types, potentially usable areas are mapped out and a detailed shading 

analysis is conducted.  

 

Shading analysis is performed on-site within the designated usable areas, with outer boundaries set by observing industry 

installation guidelines and best practices. A shading analysis involves surveying the surroundings of the usable areas to 

identify potentially shade-causing obstructions, such as rooftop HVAC equipment, lightning conductors, antennas, trees, 

lampposts, building overhangs, and neighboring buildings. Shading must be avoided, as PV systems operate most efficiently 

in direct sunlight, and even minor shading can sometimes have a profound negative impact on system performance. 

 

As the seasons change, the sun path changes as well. In the winter months, the altitude of the sun off the horizon is lower 

in comparison to its altitude during the summer months – this leads to varying shading situations each month. In order to 

assess the amount of direct sunlight available at each usable area, the annual sun path is plotted at various points using 

hardware and software developed for use in the solar industry. Further analysis of the data yields the most optimal areas 

for solar installation at each site. 

 

Whenever possible, the electrical room at each site is inspected for 

main breaker and switchgear amperage and voltage ratings, as well 

as availability of space for additional electrical equipment. The 

location of the utility electrical meter is determined, as well, since 

the distance between the solar modules and the interconnection 

point should be minimized to reduce voltage drop and increase system efficiency. 

 

Table 1 on the following page shows a summary of the sites, along with maximum PV system sizes and recommended 

system sizes. A direct purchase cost range is shown, and the projected gross utility bill savings are also included in this table.  

239



 Solar Feasibility Study for the City of Menlo Park  Final 

         Confidential: Analysis prepared for the City of Menlo Park by Optony Inc. 
www.optony.com 

Table 1 City of Menlo Park Solar PV Project Overview 

 
Table Notes: 

1 
Cost before any incentives and/or rebates; cost range uses assumption of $3.5/Watt-DC as average installed cost, with 10% variance 

2 
Net present value (NPV) uses a 25 year financial analysis period; 4% annual discount rate; PG&E 4.5% annual escalation; A6 Time-Of-Use (TOU) utility rate schedule 

where appropriate; 0.5% annual PV system degradation; Step 10 CSI (California Solar Initiative) rebates at $0.088/kWh for first 5 years; O&M cost of $15/kW with a 
3% annual escalation; PPA rate $0.160/kWh with a 3% escalation rate 

 
Recommended system sizes are determined by using a variety of factors which include: electricity usage amounts and patterns, maximum possible energy offset, 

projected cash flows, and Net Present Value (NPV) of energy savings. All numbers are estimated and intended for planning purposes only. A kilowatt (kW) is a common 

unit for measuring power, typically for either maximum spontaneous capacity of solar generation or maximum power load of a facility. In this report, kilowatt-DC (kW-

DC) refers explicitly to Direct Current capacity of solar installations, before inversion of power to alternating current, or AC. Kilowatt-hours (kWh) is a unit of energy 

measurement to track power production or consumption over time. 

As Table 1 shows, with direct purchase of the recommended systems at mid-range prices, the City can potentially net over $1.8M in discounted electricity bill savings 

over the 25-year expected operating life of the proposed systems at the most financially beneficial electricity rate schedules available.  

A full summary of Menlo Park sites and their economic potential is included in Attachment A. 

  

 

Site Index and Name

Recommended 

PV System Size 

(kW DC)

Annual PV 

Output (kWh)

Annual Building 

Usage (kWh)

Energy 

Offset

Direct  Purchase Cost 

Range1
NPV2 Direct Purchase 

Savings NPV2 PPA Savings

Corporation Yard 49 65,194 80,240 81% $163,923 - $181,178  $                    261,012  $               203,861 

Arrillaga Family Gymnasium 166 222,438 278,368 80% $564,457 - $623,873  $                    794,903  $               604,666 

Belle Haven Child Center 21 27,157 30,320 90% $69,825 - $77,175  $                      64,207  $                 46,865 

Onetta Harris Community Center 103 136,206 166,000 82% $342,475 - $378,525  $                    314,460  $               218,045 

Arrillaga Family Gymnastics Center 158 208,311 267,596 78% $536,608 - $593,093  $                    405,805  $               272,121 

Total for All Sites 498 659,305 822,525 80% $1,677,287 - $1,853,843 1,840,386$                  $           1,345,558 

240



 Solar Feasibility Study for the City of Menlo Park  Final 

         Confidential: Analysis prepared for the City of Menlo Park by Optony Inc. 
www.optony.com 

Corporation Yard 

Site Address: 333 Burgess Drive, Menlo Park CA 94025 

Type of PV System:   Carport, Rooftop 

Current PG&E Rate Schedule:  A-10S 

Annual Energy Usage:  80,240 kWh 

Maximum System Size:   125 kW-DC 

Maximum System Output:  165,747 kWh 

Recommended System Size: 49 kW-DC 

Recommended System Output: 65,194 kWh 

Energy Offset:    over 100% possible, 81% recommended 

 

Issues: Shading from trees;   

Opportunities: Carport, rooftop, and shade structures  

 

There are five usable areas at the Corporation Yard composed of one rooftop section and four carport sections as shown in 

Figure 1 below. The white box indicates the location of the electrical room, which is located between offices and 

maintenance garage. 

 

 
Figure 1 Corporation Yard Usable Areas 

1 

3 

 5 

2 

4 

241



 Solar Feasibility Study for the City of Menlo Park  Final 

         Confidential: Analysis prepared for the City of Menlo Park by Optony Inc. 
www.optony.com 

 

Within these five sections, a PV system of 125 kW-DC can be installed. A system of that size would produce 165,747 kWh 

each year. In the last 12-months the site used 80,240 kWh of electricity.  As Table 2, below, shows, the maximum PV system 

size would offset over 200% of site’s usage. A smaller, 49 kW-DC, PV system is recommended for the Corporation Yard. The 

recommended PV system would produce 65,194 kWh of energy, offset 81% of the site’s usage, and have a high economic 

return. 

 
Table 2 Corporation Yard PV System Summary 

Section Azimuth Area (Sq. Ft.) Size (kW DC) 

Carport 

1 210° 1,668 17 

2 210° 4,220 44 

3 240° 413 4 

4 210° 5,120 54 

Rooftop 

5 210° 565 6 

Total 13,650 125 

Total System Production (kWh) 165,747 

Recommended System Size (kW) 49 

Recommended System Output (kWh) 65,194 

 

During daylight hours, excess power generated by the PV system flows back into the utility grid. Excess power is defined as 

the net power between the production and usage at the site. This excess generates credits for the site which can then be 

used up during the night. However, at the end of each calendar year, PG&E zeroes out the excess credits on all net-metered 

accounts. Essentially, the site will be producing power for the utility for free. 

 

 
Figure 2 shows Section 3 usable area 

 
Figure 3 Example view of Section 4 of the usable area 

 

Figure 2 and Figure 3 show a view Section 3 and Section 4, respectively. The trees shown in Figure 3 are north of the usable 

area and therefore should not create any shade issues. There are trees south of Section 4 as well, but those trees are far 

enough to not create any shading concerns. As for Section 3, the only concern is shade structure post location. Aside from 

that, both those locations are ideal candidates.  

 

242



 Solar Feasibility Study for the City of Menlo Park  Final 

         Confidential: Analysis prepared for the City of Menlo Park by Optony Inc. 
www.optony.com 

As indicated in Figure 1, the electrical room is located at the rear of the offices building. The main building voltage is 

120/208V and the switchgear and main breaker are rated 600A. There is no available space within this electrical room for 

any additional electrical equipment related to a PV system. Additional space maybe available outside the electrical room, 

behind the building. 

 

 
    

  

243



 Solar Feasibility Study for the City of Menlo Park  Final 

         Confidential: Analysis prepared for the City of Menlo Park by Optony Inc. 
www.optony.com 

Arrillaga Family Gymnasium 

Site Address: 600 Alma Street, Menlo Park CA 94025 
 

Type of PV System:   Carport, Rooftop 

Current PG&E Rate Schedule:  A-10S 

Annual Energy Usage:  278,368 kWh 

Maximum System Size:   168 kW-DC 

Maximum System Output:  224,776 kWh 

Recommended System Size: 166 kW-DC 

Recommended System Output: 222,438 kWh 

Energy Offset:    81% possible; 80% recommended 

  

Issues:  Clay tile roofing material; shade from trees; limited roof and carport space; low energy offset  

Opportunities:      Carport and Rooftop installation  

 

The Arrillaga Family Gymnasium is a one-story structure built in 2010. The pitched portion of the rooftop is composed of 

flat concrete tiles. For this study, part of the pitched rooftop and sections of the parking lot closest to the building were 

considered for a solar PV installation. Figure 4 shows the four usable sections identified in this study.  

 

 
Figure 4 Arillaga Family Gymnasium Usable Areas 

 
Sections 1-3 take up less than half of the parking lot, which is shared by the gymnasium and the library. The other half of 
the parking is not considered usable due to tree shading. West of the pitched roof is a flat portion of the rooftop, which is 
not usable due existing solar thermal collectors. 
 
At this site, a total of 168 kW-DC of solar PV can be installed within all four sections. A system of this size is capable of 
producing 224,776 kWh annually. This production would offset 81% of the site’s annual usage, which is 278,368 kWh. Given 
the site’s usage, a smaller, 166 kW-DC, PV system is recommended for this site. The recommended system would generate 
222,438 kWh of energy and offset 80% of the site’s usage. Table 3 shows the size and possible solar PV size that can be 
installed in each section. 

1 

3 

4 

2

  

244



 Solar Feasibility Study for the City of Menlo Park  Final 

                           Confidential: Analysis prepared for the City of Menlo Park by Optony Inc. 
www.optony.com 

 

 
Table 3 Arillaga Family Gymnasium Possible PV System Summary 

Section Azimuth Area (Sq. Ft.) Size (kW DC) 

Carport 

1 215° 1,687 18 

2 215° 1,843 19 

3 215° 4,362 46 

Rooftop 

4 215° 8,164 85 

Total 16,056 168 

Total System Production (kWh) 224,776 

Recommended System Size (kW) 166 

Recommended System Output (kWh) 222,438 

 
As stated earlier, the pitched roof of the Gymnasium is composed of flat concrete tiles. The roof deck is composed of metal, 

4” insulation, ¾ plywood, and 1 layer of 30lbs cell.  

 

Figure 5 below shows a view of Sections 1-3.  Additionally, Figure 6, on the right, shows a view of the exisitng solar thermal 

collectors. These collectors are installated on the flat portion of the rooftop that is west of Section 4. 

 

 
Figure 5 shows a view of the usable carport area 

 

 
Figure 6 shows the existing solar thermal collectors 

Main building voltage is 480/277V while the switchgear and main breaker are both rated 600A.  There is space within the 

electrical room for additional PV-related electrical equipment. 

 

 

 
    

  

245



 Solar Feasibility Study for the City of Menlo Park  Final 

         Confidential: Analysis prepared for the City of Menlo Park by Optony Inc. 
www.optony.com 

Belle Haven Childcare Center 

Site Address: 410 Ivy Drive, Menlo Park CA 94025 

 

Type of PV System:   Rooftop 

Current PG&E Rate Schedule:  A-1 

Annual Energy Usage:  30,320 kWh 

Maximum System Size:   23 kW-DC 

Maximum System Output:  29,730 kWh 

Recommended System Size: 21 kW-DC 

Recommended System Output: 27,157 kWh 

Energy Offset:     98% possible, 90% recommended 

 

Issues:  Roof age and roof deck are unknown; tree shading  

Opportunities:      High energy offset;   

 

The usable areas at the Belle Haven Childcare Center are located only on the rooftops as shown in Figure 7 below. All four 

areas are composed of shingles, pitched at about 12°. The southeast portion of Section 4 is not usable due to shading 

concerns from the tree east of the property. 

 

 
Figure 7 Belle Haven Childcare Center Usable Areas 

 

As Table 4 shows, a maximum of 23 kW-DC can be installed within the four identified sections. This system can produce 

approximately 29,730 kWh during its first year of operation. In the last 12-months the site used 30,320 kWh of electricity. 

The maximum PV system would 98% of the site’s energy usage. A smaller, 21 kW-DC system, is recommended for this site. 

The 21 kW-DC system would produce 27,157 kWh of energy in its first year and offset 90% of the site’s energy.  

1 2 3 4 

246



 Solar Feasibility Study for the City of Menlo Park  Final 

         Confidential: Analysis prepared for the City of Menlo Park by Optony Inc. 
www.optony.com 

 

 
Table 4 Belle Haven Childcare Center Possible PV System Summary 

Section Azimuth Area (Sq. Ft.) Size (kW DC) 

1 115° 603 6 

2 115° 583 6 

3 115° 595 6 

4 115° 416 4 

Total 2,198 23 

Total System Production (kWh) 29,730 

Recommended System Size (kW) 21 

Recommended System Output (kWh) 27,157 

 

Figure 8 shows a view of the tree, east of the site, which limited the usable area for Section 4. Figure 9, on the right, shows 

a sample view of Sections 1 and 2. The remaining two sections, Sections 3 and 4, are composed of the same material and 

pitched at the same angle. The translucent shade structure in front of Section 1 and 2 is not usable for Solar PV. 

 

 
Figure 8 View of the tree that limits the usable area for Section 4 

 

 
Figure 9 shows a view of Sections 1 and 2, which are on a shingle roof 

that is pitched at about 12°

Main building voltage at this site is 120/240V. The switchgear and main breaker are rated 400A. While there is no room for 

additional PV-related electrical equipment in the electrical room, there is ample space immediately outside the electrical 

room for additional PV-related electrical equipment.  

 

    

  

247



 Solar Feasibility Study for the City of Menlo Park  Final 

         Confidential: Analysis prepared for the City of Menlo Park by Optony Inc. 
www.optony.com 

Onetta Harris Community Center 

Site Address: 100 Terminal Avenue, Menlo Park CA 94025 

 

Type of PV System:   Carport, Rooftop 

Current PG&E Rate Schedule:  E-19 SV 

Annual Energy Usage:  166,000 kWh 

Maximum System Size:   299 kW-DC 

Maximum System Output:  391,591 kWh 

Recommended System Size: 103 kW-DC 

Recommended System Output: 136,206 kWh 

Energy Offset:     over 100% possible; 82% recommended 

 

Issues:  Roof age and integrity;   

Opportunities:      High energy offset; Carport and rooftop installation;  

 

The Onetta Harris Community Center (OHCC) is in the same lot as the Onetta Harris Senior Center and the Onetta Harris 

Teen Center. Aside from the gymnasium, the OHCC has a heated pool, tennis courts, a basketball court and a large soccer 

field.  

 

Figure 10 shows an aerial view of the usable areas at this site. Sections 1 is an empty storage area, and Sections 2-4 are 

parking lot areas. Sections 5-9 are location on the rooftop of the center itself. Section 10 is the rooftop of the pool house. 

And lastly, Sections 11-12 are on the rooftop of the Teen Center building.  

 

 
Figure 10 Onetta Harris Community Center Usable Areas 

 
Using all the highlighted areas, a maximum of 299 kW-DC can be installed at this site. The annual production from a system 

of this size is approximately 391,591 kWh. The Community Center’s most recent 12-month electricity usage was 166,000 

kWh. The maximum system size would offset over 100% of the site’s usage; therefore, a smaller, 103 kW-DC, system is 

recommended for this site. The recommended system would produce 136,206 kWh of energy each year and offset 82% of 

the site’s usage. More detail about each of the sections can be found in Table 5. 

 

1 
2 

3 4 

5 

7 6 

8 

10 

5 

10 

11 12 

9 

248



 Solar Feasibility Study for the City of Menlo Park  Final 

         Confidential: Analysis prepared for the City of Menlo Park by Optony Inc. 
www.optony.com 

Table 5 Onetta Harris Community Center Possible PV System Summary 

Section Azimuth Area (Sq. Ft.) Size (kW DC) 

Carport 

1 215° 1,012 11 

2 175° 3,650 38 

3 175° 6,093 64 

4 175° 2,785 29 

Rooftop 

5 265° 2,279 24 

6 175° 5,555 58 

7 85° 2,325 24 

8 85° 1,103 12 

9 265° 1,048 11 

10 175° 840 8 

11 265° 974 10 

12 85° 891 9 

Total 28,554 299 

Total System Production (kWh) 391,591 

Recommended System Size (kW) 103 

Recommended System Output (kWh) 136,206 

 
During daylight hours, any excess energy that is produced by the PV system and is not consumed by the site flows back into 
the utility grid earning energy credits for the site.  During the night, when the PV system is not generating power, these 
credits are used up. However, Pacific Gas & Energy will only allow these credits to be used within the same calendar year. 
Therefore, a system must be sized appropriately in order to avoid generating too much electricity.  
 

 
Figure 11 shows a view of Sections 7 and 9, which are metal standing 

seam 

 
Figure 12 shows the roof of the pool house, Section 10 

249



 Solar Feasibility Study for the City of Menlo Park  Final 

         Confidential: Analysis prepared for the City of Menlo Park by Optony Inc. 
www.optony.com 

 
Figure 13 shows a view of the Teen Center rooftop, which includes 

Section 11 and Section 12 

 

 
Figure 14 shows a view of Section 6, which is the highest area of the 

Community Center rooftop 

 
Figure 15 shows a view of the parking lot, west of the Community Center 

 

 
Figure 16 shows a view of the storage area, identified in Section 1

 
The electrical room is located in the Community Center building as shown by the white bix in Figure 10. Main building 
voltage is 120/208V. The switchgear and main breaker are both rated 800A. The electric room does not have ample space 
for any additional equipment. All PV related equipment will have to be installed outside of the building in a fenced area. 
 
  

250



 Solar Feasibility Study for the City of Menlo Park  Final 

         Confidential: Analysis prepared for the City of Menlo Park by Optony Inc. 
www.optony.com 

Arrillaga Family Gymnastics Center 

Site Address: 701 Laurel Street, Menlo Park CA 94025 

 

Type of PV System:   Carport , Rooftop 

Current PG&E Rate Schedule:  A-10SX 

Annual Energy Usage:  1,337,982 kWh (Civic Center) 

    267,596 kWh (Suggested 20% meter split) 

Maximum System Size:   162kW-DC 

Maximum System Output:  213,584 kWh 

Recommended System Size: 158 kW-DC 

Recommended System Output: 208,311 kWh 

Energy Offset:     15.5% - Civic Center; 78% - 20% meter split recommended 

 

Issues: Limited usable area; tree shading; meter split required due to multiple sites under one meter; high total 

campus electricity usage  

Opportunities:      Carport and rooftop installation; solar demonstration site 

 

The Arrillaga Family Gymnastics Center is a new facility located within the City of Menlo Park Civic Center. The Menlo Park 

Civic Center is composed of four buildings: the Administration and Police Department, the Arrillaga Family Gymnastics 

Center, the Children’s Center, and City Council Chambers. There are five usable areas at this site, as shown in Figure 17, 

which could be used for a solar PV installation. The white box shows the location of the Civic Center main electrical room, 

which is in the basement of the Administration and Police Department building. 

 

 
Figure 17 Civic Center Usable Areas for the Arrillaga Family Gymnastics Center 

 

Sections 1-4 are located in the parking lots northwest of the Arrillaga Family Gymnastics Center. A total of 53 spots will be 
covered by PV carports. Section 5 is located on the rooftop of the gymnastics building. A total of 162 kW-DC can be installed 

1 

2 3 

4 5 

Gymnastics Center 

251



 Solar Feasibility Study for the City of Menlo Park  Final 

         Confidential: Analysis prepared for the City of Menlo Park by Optony Inc. 
www.optony.com 

at this site. A system of this size will be able to produce about 213,584 kWh each year. The maximum PV system size would 
offset 15.5% of the entire Civic Center’s usage, which was 1,337,982 kWh last year. A meter split is highly recommended for 
this site. The suggested usage split is 20% of the current usage, which would be 267,596 kWh. With a 20% meter split, the 
recommended PV size would be 158 kW-DC, which would produce 208,311 kWh yearly and offset 78% of the split usage. 
Otherwise, as it stands, given the low system offset, limited available space to expand, and a single meter for multiple 
buildings, a PV installation would not be recommended at this site. Details about size and layout of each of the sections are 
shown in Table 6.   
 
Table 6 Arrillaga Family Gymnastics Center Possible PV System Summary 

Section Azimuth Area (Sq. Ft.) Size (kW DC) 

Carport 

1 210° 1,646 20 

2 210° 3,431 41 

3 210° 1,531 18 

4 210° 2,041 24 

Rooftop 

5 120° 5,001 59 

Total 13,650 162 

Total System Production (kWh) 213,584 

Recommended System Size (kW) 158 

Recommended System Output (kWh) 208,311 

 
If there is a 20% usage meter split, then an A-6 Time Of Use (TOU) rate schedule switch is recommended for this site. During 
daylight hours, excess power generated by the PV system flows back into the utility grid. Excess power is defined as the net 
power between the production and usage at the site. This excess generates credits for the site which can then be used up 
during the night. However, at the end of each calendar year, PG&E zeroes out the excess credits on all net-metered 
accounts. Essentially, with a large system the site will be producing power for the utility for free. The recommended system 
size at this site is 158 kW, which would offset 78% of the site’s electricity usage and maximize the financial benefits from a 
PV system. 
 
The following images show potential carport and rooftop usable areas at the Arrillaga Family Gymnastics Center. Figure 18 
shows a view of the parking lot behind the Child Care Center, identified as Section 1, and Figure 19 shows a view of the 
parking lot next to the Police Department building, which is identified as Section 2.  

 

 
Figure 18 view of Section 1 carport area 

 

 
Figure 19 shows a view of Section 2, which is another potential carport 

area 

 

252



 Solar Feasibility Study for the City of Menlo Park  Final 

         Confidential: Analysis prepared for the City of Menlo Park by Optony Inc. 
www.optony.com 

 
Figure 20 shows a view of Section 4 carport area 

 
Figure 21 shows a view of the Gymnastics building rooftop 

 

Section 4, which is shown in Figure 20, is the parking area along the football field. Lastly, Figure 21 shows a view of the 

Gymnasitc building rooftop. The roof is composed of flat concerete tiles. The roof deck is composed of metal, 4” insulation, 

¾ plywood, and 1 layer of 30lbs cell.  

 
Building voltage is 277/400V. Main breaker and switchgear are both rated 2,500A. There is space for additional equipment 
within the electrical room, but the inverter will need to installed outside the building. A proposed inverter location is the 
police vehicle parking lot. 

253



 Solar Feasibility Study for the City of Menlo Park  Final 

         Confidential: Analysis prepared for the City of Menlo Park by Optony Inc. 
www.optony.com 

                              .  
Economic and Environmental Impact 

If all three sites move forward with the proposed solar projects, there will be a significant environmental and economic 

impact to the City of Menlo Park and its neighboring communities.  

From an economic perspective, a large-scale multiple-site solar project would create approximately $1.2M in new, local 

economic activity and about 9 additional jobs, in addition to generating substantial energy cost savings for the City of 

Menlo Park. If the City were to pursue a direct purchase of the systems, there would be substantial long-term benefits and 

a positive return on investment from the effort when competitively bid. A summary of the economic benefits is shown in 

Figure 22.  

 
Figure 22 Snapshot of Economic Benefits 

 

Optony performed a detailed financial analysis of the recommended sites and PV system sizes.  Detailed below are site 

specific recommendations with District preferred financing option. 

 
Table 7 Site Recommendations 

 
 

In general, the Direct Purchase option provides the greatest savings over the long-term, but does require initial project 

investment and ongoing Operations & Maintenance for the system. The PPA option, on the other hand, shows the lowest 

savings over the life of the systems, but, yearly payments with a rate schedule change would be lower than current or 

projected PG&E bills starting in Year One. With a PPA, no capital investment or balloon payments are necessary, and O&M 

Site Name

Recommended 

System Size 

(kW-DC)

Action Financing
Financial 

Savings/Cost*

Corporation Yard 49 Join R-REP Procurement DP/PPA 261,012$        

Arri l laga Fami ly Gymnas ium 166 Join R-REP Procurement DP/PPA 794,903$        

Bel le Haven Chi ld Center 21 Join R-REP Procurement DP/PPA 64,207$          

Onetta  Harris  Community Center 103 Join R-REP Procurement DP/PPA 314,460$        

Arri l laga Fami ly Gymnastics  Center 158 Join R-REP Procurement DP/PPA 405,805$        

1,840,386$     

* Savings/Cost shown for Direct Purchase Financing

Total for All Sites

254



 Solar Feasibility Study for the City of Menlo Park  Final 

         Confidential: Analysis prepared for the City of Menlo Park by Optony Inc. 
www.optony.com 

is handled by the third-party system owner. Based upon projected values, Solar Leases for the recommended systems may 

be a valid option to consider for inclusion in an RFP issuance. Savings under a Lease or Loan option are typically lower than 

for a PPA for the life of the Lease or Loan, but after the buy-out (modeled at zero cost at Year 15), savings are significant. 

Based on this analysis, we recommend further investigation with private project developers through a competitive bid 

process to get the best results in terms of pricing and performance. 

 

A financial analysis summary of all the individual sites is provided in Attachment A. 
 

From an environmental perspective, the combined solar production will prevent the equivalent of nearly 473 metric tons of 

carbon dioxide from being released into the environment from current power sources annually. This amount of carbon 

sequestration can be visualized as planting approximately 101 acres of new forest. The carbon emissions reduction is 

equivalent to eliminating approximately 1.09 million Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) annually. The total yearly energy 

production would be sufficient to power nearly 53 homes in the City of Cupertino. 

255



 Solar Feasibility Study for the City of Menlo Park  Final 

         Confidential: Analysis prepared for the City of Menlo Park by Optony Inc. 
www.optony.com 

Next Steps 

If the City of Menlo Park decides to pursue the recommended options, the following next steps have been identified to 

move this project along quickly and achieve the desired impact on cost reduction and green energy production before 

available solar incentives decrease. Also included is an estimate for duration of each step and when the work can be 

started.  

1) Build Consensus: Use the report’s findings to build internal support, determine financing options, and appropriate 

procurement process. Start: immediately, Duration: approximately 4-6 weeks 

2) Prepare Standard RFQ/RFP and Issue RFQ/RFP: After receiving approval to proceed, publish a procurement 

package and encourage vendor participation. Start: upon approval of RFQ/RFP, Duration: approximately 14 weeks 

3) Evaluate Vendors, Proposals, Benefits and Costs in terms of design, price, performance, and capabilities, ensuring 

industry best practices are offered and contracted. Start: upon receipt of proposals, Duration: approximately 4 

weeks 

4) Select Vendor and Negotiate Contracts: Select vendor and review contract language to ensure maximum benefit 

for each agency. Start: upon selection of shortlisted vendors, Duration: approximately 6 weeks 

5) Plan for Construction in 2013: Finalize financial arrangements, system design, and required building documents to 

begin installation and construction phase. Start: upon project approval, Duration: approximately 6-8 weeks  

 

 
 

256



 Solar Feasibility Study for the City of Menlo Park  Final 

         Confidential: Analysis prepared for the City of Menlo Park by Optony Inc. 
www.optony.com 

Methodology & Assumptions 

Optony uses a rigorous methodology and client-focused approach to evaluate potential solar sites that goes well beyond 

the effort that is provided by system installers, finance companies, or even the utility companies. We combine our decades 

of experience in the solar field to balance the tradeoffs between technology, system design, rebates and incentive 

opportunities, electric demand and rate schedules, solar macro- and micro-economics, and available funding sources to 

develop an independent assessment of the realistic options at each site to meet the client’s specific needs and goals.  

Methodology and assumptions for this Feasibility Assessment: 

 Optony uses a proprietary approach to performing a solar site analysis that uses dynamic scenario creation and 

evaluation processes along with publicly and privately developed software and tools to determine all the relevant 

variables and tradeoffs between options. 

 For calculating available space at each site, the team visited the site, took physical measurements, compared site 

available area with aerial views from Google Earth and performed shading analysis using Solmetric SunEye. Mapping 

software by Bing was also used for satellite imagery. 

 Solar access is defined as the availability of direct sunlight which reaches the photovoltaic panels. A higher solar access 

percentage reflects fewer shading obstructions. Shading obstructions may include surrounding buildings, mechanical 

equipment on rooftops including antennas and power lines, architectural features of the building, tall trees, and other 

surrounding vegetation. 

 Optony uses industry standard as well as proprietary financial modeling software with local utility rate schedules and 

typical meteorological year 3 data, and neutral to conservative inflation, SREC and Investment Tax Credit assumptions 

in all financial modeling. This approach allows Optony to present the client with realistic forecasting that reduces risks 

and estimates realistic project returns.  

 Project timing is very important in the overall economics of a solar system installation due to the time-sensitive nature 

of the various federal, state, utility, and local incentives. Optony assumed that this project will not be completed in 

2012, but has evaluated the impact for construction completion in 2013. 

 Optony has a unique insight into the latest solar technology due to its cooperative agreement and ongoing research 

with the National Renewable Energy Laboratory in Golden, CO. This has led to the achievement of world-record 

performance in thin film solar cells and major advancements in other emerging photovoltaic technologies. 

 Optony does not sell equipment or installation services, and this report is not intended to provide a quote for future 

service; rather, it is a report on the ability of the pre-selected sites to produce power from the sun. 

Disclaimer: This report is provided as an illustration of the potential benefits of a renewable energy system. The information 
presented in this report should not be construed as legal, tax or accounting advice. You should consult with professional 
advisors familiar with your particular factual situation for advice concerning specific matters before making any decision. 
Furthermore, this report may contain references to certain laws, regulations, tax incentives, rebates, programs and third 
party provided information. These will change over time and should be interpreted only in light of this particular 
engagement as of the date of this report. 
 

257



 Solar Feasibility Study for the City of Menlo Park  Final 

         Confidential: Analysis prepared for the City of Menlo Park by Optony Inc. 
www.optony.com 

About Optony Inc. 

Optony Inc. is a global research and consulting services firm focused on enabling government and commercial organizations 

to bridge the gap between solar energy goals and real-world results. Optony’s core services offer a systematic approach to 

planning, implementing, and managing commercial and utility-grade solar power systems, while simultaneously navigating 

the dramatic and rapid changes in the solar industry; from emerging technologies and system designs to government 

incentives and private/public financing options. Leveraging our independence, domain expertise and unique market 

position, our clients are empowered to make informed decisions that reduce risk, optimize operations, and deliver the 

greatest long-term return on their solar investments. Based in Silicon Valley, Optony has offices in Washington DC, Denver, 

Beijing and Hangzhou. Optony has participated in over 20 patent filings and continues to explore next-generation solar 

technologies and policies in collaboration with the National Renewable Energy Laboratory (NREL) and other leading 

research institutions.  

For more information, visit www.optony.com  

  

258



 Solar Feasibility Study for the City of Menlo Park  Final 

         Confidential: Analysis prepared for the City of Menlo Park by Optony Inc. 
www.optony.com 

Attachment A - Solar PV Project Analysis Summary 

 

Corp Yard Arrillaga Gym

Belle Haven 

Childcare 

Center

Onetta Harris 

Community 

Center

Arrillaga 

Gymnastics 

Center Total

System Overview

System Size (kWp) 49 166 21 103 158 498                      

Yield (kWh/kWp) 1,322 1,338 1,293 1,322 1,318 1,325

Total onsite energy usage (kWh) 80,240 278,368 30,320 166,000 267,596 822,525              

Year 1 Output (kWh) 65,194 222,438 27,157 136,206 208,311 659,305

Annual degradation 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50%

Energy Offset % 81% 80% 90% 82% 78% 80%

Current Utility Information

Utility Provider PG&E PG&E PG&E PG&E PG&E

Utility Rate Schedule A-10 S A-10 S A-1 E-19 SV A-10 S

Average Utility Cost ($/kWh) 0.123 0.123 0.180 0.092 0.123 0.1193

Utility Inflator (%) 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.5%

Direct Purchase Information

Eng, Proc, Constr $ 1 $172,550 $594,165 $73,500 $360,500 $564,850 $1,765,565

Solar Rebate ($/kWh) $0.088 $0.088 $0.088 $0.088 $0.088

Solar Rebate Term 5 years 5 years 5 years 5 years 5 years

Yr 1 O&M $740 $2,493 $525 $2,575 $3,950 $10,283

O&M Escalator 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%

Discount Rate 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4%

Loan Information

Loan Term 15                     15                     15                     15                     15                     

Loan Interest Rate - % 3.80% 3.80% 3.80% 3.80% 3.80%

End of Term Buyout $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

PPA Information

Initial PPA rate ($/kWh) 1 0.1600 0.1600 0.1600 0.1600 0.1600

PPA escalator 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%

S-REC Value (keep/sell) ($/kWh) 0.010 0.010 0.010 0.010 0.000

S-REC escalator 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

S-REC Contrac Term 5 year(s) 5 year(s) 5 year(s) 5 year(s) 5 year(s)

 Buyer sells S-REC (Direct Purchase/Loan) N N N N N

Environmental Impact

Annual CO2 Reduction (Tons) 47                     160                  19                     98                     150                  473                      

Annual VMT Reduction Equivalent 107,413          366,490          44,744             224,413          343,214          1,086,274           

Tree Acre Equivalent 10                     34                     4                       21                     32                     101                      

NPV of Energy Cost

Utility Energy Purchase (25 year) $446,756 $1,437,775 $148,582 $728,370 $1,050,348 $3,811,832

Getting PPA (25 year) $242,894 $833,108 $101,718 $510,326 $778,227 $2,466,274

Direct Purchase (incl O&M, solar rebate) $185,744 $642,872 $84,376 $413,910 $644,543 $1,971,445

Loan ( year term) $187,904 $650,312 $85,296 $418,424 $651,616 $1,993,552

% Energy Savings

Direct Purchase (25 year) 71.21% 68.99% 59.76% 59.64% 56.63%

Loan (25 year) 64.01% 61.29% 50.54% 50.42% 46.60%

PPA (25 year) 46.66% 43.14% 32.82% 31.24% 27.30%

LCOE Analysis

Utility LCOE 0.3746             0.3475             0.3297             0.2952             0.2641             0.3123                

Direct Purchase LCOE 0.1078             0.1078             0.1327             0.1191             0.1145             0.1133                

Loan LCOE 0.1348             0.1345             0.1631             0.1464             0.1410             0.1402                

PPA LCOE 0.1998             0.1976             0.2215             0.2030             0.1920             0.1981                

1  Indicative pricing, pending further analysis by vendor after system size and site assumptions are finalized
2  Based on most recent 12 months of Utility interval data

259



PV Carport Design Samples 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT C 

260



 

 

261



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

262



 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
 

Council Meeting Date: November 27, 2012 
Staff Report #: 12-179 

 
Agenda Item #: I-1 

 
 
INFORMATIONAL ITEM: Status Update on Reusable Bag Ordinance 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
This is an information item and does not require Council action.   
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In March 2012, Council provided direction to partner with San Mateo County to consider 
regulating disposable shopping bags at retail establishments. San Mateo County offered 
to fund and develop a model Reusable Bag Ordinance and an Environmental Impact 
Report (EIR) at no cost to partnering cities. The County requested that partnering cities 
commit staff time and resources to engage their community in the decision making 
process. To date, 18 cities in San Mateo and six Santa Clara County cities have joined 
the regionwide effort.  In addition, San Mateo County has offered to provide 
enforcement at no cost to San Mateo County cities that adopt the County’s ordinance by 
reference.  
 
The ordinance would prohibit distribution of plastic bags at all retail establishments, and 
charge a 10 cent fee for each recycled paper bags that would increase to 25 cents in 
2015. A customer could avoid the fee if they brought their own reusable bag. The 
ordinance would not include bags distributed by restaurants or to protect products such 
as prescription medication or produce. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
On October 23, 2012, the County Board of Supervisors adopted a Reusable Bag 
Ordinance (Attachment A) and certified the associated EIR for unincorporated county 
retail establishments. No significant impacts or mitigation measures were identified in 
the EIR. The ordinance will go into effect on Earth Day, April 22, 2013. Partnering cities 
can now adopt the ordinance by reference. Staff will bring this to Council for 
consideration in January 2013 with a proposed implementation date on Earth Day (April 
22, 2013).  
 
The County is encouraging partnering cities to coordinate similar implementation dates 
to provide regional consistency and reduce economic competition between cities. It also 
provides for smoother enforcement activities by County staff.  

263



 
Community Engagement Activities 
In Menlo Park, a six month community engagement process started in June 2012. The 
process includes communicating information through billing inserts, postcards, ads, 
press releases, and hosting three informational meetings about the problems 
associated with disposable bags and how the ordinance addresses these issues.  In 
addition, staff is simultaneously gathering feedback at city events, Farmer’s Market, in 
front of retail establishments, and through informational meetings and retailer surveys. 
Free reusable bags are also given to residents at events to assist in the transition. 
 
Staff has received over 50 written comments from Menlo Park residents. The current 
trend shows that 80% of the comments are in support of prohibiting distribution of 
plastic bags with 7% unsure and 13% unsupportive. When residents were asked about 
a fee charge for paper bags, 57% were supportive with 10% unsure and 32% 
unsupportive.  
 
A survey was also sent to Menlo Park retailers in October, and to date, over 50 have 
responded. The current trend shows 50% support a Reusable Bag Ordinance with 22% 
unsure and 28% unsupportive.  In addition, the California Grocer’s Association has 
submitted a letter expressing support for the regional ordinance. See Attachment B. 
 
Staff will continue to collect feedback from the community until the end of December. 
The last informational meeting will be held at the Recreation Center at 6:30 pm on 
December 12. This meeting will also host a free public viewing of the “Bag It” 
documentary starting at 7 pm. Residents and retailers can submit written comments to 
the Environmental Programs department by emailing recycle@menlopark.org or mailing 
a letter to 701 Laurel Street, Menlo Park, 94025.  
 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
Community engagement activities for the shopping bag ordinance are included in the 
Environmental Program operating budget for Fiscal Year 2012-2013.  If the ordinance is 
adopted by Council, San Mateo County will provide enforcement and education to 
Menlo Park retailers at no cost to the City.  
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
Disposable carryout plastic bags have been found to contribute substantially to the litter 
stream and have adverse effects on marine wildlife. A policy prohibiting the distribution 
of disposable carryout plastic bags, and charging a minimum fee for paper bags would 
assist the City in meeting new Regional Water Board mandates to reduce trash in storm 
drains by 40% by 2014, and assist with meeting State legislation goals to divert 75% of 
trash from landfills by 2020.  
 

264

mailto:recycle@menlopark.org�


If the City implements a single use carryout bag policy, Menlo Park will receive a 12% 
credit towards the 40% trash reduction in storm drains mandates from the Regional 
Water Board.   
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
A Program Environmental Impact Report (EIR) has been prepared and certified by San 
Mateo County’s Board of Supervisors. The Program EIR covers all partnering agencies, 
including Menlo Park. A Notice of Determination was filed by the County on October 25, 
2012.  
 
Signature on File_______________ Signature on File_______________ 
Rebecca Fotu Charles Taylor 
Environmental Programs Manager Public Works Director 
 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this agenda 
 item being listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 

A. San Mateo Reusable Bag Ordinance 
 

B. Letter from California Grocers Association 
 

 

265



ORDINANCE NO.  04637 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, COUNTY OF SAN MATEO, 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
 

*   *   *   *   *   * 
 

ORDINANCE ADDING CHAPTER 4.114 (REUSABLE BAGS) OF TITLE 4 
(SANITATION AND HEALTH) OF THE SAN MATEO COUNTY ORDINANCE 

CODE RELATING TO REUSABLE BAGS 
 

 
The Board of Supervisors of the County of San Mateo, State of California, 

ORDAINS as follows 

 
SECTION 1.  Chapter 4.114 “Reusable Bags,” consisting of Sections 4.114.010 

through 4.114.080, of Title 4 of the San Mateo County Ordinance Code is hereby added 

as follows: 

4.114.010  Findings and purpose 

The Board of Supervisors finds and determines that: 

(a) The use of single-use carryout bags by consumers at retail establishments is 
detrimental to the environment, public health and welfare. 

(b) The manufacture and distribution of single-use carryout bags requires utilization of 
natural resources and results in the generation of greenhouse gas emissions. 

(c) Single-use carryout bags contribute to environmental problems, including litter in 
stormdrains, creeks, the bay and the ocean. 

(d) 

 

Single-use carryout bags provided by retail establishments impose unseen costs 
on consumers, local governments, the state and taxpayers and constitute a public 
nuisance. 

This Board does, accordingly, find and declare that it should restrict the single use 
carry-out bags 

 

4.114.020  Definitions 

    A.     "Customer" means any person obtaining goods from a retail establishment. 

    B.   “Garment Bag” means a travel bag made of pliable, durable material with or 

266

nsmariano
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A



without a handle, designed to hang straight or fold double and used to carry suits, 
dresses, coats, or the like without crushing or wrinkling the same. 

     C.     "Nonprofit charitable reuser" means a charitable organization, as defined in 
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, or a distinct operating unit or 
division of the charitable organization, that reuses and recycles donated goods or 
materials and receives more than fifty percent of its revenues from the handling and 
sale of those donated goods or materials. 

     D.     "Person" means any natural person, firm, corporation, partnership, or other 
organization or group however organized. 

     E.     "Prepared food" means foods or beverages which are prepared on the 
premises by cooking, chopping, slicing, mixing, freezing, or squeezing, and which 
require no further preparation to be consumed.  “Prepared food” does not include any 
raw, uncooked meat product or fruits or vegetables which are chopped, squeezed, or 
mixed. 

     F.     "Public eating establishment" means a restaurant, take-out food establishment, 
or any other business that receives ninety percent or more of its revenue from the sale 
of prepared food to be eaten on or off its premises. 

     G.     "Recycled paper bag" means a paper bag provided at the check stand, cash 
register, point of sale, or other point of departure for the purpose of transporting food or 
merchandise out of the establishment that contains no old growth fiber and a minimum 
of forty percent post- consumer recycled content; is one hundred percent recyclable; 
and has printed in a highly visible manner on the outside of the bag the words 
"Reusable" and "Recyclable," the name and location of the manufacturer, and the 
percentage of post-consumer recycled content. 

     H.     "Retail establishment" means any commercial establishment that sells 
perishable or nonperishable goods including, but not limited to, clothing, food, and 
personal items directly to the customer; and is located within or doing business within 
the geographical limits of the County of San Mateo. “Retail establishment” does not 
include public eating establishments or nonprofit charitable reusers. 

     I.     "Reusable bag" means either a bag made of cloth or other machine washable 
fabric that has handles, or a durable plastic bag with handles that is at least 2.25 mil 
thick and is specifically designed and manufactured for multiple reuse.  A garment bag 
may meet the above criteria regardless of whether it has handles or not. 

     J.     "Single-use carry-out bag" means a bag other than a reusable bag provided at 
the check stand, cash register, point of sale or other point of departure, including 
departments within a store, for the purpose of transporting food or merchandise out of 
the establishment.  “Single-use carry-out bags” do not include bags without handles 
provided to the customer: (1) to transport prepared food, produce, bulk food or meat 
from a department within a store to the point of sale; (2) to hold prescription medication 
dispensed from a pharmacy; or (3) to segregate food or merchandise that could 
damage or contaminate other food or merchandise when placed together in a reusable 

267



bag or recycled paper bag 

4.114.030 Implementation Date 

     This Chapter shall not be implemented until April 22, 2013. 

4.114.040  Single-use carry-out bag 

     A.     No retail establishment shall provide a single-use carry-out bag to a customer, 
at the check stand, cash register, point of sale or other point of departure for the 
purpose of transporting food or merchandise out of the establishment except as 
provided in this section. 

     B.     On or before December 31, 2014 a retail establishment may only make 
recycled paper bags or reusable bags available to customers if the retailer charges a 
minimum  of ten cents. 

     C.     On or after January 1, 2015 a retail establishment may only make recycled 
paper bags or reusable bags available to customers if the retailer charges a minimum of 
twenty-five cents. 

     D.     Notwithstanding this section, no retail establishment may make available for 
sale a recycled paper bag or a reusable bag unless the amount of the sale of such bag 
is separately itemized on the sale receipt. 

     E.     A retail establishment may provide one or more recycled paper bags at no cost 
to any of the following individuals: a customer participating in the California Special 
Supplement Food Program for Women, Infants, and Children pursuant to Article 2 
(commencing with Section 123275) of Chapter 1 of Part 2 of Division 106 of the Health 
and Safety Code; a customer participating in the Supplemental Food Program pursuant 
to Chapter 10 (commencing with Section 15500) of Part 3 of Division 9 of the California 
Welfare and Institutions Code; and a customer participating in Calfresh pursuant to 
Chapter 10 (commencing with Section 18900) of Part 6 of Division 9 of the California 
Welfare and Institutions Code. 

4.114.050  Recordkeeping and Inspection 
     Every retail establishment shall keep complete and accurate record or documents of 
the purchase and sale of any recycled paper bag or reusable bag by the retail 
establishment, for a minimum period of three years from the date of purchase and sale, 
which record shall be available for inspection at no cost to the County during regular 
business hours by any County employee authorized to enforce this part.  Unless an 
alternative location or method of review is mutually agreed upon, the records or 
documents shall be available at the retail establishment address.  The provision of false 
information including incomplete records or documents to the County shall be a violation 
of this Chapter. 
 
 
4.114.060  Administrative fine 
 

268



(a) Grounds for Fine. A fine may be imposed upon findings made by the Director of the 
Environmental Health Division, or his or her designee, that any retail establishment has 
provided a single-use carry-out bag to a customer in violation of this Chapter. 
 
(b) Amount of Fine. Upon findings made under subsection (a), the retail establishment 
shall be subject to an administrative fine as follows: 

(1) A fine not exceeding one hundred dollars ($100.00) for a first violation; 
(2) A fine not exceeding two hundred dollars ($200.00) for a second violation; 
(3) A fine not exceeding five hundred dollars ($500) for the third and subsequent 
violations; 
(4) Each day that a retail establishment has provided single-use carry-out bags to 
a customer constitutes a separate violation. 
 

(c) Fine Procedures. Notice of the fine shall be served on the retail establishment. The 
notice shall contain an advisement of the right to request a hearing before the Director 
of the Environmental Health Division or his or her designee contesting the imposition of 
the fine. The grounds for the contest shall be that the retail establishment did not 
provide a single-use carry-out bag to any customer.  Said hearing must be requested 
within ten days of the date appearing on the notice of the fine. The decision of the 
Director of the Environmental Health Division shall be based upon a finding that the 
above listed ground for a contest has been met and shall be a final administrative order, 
with no administrative right of appeal. 
 
(d) Failure to Pay Fine. If said fine is not paid within 30 days from the date appearing on 
the notice of the fine or of the notice of determination of the Director of the 
Environmental Health Division or his or her designee after the hearing, the fine shall be 
referred to a collection agency. 
 
4.114.070 Severability 
 
If any provision of this Chapter or the application of such provision to any person or in 
any circumstances shall be held invalid, the remainder of this Chapter, or the application 
of such provision to person or in circumstances other than those as to which it is held 
invalid, shall not be affected thereby. 
 
4.114.080  Enforcement  
 
The Environmental Health Division is hereby directed to enforce this Chapter within an 
incorporated area of the County of San Mateo if the governing body of that incorporated 
area does each of the following: 
 
(a) Adopts, and makes part of its municipal code: 

(1) Chapter 4.114 of Title 4 in its entirety by reference; or 
(2) An ordinance that contains each of the provisions of this Chapter; and 
 

(b) Authorizes, by ordinance or resolution, the Environmental Health Division to enforce 

269



the provision of the municipal code adopted pursuant to subsection (a) of this section, 
such authorization to include, without limitation, the authority to hold hearings and issue 
administrative fines within the affected incorporated area of the public entity. 

 

 

 
SECTION 2.  SEVERABILITY.  If any provision(s) of this ordinance is declared 

invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, it is the intent of the Board of Supervisors 

that such invalid provision(s) be severed from the remaining provisions of the ordinance 

and that those remaining provisions continue in effect. 

 
SECTION 3.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Ordinance shall be effective thirty (30) 

days from the passage date thereof. 

* * * * * * * * 

 

270



Regularly passed and adopted this 6th day of November, 2012. 
 
  AYES and in favor of said ordinance: 
 
    Supervisors:   DAVE PINE     

        CAROLE GROOM   

        DON HORSLEY    

        ROSE JACOBS GIBSON   

        ADRIENNE J. TISSIER   

 
NOES and against said ordinance: 
 

    Supervisors:   NONE      

              

  Absent Supervisors:      NONE     

             

 

 

                    
        President, Board of Supervisors 
        County of San Mateo 
        State of California 
 
 

Certificate of Delivery 
 

I certify that a copy of the original ordinance filed in the Office of the Clerk of the Board of 
Supervisors of San Mateo County has been delivered to the President of the Board of 

Supervisors. 

 
        Rebecca Romero, Deputy 
        Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
 

271



  

CALIFORNIA GROCERS ASSOCIATION  |  1215 K Street, Suite 700  |  Sacramento, CA 95814-3946  |  T: 916.448.3545  |  F: 916.448.2793  |  www.cagrocers.com 

March 12, 2012  
 

The Honorable Kirsten Keith  

Mayor, Menlo Park 

701 Laurel Street 

Menlo Park, CA 94025 

 

RE: Single-Use Carryout Bag Ordinance 

 

Dear Mayor Keith, 

 

On behalf of the California Grocers Association, I write to inform you of our interest to work with Menlo Park 

on a carryout bag ordinance if you choose to pursue an ordinance. We believe it is crucial carryout bag 

regulations meet their intended environmental goals, respect consumers, and minimize impacts to retailers. To 

date the grocery industry has helped develop and implement several dozen carryout bag ordinances throughout 

California that have met these goals. 

 

The California Grocers Association is a non-profit, statewide trade association representing the food industry 

since 1898. CGA represents approximately 500 retail member companies operating over 6,000 food stores in 

California and Nevada, and approximately 300 grocery supplier companies. Retail membership includes chain 

and independent supermarkets, convenience stores and mass merchandisers. CGA members include a number 

of grocery companies operating in Menlo Park. 

 

The model of banning single-use plastic bags and allowing recyclable paper bags for a charge has shown to 

encourage reusable bag use, provide consumers no-cost and low-cost carryout options, and minimize 

operational and financial impacts to retailers. California jurisdictions that have passed this type of ordinance 

include the Counties of Los Angeles and Alameda along with the cities of Long Beach, San Francisco and San 

Jose, with many more in progress. 

 

If Menlo Park decides to move forward with a carryout bag regulation we encourage you to use the ordinance 

being developed as part of the countywide effort, which includes participation by 18 San Mateo jurisdictions. 

Our experience has shown the draft ordinance developed through this regional effort has proven to benefit the 

environment while respecting consumers and retailers.  

 

It is critical San Mateo jurisdictions use a regional approach to regulate carryout bags in order avoid a 

patchwork of varying ordinances. If carryout bag regulations varied throughout San Mateo County it would 

likely confuse consumers, as well as create competitive disadvantages for retailers operating near neighboring 

jurisdictions and for retailers with multiple store locations throughout San Mateo County. 

 

Thank you for your consideration and please consider CGA a partner as you encourage reusable bag use. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

TIMOTHY M. JAMES 

Manager, Local Government Relations 

 

cc:  Councilmembers, City of Menlo Park 

 Ms. Starla Jerome-Robinson, Interim City Manager, City of Menlo Park 

Ms. Margaret Roberts, City Clerk, City of Menlo Park 

272

nsmariano
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B


	Agenda
	SS1 - Panel Introduction TMA
	A1 - Pancreatic Cancer Proclamation
	A2 - Community Survey
	D1 - 821 University Drive
	Att A - Resolution
	Att B - Parcel Map

	D2 - Sidewalk Repair
	D3 - Minutes
	E1 - COPS Grant
	Att A - Resoslution

	E2 - 20 Kelly Court
	Att A - 20 Kelly Court - Findings and Recommended Actions for Approval
	Att B (Rezoning Exhibit) - 20 Kelly Court (CDP) - Attachment B Exhibit
	Att C - 1  20 Kelly Court (CDP) - Draft CDP Reso
	Att D - 1  20 Kelly Court (CDP) - CDP_10 31 12
	Att E - 1  20 Kelly Court (CDP) - Draft Heritage Tree Reso
	Att F - 1  20 Kelly Court (CDP) - Draft Below Market Rate Agreement
	Att G - 20 Kelly Court (CDP) - Location Map
	Att H - 20 Kelly Court (CDP) - Project Plans
	Att I - 20 Kelly Court (CDP) - Project Description Letter
	Att J - 20 Kelly Court (CDP) - Draft LEED Checklist
	Att K - 20 Kelly Court (CDP) - Arborist Report
	Att L - 20 Kelly Court (CDP) - Hazardous Materials Project Description Letter
	Att M - 20 Kelly Court (CDP) - Chemical Inventory
	un-035 BOC 081312 CA B1-1
	un-035 BOC 081312 CA B2-1
	un-035 BOC 081312 CA B2-2
	un-035 BOC 081312 CA B2-3
	un-035 BOC 081312 CA B2-4
	un-035 BOC 081312 CA ext

	Att N - 20 Kelly Court (CDP) - Chemical Inventory Comparison Matrix
	Att O - 20 Kelly Court (CDP) - Hazardous Materials Business Plan (HMBP)
	Att P - 20 Kelly Court (CDP) - Hazardous Materials Agency Referral Forms
	Att Q - 20 Kelly Court (CDP) - Housing Commission Staff Report
	Att R - 20 Kelly Court (CDP) - Housing Commission Minutes of September 5

	F1 - City Facilities Energy Project
	Att A - resolution
	Att A - Reso Exhibit MOU FINAL

	Att B - Optony-City of Menlo Park Solar PV Feasibility Report-Final-110212
	Att C -  PV Carport Design Samples

	I1 - Reusable Bag Ordinance SR.pdf
	I1 - AttA - SMC Reusable Bag Ordinance
	I1 - AttB - Letter from CA Grocers Association





